
Mayor 
James Kallander 
 

Council Members 
Tim Joyce 
James Kacsh 
David Allison 
Bret Bradford 
EJ Cheshier 
David Reggiani 
Robert Beedle 
 

City Manager 
Mark Lynch 
 

City Clerk 
Susan Bourgeois 
 

Deputy Clerk 
Tina Hammer 
 

Student Council 
Carl Ranney 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
OCTOBER 17, 2012 @ 7:30 PM  
LIBRARY MEETING ROOM 

 

AGENDA 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
I pledge allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America, and to the republic for 
which it stands, one Nation under God, indivisible with liberty and justice for all.  
 

C. ROLL CALL  
Mayor James Kallander, Council members Tim Joyce, James Kacsh, David Allison, 
Bret Bradford, EJ Cheshier, David Reggiani and Robert Beedle  

  

  D. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA……………………………………….. (voice vote) 
 

E. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 

F. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 
1. Guest Speakers – John Bost of Mikunda Cottrell to present the City’s 2011 audit 
2. Audience comments regarding agenda items………………………………………...… (3 minutes per speaker) 

3. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions  
 (Harbor, HSB, Parks & Rec, P&Z, School Board) 
4. Superintendent’s Report…………………………………………………………………...………….. (page 1) 
5. Student Council Representative’s Report 
 

G. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR………………………………………………….. (roll call vote) 

6. Record excused absences of Council members Bret Bradford and Robert Beedle from the 
10/03/12 Regular Council Meeting 

 

H. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
7. Minutes of 09-05-12 City Council Joint Work Session………………………………..………..……. (page 4) 

8. Minutes of 09-19-12 City Council Work Session……………………………………………..……… (page 5) 
9. Minutes of 10-03-12 City Council Work Session…………………………………………………….. (page 7) 
10. Minutes of 10-03-12 City Council Regular Meeting………………………………….…………….. (page 9) 
 

I. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS  
 

J. REPORTS OF OFFICERS   
11. Mayor’s Report 
12. Manager’s Report…………………………………………………………………………………... (page 13) 

13. City Clerk’s Report……………………………………………………………………....…………. (page 14) 

14. Staff Reports - 3Q 2012 Quarterly Reports 
 a. Ashley Royal, Finance Director………………………………………………………….….. (page 15) 

 b. Paul Trumblee, Fire Marshal, CVFD………………………………………………………. (page 18) 
 c. Moe Zamarron, Public Works Director…………………………………………………….. (page 24) 
 d. Miriam Dunbar, Library Director……………………………………………………..…… (page 30) 
 e. Samantha Greenwood, City Planner……………………………………………………….. (page 33) 

 f. Buck Adams, UBS Financial, City Investments………………………………………..…… (page 34) 

 g. Susie Herschleb, Park & Recreation Director……………………………………….……… (page 65) 
 

K. CORRESPONDENCE  
15. Full Value Determination letter from the Office of the State Assessor 10-01-12……………..…… (page 67) 
 

L. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS 
16. Substitute Ordinance 1098……………………………………………………...…..…. (roll call vote)(page 68) 



An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, amending Cordova Municipal 
Code Chapter 3.36 to clarify the authority and responsibilities of the School Board – 2nd reading 

17. Ordinance 1099……………….…………………………………………………...….….. (voice vote)(page 71) 
An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, amending Cordova Municipal 
Code 5.22.040 and enacting Cordova Municipal Code 5.22.090 K to clarify procedures for 
leasing city-owned school buildings – 1st reading 

 

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 

N. NEW & MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
18. Council approval of Today in America TV show segment……………..…………..…… (voice vote)(page 76) 

19. Council approval of Notice to Proceed for SRTS project…………………………….…. (voice vote)(page 78) 
20. Council decision on property disposal, Lot 6, Block 2 South Fill DP………………….. (voice vote)(page 109) 
21. Council decision on property disposal, Lot 2, Block 3 Cordova Industrial Park…….… (voice vote)(page 134) 
22. Pending Agenda and Calendar……………………………………………………………..…..….. (page 159) 
 

O. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 

P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
23. Council Comments 
 

Q. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
24. Cordova Center Phase I & II Financial Updates 
25. City of Cordova Financial Audit for 2011 
 

R. ADJOURNMENT    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Executive Sessions:  Subjects which may be discussed are:  (1) Matters the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect 
upon the finances of the government; (2) Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person; provided that the person may 

request a public discussion; (3) Matters which by law, municipal charter or code are required to be confidential; (4) Matters involving consideration 
of governmental records that by law are not subject to public disclosure. 

 
If you have a disability that makes it difficult to attend city-sponsored functions,  

you may contact 424-6200 for assistance. 
Full City Council agendas and packets available online at www.cityofcordova.net  



Superintendent’s	Report	to	Cordova	City	Council	October	10,	2012	
Maintenance 

Broken Window Elementary School 
One of the windows in the common area was vandalized sometime between the night on Sep 29 and 
the morning of Sep 30. The new window is being ordered through capitol glass and should be here and 
installed by Nov 1st. 
 
Sewer Clog ILP Building 
There was a massive sewer clog in the new ILP building coming up in the toilet.   The clog was 115’ away 
from the building. All of the evidence suggests that it has been a problem for a while and is just now 
showing up.  That sewer line is something that we will need to keep an eye on to make sure that we 
don’t have an installation problem. 
 
Water Leak Kitchen High School 
When the wind was blowing excessively we were getting water into the kitchen at the High School. All 
the signs show that the water is being forced under the siding. The weather wall is starting to show 
water damage and has a small bug infestation.  
 
Playground Elementary 
The contracted repairs have been approved by the Insurance, but still waiting for underwriting.  North 
Pacific Erectors are moving forward; however, reconstruction of the covered playground will not begin 
until spring of 2013.  The playground equipment has a manufacturing/delivery timeline of @ 60 months, 
but we are working to expedite the timeline to try to have the playground complete by fall of 2013. 
 
Lean‐to High School 
The contracted repairs have been approved by the Insurance, but still waiting for underwriting.  North 
Pacific Erectors are moving forward, and predict that the vocational building at the high school should 
be complete by the end of November. 
 
Elementary Window Leaks 
We have received an estimate for window repairs; however, it is not specific.  We have asked Dar‐Con 
and Capital Glass to prepare a report that includes photographs, perceived problems, and detailed 
solutions.  Capital Glass re‐caulked the windows, to see if that helps; however, we haven’t had much 
rain (ironically) since, so we don’t have anything to report. 
 

Budget 

Please see attached documents.  Local and State contributions based on the State funding template that 
includes recently released property values and a student ADM projected for the 13‐14 school year.   

1



A B C D E F G H I J K L M

UPDATED 11/3/11 D x .00265 E x .45 D x .002 F x .23 Lesser of G or H Greater of I or J K + L

ID District

TOTAL 

ADM

FY2011 

ASSESSED 

VALUES

2012 Basic 

Need

2013 

PROJECTED 

Basic Need 

Column D  x 

.00265
45% of PY  

Basic Need

.002 Mills of 

Current F/V

23% of Basic 

Need

FY13 

REQUIRED 

LOCAL 

EFFORT

Allowable / 

Additional 

Local 

Contribution

Maximum Local 

Contribution
12 Cordova          310.00         267,599,660 4,168,325 4,111,468 709,139         1,875,746      535,199 945,638 709,139 945,638           1,654,777            

G:\DistSup\$04Foundation\Projections\zFY04_ADM_add_on.xls

2



FY13 Projected 100% ISER 13 BSA Amt. 5,680$        

School 

District
PROJECT

ED ADM

PROJEC

TED 

Corresp. 

ADM

FY13 

PROJECTED 

Total ADM

Adj for 

School 

Size ADM

Adjusted IF 

Eligible for 

Hold 

Harmless

District 

Cost 

Factor

Adjusted 

for Cost 

Factor

Special 

Needs 

Factor 

1.20

Vocational & 

Technical 

Factor 1.015

Special 

Education 

Intensive

Adjust 

Intensive 

SPED x 

13.00

Students + 

Intensive 

Special 

Education

District 

Corresp. 

80%

District 

Adjusted 

ADM

BASIC 

NEED

Required 

Local Effort

Federal 

Impact 

AID

Impact 

AID 

Percent

Deductible 

Impact 

AID 90% State AID

Quality 

Schools

FY2013 

PROJECTED 

TOTAL STATE 

ENTITLEMENT

Cordova  310.00 0.00 310.00 447.00 447.00 1.234 551.60 661.92 671.85 4.00 52.00 723.85 0.00 723.85 4,111,468 709,139 14,699 40.31% 5,333 3,396,996 11,582 3,408,578$           

Intensive multiply by >

3



DRAFT 

MINUTES – JOINT WORK SESSION 
SEPTEMBER 05, 2012 

PAGE 1 OF 1 

CITY COUNCIL JOINT WORK SESSION 
WITH THE CORDOVA SCHOOL BOARD 

SEPTEMBER 05, 2012 @ 6:30 PM 
LIBRARY MEETING ROOM  

MINUTES 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor James Kallander called the Council Joint Work Session to order at 6:30 pm on August 2, 2012, in 
the Library Meeting Room. 
 

B. ROLL CALL 
CITY COUNCIL: Present for roll call were Mayor James Kallander and Council members James Kacsh, 
David Allison, Bret Bradford, EJ Cheshier, David Reggiani and Robert Beedle. Council member Tim 

Joyce was present via teleconference. Also present were City Manager Mark Lynch and City Clerk 
Susan Bourgeois. 
 

SCHOOL BOARD: Present for roll call were Board members Pete Hoepfner, Dan Reum and Kate 

Alexander. Board Members Shawn Gilman and Jon Nichols were absent. Also present was 
Superintendent Theresa Keel. 
 

C. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 
1. Audience comments regarding agenda items - none 
 

D. WORK SESSION TOPIC 
2. Discussion of a draft ordinance updating the School Board section of the Cordova Municipal Code 
 Reggiani said that he, Theresa Keel and Mark Lynch had not gotten together since the last work 
session. He said we were down to the last few sections of the ordinance language. Hoepfner said at the 
School Board meeting the ordinance had been discussed and they were fine with the 3.36.080 (A&B). 
 The work continued with discussion on 3.36.080 C. The school district clarified that funding was their 
number one priority and they wanted to ensure that they would not affect funding by collecting on leases. 
They agreed that the City should have the last say on who the buildings are leased to long-term. After 
lengthy back and forth discussion, it was agreed upon to read as follows: “Leases with a term of 30 or 
more consecutive days shall be in accordance with CMC 5.22.”  
 Reggiani thought discussion should turn to maintenance. Kacsh mentioned that he really doesn’t want 
to see a committee. Alexander said there was a facilities committee within the district already – she also 
would not like to see another committee. Hoepfner agreed that it could get accomplished between School 
facilities staff and City facilities staff and he believed that this whole section (3.36.090) is not necessary. 
There was agreement that a preventative maintenance program be instituted for all City buildings. 
 In wrapping up the work session, Mayor Kallander asked John Bitney, City Lobbyist, to talk for a 
minute about his lobbying efforts in Juneau. Bitney explained how when different groups lobby in 
Cordova all the legislators are thinking is Cordova, so how we act and what we say reflects on all of 
Cordova. Mayor Kallander agreed that there needs to be better cooperation between all those who go to 
Juneau lobbying on behalf of the City of Cordova. 
 

E. ADJOURNMENT 
M/Allison S/Reggiani to adjourn the work session  
Hearing no objection the work session was adjourned at 7:29 pm 
 

Approved: October 3, 2012 
 

Attest: ____________________________________ 
           Susan Bourgeois, City Clerk  

4



DRAFT 

MINUTES – COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
SEPTEMBER 19, 2012 
PAGE 1 OF 2 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
SEPTEMBER 19, 2012 @ 6:00 PM 

LIBRARY MEETING ROOM 
MINUTES 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

Vice Mayor David Reggiani called the Council Work Session to order at 6:00 pm on September 19, 
2012 in the Library Meeting Room. 
 

B. ROLL CALL 
Present for roll call were Vice Mayor David Reggiani Council members Tim Joyce, James Kacsh, 
David Allison, EJ Cheshier and Robert Beedle. Mayor James Kallander and Council member Bret 
Bradford were absent. Also present were City Manager Mark Lynch and City Clerk Susan Bourgeois.  
 

C. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 
1. Audience Comments regarding agenda items - none 

 

D. WORK SESSION TOPIC 
 2. Public Works Director, Moe Zamarron, discussion of Public Works Department spending 
Zamarron provided Council with a spreadsheet that summarized the overages within the Public Works 
department divisions over the course of 2012. Moe wanted to clarify that it has been a tough year for the 
divisions as well as the entire City. He went on to explain that we have received many grants but all 
grants (DEC grants) require hefty City matches. 30% is often the required match and 30% of a big 
number is a big number. He said that the 2012 overages are mostly due to the snow but that wasn’t the 
only contributing factor. Some of our equipment has been sorely lacking proper maintenance and in 
water and wastewater we are overspending in order to meet stringent regulations being placed upon us. 
His estimate for the end of year shortage for all divisions within Public Works together is $342,500. He 
believes that within the budget he foresees us having the ability to cover $195,000 of that. Therefore, 
$147,500 would be the more realistic number for a shortage. This is 2012 information. 
 

As far as 2013, he foresees approximately $3.6M in need and low interest loans equaling approximately 
$2.5M of that. Which still leaves a pretty big number for matches for 2013; he understands this will be 
discussed at budget.   
 

He doesn’t expect answers tonight but instead has his full staff here to answer questions of Council so 
this can be understood; i.e. how did we get here.  
 

Reggiani began by asking if these overage amounts are dollars Moe anticipates spending or that has 
already been spent in 2012. Zamarron said that most have already been spent. A few were yet to be 
spent but like the narrow band radios are mandated to be purchased by 2013. Joyce had a specific 
question about “heavy equipment repairs” he wondered if these funds couldn’t be taken from 
deprecation accounts that are already in place; i.e. as long as the repairs would/could prolong the life of 
the piece of equipment. Zamarron said he would look into balances of those accounts. He also has been 
looking into re-outfitting some of our existing pieces of equipment with snow removal capabilities. 
Kacsh said that enterprise funds must carry themselves, i.e. rates to support expenses. The streets 
department on the other hand is a general fund division within Public Works. Cheshier asked about 
loans in place. Zamarron said these low-interest loans are fairly easy to obtain and we are able to de-
obligate and shift them around. We have access to them and don’t pay any interest until we use portions 
of them. Lynch mentioned how some of these expenditure, although unbudgeted were approved by 
Council and so as in the past we will have a budget amendment resolution coming before Council in the 
latter months of the year to capture all of such in one fell swoop. Joyce reiterated and specified that he 

5



DRAFT 

MINUTES – COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
SEPTEMBER 19, 2012 
PAGE 2 OF 2 

thinks at least three of the items listed under Refuse (4. Heavy equipment repairs, 5. Heavy vehicle 
repairs and 6. Baler machine repairs) should be looked at considering the deprecation accounts that have 
been set up and contributed to over the years for funding. That is to say, only if it will extend the life of 
the equipment; not routine maintenance. 
 

E. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION - none 
 

F. COUNCIL COMMENTS  
Beedle thanked Moe for the presentation. 
Cheshier said “ditto”. 
Allison thanked the staff members for coming out to answer questions; he is supportive of the projects. 
Joyce asked Moe to get with Lynch to determine depreciation and whether the equipment is worth 
fixing or not. 
Reggiani also thanked Moe and all the staff for coming. 
 

G.  ADJOURNMENT  
M/Allison S/Kacsh to adjourn  
Hearing no objection the meeting was adjourned at 6:32 
 

 

Approved:  October 17, 2012 
 
 

Attest: ____________________________________ 
            Susan Bourgeois, City Clerk 
  

6



DRAFT 

MINUTES – COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
OCTOBER 03, 2012 
PAGE 1 OF 2 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
OCTOBER 03, 2012 @ 6:30 PM 
LIBRARY MEETING ROOM 

MINUTES 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

Vice Mayor David Reggiani called the Council Work Session to order at 6:53 pm on October 03, 2012 
in the Library Meeting Room. 
 

B. ROLL CALL 
Present for roll call were Vice Mayor David Reggiani and Council members Tim Joyce, James Kacsh 
and EJ Cheshier. Mayor James Kallander was present via teleconference. Council members David 

Allison, Bret Bradford and Robert Beedle were absent. Also present were City Manager Mark Lynch 
and City Clerk Susan Bourgeois.  
 

C. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 
1. Audience Comments regarding agenda items - none 

 

D. WORK SESSION TOPIC 
2.  2013 Budget – Revenue projections/discussion 

Lynch presented revenues to Council and mentioned that in lieu tax payments was budgeted for 2013 at 
$400,000 and that would be the last year for those payments. Lynch also did some digging with Bitney’s 
help on Forest Receipts (Secure Rural Schools Funding) and they determined that this is the last year it 
is authorized (i.e. 2013) and the amount will be 95% of the 2012 amount. That payment comes in 
January so what we received in January of 2012, we should see 95% of that in January of 2013. On his 
worksheet, Lynch said he had those as lower estimates so Council can jot these numbers down. Roads 
should be $93,488 and schools should be $869,679 whereas Lynch had estimated $80,000 and $800,000 
respectively. Lynch moved on to a $400,000 transfer from Permanent fund which is the amount we 
budgeted for 2012 to cover the reorganization of the hospital (i.e. Providence contract, etc.) and it had 
been determined that that was a capital item therefore the transfer from permanent fund to cover it. He 
didn’t know how Council felt about it for the coming year. Last year there was a $400K loan as well as a 
$400K payment - $250K for Providence’s contract and $150K for the salary and benefits of the hospital 
administrator. There was discussion around the table and Council concurred that the $400K transfer 
from Permanent fund should be scratched f it was for operating expenses (i.e. hospital operations and a 
salary). Lynch said he would do so. 
Questions from Council before Lynch got into his sales tax discussion/calculations/estimate: 
Joyce: asked why Planning Department permit fees have gone from $4,500 to $20,000. Lynch said they 
have a job posted presently for a City Building Inspector and the $20,000 is a guess for the revenues that 
will now be captured due to the inspections etc. that he will perform that until now builders have had to 
bring people in from Anchorage to do. 
Kacsh opined that $20K was a high guess for an unknown – he would prefer a low estimate when it 
comes to unknown revenues. Mayor Kallander said that inspections run about $2K + overhead. He is a 
big supporter of this because it is cost-effective for the community. Second, the City will now have 
inspected buildings which are safer and good for the community. He thinks $20K is a reasonable 
number. Reggiani reminded that we typically come back to revenues two or three times during the 
budget process so we can further refine this number. 
 

Sales Tax: Lynch used averages and extrapolated and used prior years back five years and known 
numbers and arrived at a projected amount for 2013 to be $4.456M. Using the same extrapolation, he 
said the 2012 numbers were really close to the actuals. He felt comfortable using $4M as a revenue 

7



DRAFT 

MINUTES – COUNCIL WORK SESSION 
OCTOBER 03, 2012 
PAGE 2 OF 2 

amount for sales tax for 2013. Joyce just wanted to ensure that the 66% increase from 2011 to 2012 was 
not a fluke or an error because of so it would skew the extrapolated amount that Lynch was using for 
2013. Reggiani asked for clarification and if the $1.8M was an actual or an estimate and Lynch said it 
was an actual that was in the books.  
Kacsh went on to say that he opined that $4M was too high of an estimate to use for 2013. He likes to 
base sales tax on prior years fishing and he also thinks there have been big projects that are now 
completed. School projects, Cordova Center Phase I etc. He thinks on an average fishing year not as 
much is spent the following year. Lynch said he budgeted flat. $4M is projected for 2012 and he 
budgeted flat $4M for 2013. Mayor Kallander said that seining may have been an average year but 
gillnetters had an exceptional year (probably an all-time record for revenue) and he thinks fishermen 
spend in the same year they earn in order to get the tax deduction. He is ok with the $4M or they can be 
adjusted down a bit if Council chooses to do so. Reggiani said he agrees $4.5M is way too high and 
$4M that Lynch put in is appropriate. As far as raw fish tax, Lynch said his source at the state said that it 
should be flat and 2013 might be similar to 2012. 
 

E. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION - none 
 

F. COUNCIL COMMENTS - none 
 

G.  ADJOURNMENT  
M/Joyce S/Cheshier to adjourn  
Hearing no objection the meeting was adjourned at 7:25 pm 
 

 

Approved:  October 17, 2012 
 
 

Attest: ____________________________________ 
            Susan Bourgeois, City Clerk 
  

8



DRAFT 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 03, 2012 
PAGE 1 OF 4 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 03, 2012 @ 7:30 PM 
LIBRARY MEETING ROOM  

MINUTES 
 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

Vice Mayor David Reggiani called the Council Regular Meeting to order at 7:30 pm on October 03, 
2012, in the Library Meeting Room. 
 

B. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Vice Mayor David Reggiani led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

C. ROLL CALL 
Present for roll call were Council members Tim Joyce, James Kacsh, David Allison (teleconference), 
EJ Cheshier, and David Reggiani. Mayor James Kallander was also present via teleconference. 
Council members Bret Bradford and Robert Beedle were absent. Also present were City Manager Mark 

Lynch and City Clerk Susan Bourgeois.  
 

D. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA 
M/Cheshier S/Joyce to approve the Regular Agenda. 
Vote on motion: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 2 absent (Bradford, Beedle). Motion passes.  
 

E. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST - none 
 

F. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 
1. Guest Speakers - none 
2. Audience comments regarding agenda items - none 
3. Chairpersons and Representatives of Boards and Commissions 
Cheshier said the HSB just me this evening and they approved the 2013 calendar budget and they will 
bring forward that and the capital budget to Council at their next meeting. 
 

Kacsh mentioned that Parks and Recreation Commission would be meeting on October 9. 
 

Reggiani said that P&Z would be meeting next Tuesday (October 9). 
 

4. Superintendent’s Report 
Theresa Keel was present and asked if there were questions on her written report. She said they were 
still waiting for the results of the window assessment for Mt. Eccles. Reggiani asked if there was any 
info on the broken window at Mt. Eccles. Keel just said that it occurred on Saturday night and they are 
working on getting it replaced and they have a lot of ears out there. Joyce asked about boiler #1. She 
explained that boiler #1 was offline and she doesn’t anticipate ever needing it again. Between the 
waste oil burner and the other smaller boiler there is no need. There should be some energy savings on 
this decision. She will bring a question to her board concerning what to do with boiler #1. Kacsh asked 
about a student council representative. Bourgeois said that she was in touch with the student council 
advisor and a new student should be attending Council meetings again soon. 
 

G. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR  
Vice Mayor Reggiani informed Council that the consent calendar was before them. 
5. Resolution 10-12-44 

A resolution of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, authorizing the City Manager to 
enter into an agreement with Appraisal Company of Alaska for tax year 2013 assessment services in 
the amount of fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000) 

9



DRAFT 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 03, 2012 
PAGE 2 OF 4 

6. Record excused absence of Council member Bret Bradford from 9/19/12 Regular Council Meeting 
Vote on Consent Calendar:  5 yeas, 0 nays, 2 absent (Bradford, Beedle). Joyce-yes; Cheshier-yes; 
Kacsh-yes; Reggiani-yes and Allison-yes. Consent Calendar was approved. 
 

H. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
M/Cheshier S/Joyce to approve the minutes. 
7. Minutes of 09-19-12 City Council Public Hearing 

8. Minutes of 09-19-12 City Council Regular Meeting  
Vote on motion: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 2 absent (Bradford, Beedle). Motion passes.  
 

I. CONSIDERATION OF BIDS - None 
 

J. REPORTS OF OFFICERS 

9. Mayor’s Report 
Mayor Kallander stated that he met with Cathy, Mark, Tim and the Vice Mayor to discuss strategies for 
raising capital for the Civic Center. He also had a good phone call with Theresa Keel about some of 
these issues that are before us concerning the school. He is putting together a trip to DC and Bitney will 
come along. It will be for two days, October 22, 23, he has a place to stay and it will mostly be on his 
nickel. Murkowski’s staff is setting him up to meet with the whole delegation; he will be trying to raise 
capital for the Civic Center. He has spoken with O’Halloran and he will try to get us somehow in the 
transportation bill for the 36 mile bridge project and also recently DoT has lowered the limit on the Eyak 
River Bridge and you’d be hard-pressed to move a piece of heavy equipment over there now. On 
Monday he is meeting with Commissioner Streur and he will explain to him how hard we tried to work 
out a deal regarding Ilanka remaining at the hospital. He will also ask for guidance on obtaining capital 
for electronic health records. Joyce thanked the Mayor and commented that he thinks he’s going down 
the right road. 
 

10. Manager’s Report  
Lynch reported that Council should strike the line in his report that mentions a memo in the packet 
regarding SRTS. He was scrambling at the last minute and neglected to take that out. He intended to try 
to write such a memo. We did have a good meeting, Sam, Moe, Reggiani, Bradford and Theresa, and at 
this point it’s looking positive. The North Fill floating dock is moving along; two piles are in and two 
are being driven. The dock should be in early spring, no later than May 1. 
 

11. City Clerk’s Report – written report in packet  
 

12. Staff Reports – none 
 

K. CORRESPONDENCE  
13. Mayor Kallander letter to Tom Bailer in re Health Care housing 

 

L. ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS  
14. Substitute Ordinance 1098 

An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, adopting Cordova Municipal Code 
3.36.080 and 3.36.090 to clarify the authority and responsibilities of the School Board – 1st reading 

M/Kacsh S/Joyce to adopt Substitute Ordinance 1098 
An ordinance of the City Council of the City of Cordova, Alaska, adopting Cordova Municipal Code 
3.36.080 and 3.36.090 to clarify the authority and responsibilities of the School Board  
 

Reggiani said he and Mark and Theresa had a very productive meeting last week. Insurance was agreed 
upon, the City would provide but the Superintendent would be the designee at the school. Joyce agreed 
that the insurance is most cost-effective to all be under the City due to the savings in paying out 

10



DRAFT 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 03, 2012 
PAGE 3 OF 4 

deductibles (i.e. at School and/or Hospital). Especially, it is appropriate for the Superintendent and 
Hospital administrator to be the designees at those locations. He also didn’t believe it was a bad idea to 
have it in code that the lease income be designated directly for the school district. He said such leasing 
(more than 30 days) needs to go through a public process. Cheshier agreed. Mayor Kallander said he 
agrees with Joyce as well; he said there are differing responsibilities. The Council’s is to all taxpayers 
equally; the School District’s (School Board’s) is to education. He believes the process on leasing the 
school building should go through the School Board, the Planning Commission and then to Council. 
Kacsh said that this needs to be decided when 5.22 comes before us again. He thinks that should happen 
really soon. Reggiani agreed; he thinks 5.22 should now be looked at and that the School Board should 
be the gatekeeper on leases at schools. Joyce said he is in support of this ordinance tonight and would 
also agree that 5.22 should be next. Theresa Keel said her concern now is the timeline of putting leases 
through 5.22 – the process could be very time consuming and she is unsure if the new lease would/could 
be completed timely enough. Reggiani said he would work on 5.22 with the Joyce and Theresa and get 
first reading in the next packet. Joyce opined that the key edit to 5.22 will be the part that speaks to 
where the funds go; presently any City lease payments enter directly into the General Fund. Mayor 
Kallander thanked Theresa and he was glad that the Board realized that there was no public process on 
the initial lease to the PWSCC. He also said that it still sticks in his craw that the School Board’s own 
policy speaks to the need to present a budget to the Council by November 1 yet you and the School 
Board President were adamant to not have that included in this ordinance. Mayor Kallander said that 
having that codified would hold Council’s feet to the fire; i.e. Council would have to act on the School’s 
presented budget within 30 days. Keel clarified that the original ordinance language had much more in it 
than just the November 1 budget deadline, she is not at all opposed to that and in fact is presenting this 
year’s at the October 17 City Council budget work session.  
Vote on motion: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 2 absent (Bradford, Beedle). Motion passes.  
 

M. UNFINISHED BUSINESS - none 
 

N. NEW & MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
15. Pending Agenda and Calendar 
Kacsh asked who would be working on 5.22 – Reggiani said he and Joyce and Keel would ensure they 
would get together and have it ready for the October 17 meeting. 
 

O. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  
Tom Bailer 304 Orca Inlet Drive spoke about the Mayor’s letter of response to him concerning hospital 
housing. He hopes to get the answers to his questions when the research is done. He said that he could 
have said the hospital over $12,000 this past year in housing costs and no one was even interested.  
 

P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
16. Council Comments  
Mayor Kallander thanked the Council for keeping this to a short meeting. 
At 8:20 pm with no objection, Vice Mayor Reggiani said the meeting was in recess to clear the room for 
executive sessions. At 8:30 pm Council came back into session. 
 

Q. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
17. Cordova Center Phase I & II Financial Updates 
M/Joyce S/Kacsh to go into executive session to discuss Cordova Center Phase I & II financial updates, 
which are matters the immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect upon the 
finances of the government. 
Vote on motion: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 2 absent (Bradford, Beedle). Motion passes.  

11



DRAFT 

MINUTES – REGULAR MEETING 
OCTOBER 03, 2012 
PAGE 4 OF 4 

Council entered executive session at 8:30 pm (the City Manager, Cathy Sherman the City Clerk stayed 
for the executive session); Council came out of executive session at 8:47 pm.  
 

18. Personnel matters 
M/Joyce S/Kacsh to go into executive session to discuss personnel matters, which are matters the 
immediate knowledge of which would clearly have an adverse effect upon the finances of the 
government. 
Vote on motion: 5 yeas, 0 nays, 2 absent (Bradford, Beedle). Motion passes.  
 

Council entered executive session at 8:47 pm (the City Manager and the City Clerk stayed for the 
executive session); Council came out of executive session at 9:00 pm.  
 

R.  ADJOURNMENT 
M/Joyce S/Cheshier to adjourn the regular meeting at 9:01 pm 
Hearing no objection the meeting was adjourned.  
 

Approved: October 17, 2012 
 

 
Attest: ____________________________________ 
           Susan Bourgeois, City Clerk  

12



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
October 10, 2012 Manager’s Report (for 10/17/12 Council meeting) 
 
 
Personnel issues: Information Services Director, Facilities Superintendent, and Finance Director positions have 
been advertised. We are also looking to fill a Mechanic and Equipment Operator in Public Works, and a 
Labor/Maintenance position in Parks & Rec. 
 
Safe Routes to School: Memo is in your packet to move the project forward. 
 
Hospital Roof: Construction is under way and still on schedule to have “substantial completion” by October 
23rd. Crews may remain after that to complete flashings, snow guards, etc. 
 
Harbor Study & Boardwalks: I have asked DHI to suspend work on Harbor planning until our new 
Harbormaster is in place. Boardwalk design work continues.  
 
Breakwater/Fill Project: Project underway and on schedule. Should be completed before the end of October. 
 
Science Center Lease/Purchase Negotiation: No new proposals have been received since my last 
communication with them. 
 
School Window Issue: An estimate has been received and our attorney has been asked for a recommendation 
on how to proceed, and is reviewing information. 
 
Shipyard Fill: Permitting work underway by DHI Engineering. 
 
North Fill Floating Dock: Pile installation is complete, and concrete plank replacement should begin soon. The 
ramp will be closed once plank replacement begins. The goal is for the dock to be in place and fully functional 
for the 2013 fishing season (no later than May 1, and sooner if weather allows).  
 
Ambulance Billing: We are waiting for Medicare to send us a billing number before we can proceed.  
 
Samson Lot Swap: Working on electrical portion of move. Samson attorneys are reviewing contract.  
 
South Fill Expansion: We have been negotiating with a facilitator to conduct Public meetings. 
 

CI TY OF CORDOVA 
 

Office of City Manager 

City of Cordova 
602 Railroad Ave. 
P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska  99574 

Phone: (907) 424-6200 
Fax: (907) 424-6000 
Email: 

citymanager@cityofcordova.net 

13



 

 

 

   CITY CLERK’S REPORT TO COUNCIL 

 

October 17, 2012 Regular Council Meeting 

 

Date of Report: October 10, 2012 

 

Things I need feedback on: 

 Nothing at  this t ime 

 

Things I have been working on: 

 Signed paychecks/ other AP checks 

 Prepared agendas and packets for public hearing, regular m tg and work session on October 17, 

2012 

 Responded to varied requests from the public, m ortgage com panies, banks, in re assessed 

values, m ill rates, taxes owing, etc. 

 Hired a new Deputy Clerk – Tina Ham m er began work with the City on October 8 – yea! !  

 Worked with Council member Reggiani on Ordinance 1099 

 Passed on the MOA with DoT for Whitshed Pedest r ian/ Bike pathway to City At torney as was 

directed at  last  Council m eet ing, await ing review from  At torney 

 Began preparat ions for City Assessor visit  in November in re 2013 assessing 

 Spent  the last  week t raining the new Deputy Clerk – she is quickly picking up property tax 

dut ies and is learning how to create agenda packets – welcome Tina Hammer 

 Worked with Senator Gary Stevens office in re his visit  to Cordova October 14 – 16 

 Collected staff quarter ly reports 

 Conferred with at torney in re Code updates while she was here for P&Z t raining 

 Cont inued to act  as regist rar for State Division of Elect ions, sent  in m any regist rat ion 

applicat ions and absentee ballot  applicat ions 

 Advert ised and not iced Council teleconference call with Today in Am erica producers 

 Advert ised and not iced P&Z at torney t raining session on variances 

 Furnished Chief of Police with “Oath of Office”  cards to swear in his three new police officers 

 Responded to Eyak Corporat ion in re SLUP lot  lease informat ion requested  

 

City of Cordova,  
Office of the City Clerk 
Cordova, AK  99574 
602 Railroad Avenue *  PO Box 1210 

Phone:  907.424.6248 

Fax:  907.424.6000 

Cell:  907.253.6248 

E-m ail:  cityclerk@cityofcordova.net  

14



MEMO, City of Cordova 
 
FROM: Ashley Royal, Finance Director 
 
TO:  City Manager, Mayor and City Council 
 
Date:  October 10, 2012 
 
RE:  Monthly Report 
 
I have included the basic budget to actual comparison reports.  Over the next few weeks we will 

be going over the details of each department, division and fund during our budget work sessions. 

 

Although the general fund revenue shows less YTD percentage, compared to annual budget, than 

the expenditures for the same time period, remember that we haven’t yet received the fish tax. 

When that has been received, the revenue compared to YTD expenditures should appear more 

favorable. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by: 
Ashley Royal  
Finance Director, City of Cordova 

15



CITY OF CORDOVA

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE 9 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

September, 2012 YTD ANNUAL REMAINING PCNT

PERIOD ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET YTD/Budget

REVENUE

TAXES 687,376.41 3,843,720.50 5,507,136.66 1,663,416.16 69.8%

LICENSES & PERMITS 60.00 7,755.00 17,800.00 10,045.00 43.6%

OTHER GOVERNMENTAL 294,223.00 1,624,403.14 2,453,553.00 829,149.86 66.2%

LEASES & RENTS 10,585.05 120,864.27 186,050.00 65,185.73 65.0%

LAW ENFORCEMENT 9,834.50 182,821.67 307,234.00 124,412.33 59.5%

D. M. V. 10,937.00 70,763.14 74,500.00 3,736.86 95.0%

PLANNING DEPARTMENT REVENUE 450.00 10,838.70 14,500.00 3,661.30 74.7%

RECREATION DEPT REVENUE 9,587.50 49,690.50 71,900.00 22,209.50 69.1%

POOL REVENUE 1,942.50 6,345.50 23,200.00 16,854.50 27.4%

SALE OF PROPERTY 0.00 2,871.00 9,600.00 6,729.00 29.9%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS IN 37,673.66 739,062.94 852,083.84 113,020.90 86.7%

OTHER REVENUE 320.80 104,921.00 81,146.00 (23,775.00) 129.3%

STATE DEBT SERVICE REIMBURSMEN 0.00 932,894.25 975,707.41 42,813.16 95.6%

Total Revenue 1,062,990.42 7,696,951.61 10,574,410.91 2,877,459.30 72.8%

EXPENDITURES

CITY COUNCIL 221.69 6,904.68 26,150.00 19,245.32 26.4%

CITY CLERK 4,771.94 161,133.50 225,616.00 64,482.50 71.4%

CITY MANAGER 15,343.31 198,534.24 384,638.00 186,103.76 51.6%

FINANCE 15,622.25 260,772.98 358,832.00 98,059.02 72.7%

PLANNING DEPARTMENT EXPENSE 7,718.00 151,870.22 193,564.00 41,693.78 78.5%

DEPTARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICLES 2,736.79 37,235.67 67,072.00 29,836.33 55.5%

LAW ENFORCEMENT 25,848.20 529,888.98 815,460.00 285,571.02 65.0%

JAIL OPERATIONS 7,857.60 136,840.46 200,289.00 63,448.54 68.3%

FIRE & EMS 15,892.31 207,417.91 308,606.00 101,188.09 67.2%

DISASTER MANAGEMENT DEPT. 0.00 0.00 510.00 510.00 0.0%

INFORMATION SERVICES 11,478.88 261,006.93 371,526.00 110,519.07 70.3%

FACILITY UTILITIES 8,058.54 132,577.38 145,500.00 12,922.62 91.1%

PW ADMINISTRATION 4,971.78 87,379.59 105,746.00 18,366.41 82.6%

FACILITY  MAINTENANCE 9,637.11 112,315.46 197,522.00 85,206.54 56.9%

STREET MAINTENANCE 18,823.13 341,795.57 572,912.00 231,116.43 59.7%

SNOW REMOVAL 23,986.44 38,378.60 60,881.00 22,502.40 63.0%

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 9,659.82 177,452.56 274,998.00 97,545.44 64.5%

PARKS MAINTENANCE 4,926.25 73,912.21 100,715.00 26,802.79 73.4%

CEMETERY MAINTENANCE DEPT. 578.22 11,025.65 8,218.00 (2,807.65) 134.2%

RECREATION - BIDARKI 14,775.73 274,969.26 339,175.00 64,205.74 81.1%

POOL 24,451.72 188,606.89 258,059.00 69,452.11 73.1%

SKI HILL 5,270.46 58,394.66 58,400.00 5.34 100.0%

NON-DEPARTMENTAL 44,296.36 333,874.38 342,830.00 8,955.62 97.4%

LONG TERM DEBT SERVICE 138,900.00 1,630,886.16 1,699,076.18 68,190.02 96.0%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT 0.00 749,945.73 749,945.73 0.00 100.0%

TRANSFERS TO OTHER ENTITIES 169,014.17 2,044,094.21 2,328,170.00 284,075.79 87.8%

Total Expenditures 584,840.70 8,207,213.88 10,194,410.91 1,987,197.03 80.5%

Net Rev/Exp General Fund 478,149.72 (510,262.27) 380,000.00 890,262.27

For Administration Use Only, 75% of the fiscal year has elapsed

16



CITY OF CORDOVA

GENERAL FUND

FOR THE 9 MONTHS ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

September, 2012 YTD ANNUAL REMAINING PCNT

PERIOD ACTUAL ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET YTD/Budget

Fund REVENUE

101 GENERAL FUND 1,062,990.42 7,696,951.61 10,574,410.91 2,877,459.30 72.8%

104 CITY PERMANENT FUND 0.00 1,220,488.30 1,110,858.73 (109,629.57) 109.9%

203 FIRE DEPT. VEHICLE ACQUISITION 0.00 0.00 7,050.00 7,050.00 0.0%

205 VEHICLE REMOVAL/IMPOUND FUND 0.00 33,000.00 33,000.00 0.00 100.0%

401 GENERAL PROJ & GRANT ADMN 2,499.99 600,576.15 454,808.00 (145,768.15) 132.1%

410 CHIP SEAL C.I.P. 0.00 111,618.57 261,618.57 150,000.00 42.7%

502 HARBOR ENTERPRISE FUND 115,210.82 912,563.02 1,010,956.14 98,393.12 90.3%

503 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND 58,364.36 500,092.31 627,210.00 127,117.69 79.7%

504 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 53,010.20 556,332.10 675,593.42 119,261.32 82.3%

505 REFUSE ENTERPRISE FUND 74,434.27 641,510.95 852,300.00 210,789.05 75.3%

506 ODIAK CAMPER PARK 27,511.18 51,058.30 53,662.00 2,603.70 95.1%

602 HARBOR & PORT PROJECTS 0.00 124,541.36 1,760,000.00 1,635,458.64 7.1%

603 SEWER PROJECTS 0.00 0.00 113,500.00 113,500.00 0.0%

604 WATER PROJECTS 0.00 100,000.00 201,500.00 101,500.00 49.6%

605 SOLID WASTE PROJECTS 0.00 50,000.00 642,000.00 592,000.00 7.8%

702 HARBOR FUND DEP'N RESERVE 0.00 70,000.00 70,000.00 0.00 100.0%

703 SEWER FUND DEP'N RESERVE 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00 100.0%

704 WATER FUND DEP'N RESERVE 0.00 4,236.25 4,236.25 0.00 100.0%

805 LANDFILL FUND 0.00 50,129.60 50,000.00 (129.60) 100.3%

911 E-911 SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 0.00 17,237.71 50,000.00 32,762.29 34.5%

Total Revenue 1,394,021.24 12,790,336.23 18,602,704.02 5,812,367.79 68.8%

EXPENDITURES

101 GENERAL FUND 584,840.70 8,207,213.88 10,194,410.91 1,987,197.03 80.5%

104 CITY PERMANENT FUND 0.00 945,676.57 945,676.57 0.00 100.0%

205 VEHICLE REMOVAL/IMPOUND FUND 0.00 95.95 0.00 (95.95) No Budget

333 2012 SNOWPOCALYPSE 5,064.97 892,730.90 0.00 (892,730.90) No Budget

401 GENERAL PROJ & GRANT ADMN 64,395.36 436,752.94 504,808.03 68,055.09 86.5%

410 CHIP SEAL C.I.P. 0.00 26,434.15 200,000.00 173,565.85 13.2%

444 SHIPYARD FILL PROJECT 1,831.75 1,831.75 0.00 (1,831.75) No Budget

448 SAWMILL AVENUE TRAIL PROJECT 0.00 1,930.00 0.00 (1,930.00) No Budget

502 HARBOR ENTERPRISE FUND 51,120.80 894,873.36 1,010,956.14 116,082.78 88.5%

503 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND 32,453.74 468,451.20 627,210.00 158,758.80 74.7%

504 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND 41,011.87 537,675.37 675,593.42 137,918.05 79.6%

505 REFUSE ENTERPRISE FUND 84,026.19 737,594.13 831,325.00 93,730.87 88.7%

506 ODIAK CAMPER PARK 4,084.06 33,695.34 53,662.00 19,966.66 62.8%

602 HARBOR & PORT PROJECTS 233,417.00 842,675.81 1,790,000.00 947,324.19 47.1%

603 SEWER PROJECTS 1,689.75 45,562.42 264,000.00 218,437.58 17.3%

604 WATER PROJECTS 13,834.82 49,346.50 252,000.00 202,653.50 19.6%

605 SOLID WASTE PROJECTS 0.00 80,558.60 832,000.00 751,441.40 9.7%

654 LT2 COMPLIANCE PROJECT 28,156.18 47,820.75 0.00 (47,820.75) No Budget

Total Expenditures 1,145,927.19 14,250,919.62 18,181,642.07 3,930,722.45 78.4%

Net Rev/Exp 248,094.05 (1,460,583.39) 421,061.95 1,881,645.34

For Administration Use Only, 75% of the fiscal year has elapsed

17



CORDOVA VOLUNTEER FIRE DEPARTMENT 
Quarterly Report 

 

In the 3rd quarter the Cordova Volunteer Fire Department 
responded to 80 calls for Fire, Rescue and EMS for a total of 457.5 
member hours. Including emergency calls, the volunteers of the 
fire department participated in the regular Thursday night 
meetings, public education and other activities for a total of 1720.5 
member hours. 
 
Additionally the 2010 State Home Land Security (SHSP) Grant for 
a Portable Radio Dispatch Communication Center worth 
$50,000.00 is in town. Chief Griffiths, Chief Hicks, Fire Marshal 
Trumblee went to Training in Anchorage in October and learned 
the function and operate this system, and will train more people on 
the system in the. 
The City of Cordova was awarded $214,000.00 no match Grant 
through the 2012 SHSP Grant, will know more details later this 
month. 
 
Five members of the Fire Dept traveled to Sitka for the Annual 
Alaska State Fire Conference and learned new techniques in the 
fire service.   
 
  
 
Please see attached detail monthly activity sheets attached for more 
information on fire department activities. 
  
 

18



Monthly Activity 7-12 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e

H
o
u
rs

T
o
ta

l 
M

a
n
 H

o
u
rs

Date Thursday Meetings
7/5 15 2 30
7/12 Business Meeting 21 2 42
7/19 Maintenance 13 3 39
7/26 Copper River Seafoods walk-through and Preplan 18 3 54

Total 67 10 165

Date Public Education Taught
7/25 Family Resource Center Teen Camp Visit 1 1.5 1.5

Total 1 1.5 1.5

Date Other Activities
7/20 Emergency Vehicle Operations 10 4 40
7/22 Emergency Vehicle Operations Part 2 12 9.5 114
7/28 Salmon Jam Run 2 6 12
7/28 Ambulance Inventory 1 1.5 1.5

Total 25 21 167.5

Date Fire Runs
7/8 12-37 Vehicle rollover on Cabin Lake Rd. 13 2 26
7/13 12-38 Automated alarm at Orca Adventure Lodge 11 1 11
7/15 12-39 Automated alarm at Trident Seafoods 10 1.5 15
7/15 12-40 Automated alarm at Orca Adventure Lodge 8 1 8
7/20 12-41 Confirmed Fire on Lake Ave. 23 3 69
7/29 12-42 Automated alarm at Ocean Beauty 11 1 11
7/30 12-43 Automated alarm at Orca Adventure Lodge 15 0.5 7.5

Total 91 10 147.5

Substation BBQ

19



Date Amb. Runs
7/2 12-058 2 0.5 1
7/2 12-059 Woman with dizziness 3 1 3
7/2 12-060 Medical transport 3 2 6
7/3 12-061 Possible heart attack 4 1 4
7/4 12-062 Woman that fell 4 1 4
7/7 12-063 4 1 4
7/8 12-064 Medical transport 2 1.5 3
7/8 12-065a Vehicle rollover 4 1.5 6
7/8 12-065b Vehicle rollover 4 1.5 6
7/8 12-065c Vehicle rollover 4 1.5 6
7/8 12-065d Vehicle rollover 4 1.5 6
7/9 12-066 Assualt at the Anchor Bar 4 1 4
7/10 12-067 Man hit with exploding tire 3 1 3
7/10 12-068 Medical transport 3 1 3
7/11 12-069 Man fell in the water 4 2 8
7/14 12-070 Possible Detox patient 3 1 3
7/18 12-071 Medical transport 3 1.5 4.5
7/18 12-072 Head injury 4 1 4
7/20 12-073 Head injury 4 1 4
7/23 12-074 Possible Overdose 5 3 15
7/25 12-075 Medical transport 3 1.5 4.5
7/28 12-076 Man passed out 3 1 3

Total 77 29 105

586.5

Fallen woman who is bleeding and unconscious

Total hours for the month of August

Man fell off a ladder

20



Monthly Activity 8-12 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e

H
o
u
rs

T
o
ta

l 
M

a
n
 H

o
u
rs

Date Thursday Meetings
8/2 21 3 63
8/9 Ambulance inventory 5 2 10
8/9 Business meeting 27 2 54
8/16 Code drills 9 3.5 31.5
8/16 Basic firefighting 19 3 57
8/23 Car fire training 23 4 92
8/30 Training videos 10 2.5 25
8/30 Extrication 20 2.5 50

Total 62 10.5 158.5

Date Public Education Taught

Total 0 0 0

Date Other Activities
8/9 Ambulance inventory 5 2 10
8/10 Driver training hours 1 2 2
8/15 Chili cook-off planning 4 8 32
8/16 Code drills setup 1 2.5 2.5
8/18 Chili cook-off 13 5 65
8/23 Moulage training 5 1.5 7.5
8/25 Car wash 14 8 112
8/28 Driver training hours 1 2.5 2.5

Total 44 31.5 233.5

Date Fire Runs
8/2 12-44 Automated alarm at Ocean Beauty 13 0.5 6.5
8/3 12-45 Automated alarm at Orca Lodge 12 1 12
8/10 12-46 Automated alarm at Trident Seafoods, north pant 14 0.5 7
8/12 12-47 Automated alarm at Trident Seafoods, north pant 10 0.5 5
8/21 12-48 Controlled burn 1 0.5 0.5
8/21 12-49 Elevator fire phone at Sunset View 2 0.5 1
8/28 12-50 Flame coming out of a stove stack 1 0.5 0.5

Total 53 4 32.5

Date Amb. Runs
8/2 12-077 Medical Transport 3 1.5 4.5
8/3 12-078 Medical Transport 4 1.5 6
8/5 12-079 Man that has fallen 4 1 4

Responder Ready class

21



8/5 12-080 Medical Transport 2 1.5 3
8/10 12-081 Medical Transport 2 1.5 3
8/11 12-082 Man vomiting blood 2 1.5 3
8/12 12-083 Medical Transport 2 2 4
8/16 12-084 Medical Transport 4 1 4
8/17 12-085 Woman with chest pain 4 1.5 6
8/17 12-086 Medical Transport 4 1 4
8/18 12-087 Medical Transport 3 1.5 4.5
8/19 12-088 Man fell of the dock 3 1 3
8/19 12-089 Medical Transport 3 2 6
8/21 12-090a Motor vehicle accident 7 1 7
8/21 12-090b Motor vehicle accident 7 1 7
8/21 12-090c Motor vehicle accident 7 1 7
8/21 12-091a Medical Transport 3 1.5 4.5
8/21 12-091b Medical Transport 3 1.5 4.5
8/23 12-092 Man fell 3 0.5 1.5
8/24 12-093 Possible stroke 3 0.5 1.5
8/24 12-094 Medical Transport 2 1 2
8/25 12-095 Medical Transport 3 1 3
8/28 12-096 Medical Transport 3 1.5 4.5
8/28 12-097 Severe pain 3 0.5 1.5
8/28 12-098 Medical Transport 3 1 3
8/28 12-099 Possible intoxicated person 4 1 4
8/30 12-100 Medical Transport 2 1 2
8/30 12-101 Medical Transport 2 1 2
8/31 12-102 Medical Transport 2 1 2

Total 97 34.5 112

536.5Total hours for the month of September

22



Monthly Activity 9-12 A
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e

H
o
u
rs

T
o
ta

l 
M

a
n
 H

o
u
rs

Date Thursday Meetings
9/6 31 3 93
9/13 Business meeting 32 2 64
9/20 Diabetic emergencies 13 1.5 19.5
9/20 Inventory 10 3 30
9/27 SCBA air management 21 3 63

Total 107 12.5 269.5

Date Public Education Taught

Total 0 0 0

Date Other Activities
9/1 MDA fundraiser 10 6 60
9/10 Fittesting 1 3 3
9/17 Explorer meeting 1 1.5 1.5
9/23 Explorer meeting 2 1.5 3
9/17 2012 Alaska State Fire Conference 5 40 200

Total 19 52 267.5

Date Fire Runs
9/3 12-51 Automated Alarm at Trident North Plant 6 0.5 3
9/5 12-52 Service call to residence 1 0.5 0.5
9/7 12-53 Sprinkler malfunction 2 1 2
9/10 12-54 Automated Alarm at Ocean Beauty 6 1 6
9/17 12-55 Automated Alarm at Ocean Beauty 9 0.5 4.5

Total 24 3.5 16

Date Amb. Runs
9/1 12-103 Unresponsive man 4 0.5 2
9/4 12-104 CODE 4 2 8
9/5 12-105 Medical Transport 2 1.5 3
9/14 12-106 Medical Transport 4 1.5 6
9/15 12-107 Woman with numbness in her arms 4 0.5 2
9/15 12-108 Medical Transport 2 1.5 3
9/15 12-109 Woman that has fallen 3 1 3
9/24 12-110 Woman that has fallen 7 1 7
9/24 12-111 Medical Transport 4 1.5 6
9/24 12-112 Medical Transport 3 1.5 4.5

Total 37 12.5 44.5

597.5Total hours for the month of October

HIPPA training

23



Page 1 
 

City of Cordova 
 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
 

3rd Quarter Report 
 

July – August - September 
2012 

 
The Public Works Department is comprised of 6 Divisions. Major activities relating to each of these 
Divisions include the following: 
 

ADMINISTRATION DIVISION 
 

A wide variety of issues came up requiring my attention including, but not limited to, the following: 
 

 Organized grant and loan funding for the various division projects 

 Provided input to the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council concerning lot sales 

 Traveled to New Orleans to attend seminars at the Water Environment Federation Tech show 

 Scheduled expansion plans for the baler facility 

 Assisted the Planning Dept. with reviewing City Code 

 Detailed new direction for LT2 Rule compliance measures 

 Worked with Dee High Consultants on LT2 Rule compliance planning 

 Contracted an engineer to evaluate mezzanine capacities for various City buildings 
 

FACILITIES MAINTENANCE DIVISION 
 
This includes one full time position to conduct building repairs and perform custodial functions.  The 
following buildings are repaired and maintained in whole or in part by this Division. 
 

 City Hall / Police Station 

 Library / Museum 

 Chamber of Commerce 

 Bidarki 

 Pool 

 City Shop 

 Harbor Restrooms (Custodial only) 
 

Daily rounds are conducted of each building to ensure systems are functioning properly.  Often small 
repairs are required such as repairing or replacing hinges, stuck windows, squeaky doors, weather-
stripping, switches, light bulbs, installing signs, painting, etc.  
 
POOL 
 Normal boiler upkeep activities 
  
LIBRARY / MUSEUM 
Made plans to repair water system difficulties 
 
CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 
Nothing to report. 

24



Page 2 
 

 
EYAK WATER TREATMENT PLANT 
 Miscellaneous minor repairs. 
 Contracted for an evaluation of the concrete mezzanine 
 
BIDARKI 
 Nothing to report 
  
WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT 
 Miscellaneous minor repairs.  
 
CITY SHOP 
 Miscellaneous minor repairs.   
 
CUSTODIAL 
Daily cleaning / trash pickup rounds are conducted at the following buildings: 

 Bidarki 

 Harbormaster’s Office 

 Harbor North Restroom 

 City Hall / Police Station 

 Library / Museum / Council Chambers 
 

STREETS DIVISION 
 

A wide variety of issues came up including, but not limited to, the following: 
 

 Continued to reinforce safety awareness and training 

 Continued street repair work and chip sealing as weather allowed 

 Prepared budget planning 

 Continued OSHA compliance measures 

 Coordinated street repair efforts with the highway paving project 
 

REFUSE DIVISION 
 

A wide variety of issues came up including, but not limited to, the following: 
 

 Cleaned up baler and landfill sites in preparation for the DEC inspection visit 

 Continued repairs to the landfill and baler equipment 

 Oversaw baler site paving 
 

WATER & WASTEWATER DIVISION 
 

DAILY WORK DUTIES 
   Water Sources are checked daily/seven days a week for chlorine residual, turbidity, pH, UVT and 

general operations (Orca, Murcheson, & Meals). Three locations within the system are checked daily/ 
five days a week for chlorine residual, turbidity, and general operations (Harbor, Bidarki, & Hospital). 
Morning sewer lifts station checks (Whiskey Ridge, Murcheson, Eyak, Ferry Dock, Morpac, & Main lift 
station (South Second ST.). Operate sludge dewatering system. Make polymer & Cl2 for STP. Deliver 
sludge to 17 mile. Routine lab work & plant maintenance. 

 

25



Page 3 
 

WEEKLY WORK DUTIES 
   Collect bi-weekly coliform samples. Clean the Wastewater Treatment Plant and Lift Stations. Calibrate 

meters/monitoring equipment. Download/transfer all data from all three sources. Test/ check back-up 
generators.  Exercise Micro Screen Drums.  Made/hauled chlorine for Wastewater Treatment Plant’s 
clarifier & heads work to comply with APDES permit. 

 
MONTHLY WORK DUTIES 

   Quality control / Quality assurance for Lab. EPA/DEC wastewater reports, DEC water reports, DEC 
DBP (Disinfection Byproducts Rule) Reports. Read water meters. Deliver shut-off notices, disconnect 
for nonpayment. Collect monthly samples. Backwash filters at Eyak WTP. Check catchments.  Drain, 
Cleaned/Wash Micro Screen Room & chlorine contact chamber, flush hydrants to freshen up water 
mains. 

  
MISCELLANEOUS 

 Performed 42 water sample test for customers (PWSAC, Ocean Beauty, Trident North, & other 
customers).  

 Performed 62 locate, throughout the City limits where water/sewer mains are available. 

 Performed 7 water shut-off/turn on, due to nonpayment, requested by the customers, or emergency shut-
offs. 

 Hauled load of chlorine to Meals WTP 23 times. 

 Installed & removed BFP for HSG 28 times, during the Copper River Highway & Main Street road 
rehab. 

 Collected & shipped out lead & copper samples per ADEC regulations. 

 Troubleshoot water meter at Copper River Seafood.  

 Worked on UVT meter at Meals WTP. 

 Repaired Refuse Facility’s water meter. 

 Repaired water leak at Dog Pound. 

 Trail crew worked/maintained at Orca, Murcheson, Meals, & Heney catchment & trail.   

 Water & trail crew made repairs on Heney water pipe line that was damaged during the heavy snow 
load. 

 Made 3 new hose connection for 4” pump.   

 Responded to HSG’s request to locate water valve box for CTC’s warehouse (No locates were turned 
in). 

 Worked on Murcheson’s chlorine generator. 

 Took mixing zone samples per APDES permit. 

 Worked on Wastewater Treatment Plant’s effluent composite sampler pump & line. 

 Used Vactor to clean Eyak lift station’s wet well, it was full of grease. 

 Worked on Water/Sewer structure on 10,000 ft view map for EPS, who is working on a controls 
proposal. 

 Responded to power outage & cleaned water filters at Murcheson WTP. 

 Power outage killed power to blower room & lab at Wastewater Treatment Plant, called in Paul Cloyd to 
troubleshoot.  Found blown fuse on power contactor that prevents power to blower room & lab.  Power 
restored. 

 Did maintenance on Odiak lift station’s generator. 

 Received new pump & motor for Odiak lift station. 

 Contacted Trident Seafood’s Fish Oil Plant, in regards to making repairs on water meter. 

 Contacted all of the fish processors in regards to water conservation, due to water shortage. 

 Contacted Copper River Seafoods, in regards to replacing water meter (faulty meter). 

26



Page 4 
 

 Did water valve boxes, manholes, & clean outs locates for HSG. 

 Responded to Orca high turbidity alarm. 

 Worked on Eyak lift station’s sump pump. 

 Prep for water service line relocation at Cedar St. 

 Called to high turbidity alarm at Orca. 

 Inspected Murcheson catchment intake for blockage. Blockage cleared. 

 Met with Trevor & Curtis with Electric Power Systems to asses Water / Sewer structures, controls, & 
SCADA. 

 Worked on Murcheson WTP & Cordova Police Department’s lightings. 

 Called out to high turbidity alarm at Orca WTP. 

 Called out to found water valve box on Railroad Avenue by CEC. 

 Did lighting maintenance at Mews booster station. 

 Worked on pool chlorine generator. 

 Made repairs on Meals chlorine injector. 

 Replaced water meter at Copper River Seafoods. 

 Discontinued water loop from Cedar Street & Spruce Street. 

 Responded to possible water leak at Fisherman’s camp.  Found water service valve leaking.  
Maintenance personnel repaired leak. 

 Met Russ & Jason with Electric Power Systems, in regards to radio study of radio communication. 

 Replaced air relief valve at Murcheson chlorine analyzer. 

 Did Wibby’s QA/QC for State lab certification. 

 Norton Corrosion worked on Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

 North Pacific Erector worked on Wastewater Treatment Plant’s shop roof. 

 Glacier Glass replaced on Ford 2000 F250 and F450 windshields. 

 Worked on Murcheson’s chlorine generator. 

 Contacted ADEC in regards to high concentration of lead & copper results, due to resident has been 
unoccupied for several years. 

 Met with Cordova Watershed Project in regards to testing the water on Odiak pond and equipment 
training. 

 Staff meeting at City shop in regards to equipment safety operations. 

 Helped with City building maintenance. 

 Checked on CEC dig on Whitshed & CRH. 

 Did interviews for Sewer/Water Tech, Laborer I or II. 

 Responded to Orca high turbidity alarm & re-checked Murcheson’s chlorine generator. 

 Set up samples for Watershed Project on Odiak pond. 

 Met with Moe in regards to Orca water line support repairs.  Support for the Orca water line is damaged 
& needs to be repaired. 

 Did locate of water & sewer mains near CTC warehouse on Fisherman’s Avenue. 

 Cleaned Ferry Dock liftstation’s wet well, with vactor truck. 

 Installed fire hydrant for upper Spruce St. 

 Responded to Orca high turbidity alarm. 

 Performed locate for sewer manhole, line, and water service line for Samson Tug & Barge (for land 
swap). 

 Took & mailed out TTHMs’ & HAA5s’ samples to MWH for analysis. 

 Performed emergency locate on Adams Street for damaged water line, during sewer addition dig. 

 Unloaded 16 pallet of salt at Murcheson WTP. 

 Vactored sewer main on Adams Street. 

27



Page 5 
 

 Performed maintenance on all chlorine analyzers. 

 Cleaned filter baskets at Murcheson WTP. 

 Cleaned valve boxes for Killer Whale Café’s fire line & service line.  Advised owner to make repair on 
service valve box.  It is rubbing against box wall, making it difficult, or unable operate the valve. 

 Met with State of AK’s Security Vulnerability Assessment team. 

 Replaced blower fan at Odiak lift station’s dry well. 

 Worked on Meals’ chlorine injector pump. 

 Worked on 4” water pump & hoses. 

 Added lime to STP tanks, to raise pH level back up above 6.5 pH. 

 Made repairs on Murcheson chlorine line. 

 Repaired door knob & lock at Meals WTP. 

 Contacted customers delinquent with their water/sewer bill. 

 Called out to Orca high turbidity alarm & Murcheson low chlorine alarm. 

 Made repairs on Alpine Subdivision’s lower hydrant that was damaged by plow, during the heavy snow 
event. 

 Installed new pump & motor at Odiak lift station. 

 Made repairs on main valve on lower Alpine Subdivision. 

 Spoke to Trident’s Electrician in regards to installing water meter for Fish Oil Plant.  Water meter 
installed & back in service. 

 Met with ADEC STP Enforcement for surprise audit. 

 Door hanged Commodore Apartments with shut notice due to non-payment of utility bill.    

 Replaced Meals chlorine room’s exhaust fan. 

 Repaired (straightened) Meals gate & replaced bulk head fitting for chlorine tank. 

 Called out to Murcheson & Orca, for high turbidity alarm. 

 Responded to Wastewater treatment plant due to heavy rain event.  Contacted ADEC in regards to heavy 
rain event (8.87 inches for one day) 

 Located 2006 daily log files, during flooding for Moe. 

 Replace pulsation damper at Meals WTP. 

 Did inspection of Civic Center with contractors. 

 Located & cleaned around fire hydrants around town. 

 Called out to Orca & Murcheson for high turbidity alarm. 

 Watched training videos on loader & grader operations. 

 Added enzymes to Wastewater Treatment Plant’s tanks 1, 2 & digester. 

 Replaced worn out belts on blower # 2 at Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

 Completed 90 day media Quality Control. 

 Flushed fire hydrants on Power Creek Rd, 2nd & Council Ave, and Nicholloff Way & Railroad Ave. 

 Worked on waste oil heater in dewater building. 

 Contacted Gary McDowell in regards to connection permit for Rose Lodge. 

 Checked on customers on Lakeshore Drive trailer court. 

 Contacted McKinley Counter Tops in regards to our counter top order. 

 Worked on HPC SOP. 

 Offered Water /Sewer laborer to Orlando Mapili. 

 Worked on Murcheson’s chlorine tanks leak. 

 Started freshening CT tank for Meals. 

 Worked on Murcheson’s turbidity & tank level with Boreal Controls. 

 Installed/replaced PLC cards for Murcheson’s control panel. 

28



Page 6 
 

 Set up fire hydrant for contractor at Civic Center.  Found fire hydrant on Browning Ave & 1st St broken. 
Was damaged during the heavy snow event.  Fire hydrant repaired, back on-line. 
 

29



2012 3rd Quarter Report from the Cordova Public Library 

During July through September 2012: 

 Visitation:  7689      Circulation:  414     
 Interlibrary Loans:  79     Listen Alaska:  161 
 Internet Use:  1941 sessions    Wifi Use:  1695 sessions 
 Materials Added:  569     Materials Deleted:  1051 

 
 Staff started heavily weeding the VHS cassettes, and the Easy Books.  Aja Ruzumny from 

the Alaska State Library spent a day training the staff about effective weeding of library 
materials.   

 Summer Reading ran from July 11 through August 15.  A report about the program is 
attached. 

 Completed the Alaska State Library Annual Report for 2011. 
 Storytime for Little Ones started on August 22.  It is twice a week and includes reading 

aloud, art and puppets. 
 After school Art started on September 6.  It is also twice a week and students in grades 

3
rd through 6th grade create art projects in many different mediums. 

 Outreach to Senior Citizens started on September 25.  Library materials are being 
brought to CCMC for the residents to enjoy each week. 

 OWL Project computers arrived and will be installed in October.  High speed internet is 
to be provided, and teleconferencing opportunities will be available. 

 Friends of the Library ordered paperback books for the “Trick or Treat for Books” event. 

 

Submitted by Miriam Dunbar, Library Director, Cordova Public Library 

30



Cordova Public Library 2012 Summer Reading Program 

Our  program  occurred  on  Wednesdays  from  11  am  until  1  pm.    Most  of  our 
participants  were  under  7  years  old.    We  usually  read  3  books  related  to  the 
weekly theme, did an art project, and had a prize box for those who were reading 
at home.   For every hour  the child  read  (or was  read  to) he would get a sticker 
and a prize.  Our art projects were well received.  Here are the projects we did: 

Dreams & Wishes—Magic wands with glitter 

Owls‐ Felt owls with wiggly eyes 

Stars & Constellations‐‐ Stars with glitter to put on the library wall 

Moon—Rubbings with oil pastel 

Bats & Nocturnal Animals—Bat ears and wings to wear 

On the  last day we had a party to celebrate the program.   We read books about 
camping  and  ghosts,  played  the  “What’s  Missing?”  game  with  camping 
equipment,  had  a  pretend  fire  with  a  fan  and  tissue  paper  (a  huge  hit),  had 
s’mores that had been made  in a microwave oven, and had a visit from a forest 
ranger who talked about fire safety and Smokey the Bear.  At the end, each child 
got to pick a special prize. 

Children seemed  to enjoy  the program, and several parents  told me  that  it was 
helping their families to do more reading at home.   

Stats: 

33 children signed up for the program. 

19 children attended the end of program party.  

31



2012 Summer Reading Program at the  

Cordova Public Library….Dream Big 

Clockwise from left:  Anna reads about owls,  Ranger Bob 
explains how to have safe campfires, Miriam with everyone 

holding their prizes, and participants enjoy the pretend camp-

32



                                                             
To: City Council, Mark Lynch 
From: Planning Department 
Date:  September    , 2012  
Re: 3rd Quarter Report 

 
The purpose of this report is to summarize the major accomplishments of the Planning 
Department during the 3rd quarter of 2012 from July 1, 2012 to September 30, 2012. 
 

o 23 Building Permits were issued this quarter  
 

o 2 building permits were issued extensions  
 

o Building permits reminders were advertised on KLAM, Cordova Times, and GCI scanner 
 

o Snow load increase was advertised on KLAM, Cordova Times, and GCI scanner 
 

o Code Chapters 8,14 and 16 have been going through editing process and continue to be 
worked on  
 

o Samson Land Swap is moving forward; ROW vacated, utilities being addressed at this 
time and contract is being reviewed by Samson’s lawyer 
 

o Consulting with Profession facilitator to develop contract for the Southfill expansion 
meetings.  Meetings will occur sometime this spring. 
 

o Working with Joanie Behrends on updating the Hazard Mitigation Plan. The State 
requires the plan to be updated every 5 years to be eligible to apply for some grants 
 

o Finalizing Shoreside sale, surveying  and paperwork 
 
 

o Finalizing Heny Court  trailer issue 
 

o Working with Chief Bob on addressing  implementation. 
 

o Issued land use permits, variances and encroachment permits.  
 

o Addressed public questions, concerns and issues as they came up throughout the quarter.  
 

 

Planning Department Memorandum 

33




UBS Financial Services Inc. 
3000 A Street, Suite 100 
Anchorage, Alaska  99503 
 
Anchorage Office 
 
Fax. 907‐261‐5990 
 
www.ubs.com 

 

UBS Financial Services Inc. is a subsidiary of UBS AG 

 

October 5, 2012 
 
 
City Council Members and Staff 
City of Cordova, Alaska 
602 Railroad Avenue 
Cordova, Alaska 99574 
 
Dear Council Members and Staff, 
 

As of September 30, 2012, the City of Cordova has a total of $14,388,985 (including accrued interest), on 
deposit with UBS, distributed among six funded accounts.  Four of these accounts are under active investment 
management, three of which are fixed income accounts managed by Sage Advisors and one Permanent Fund 
account invested in the Pace balanced mutual fund program. The assets under active investment management 
totaled $12,223,581 between these four referenced accounts as of September 30, 2012.  
 
The remaining two accounts, one for the Permanent Fund and one for the Central Treasury, are being utilized 
as cash management accounts with the assets deposited in money market funds. In addition, we added a 
short-term fixed income fund to the Permanent Fund's cash management account with the goal of enhancing 
yield, while evaluating opportunities to invest those assets on a longer-term basis. 
 

Year to date, through September 30, 2012, the net returns for the three Permanent Fund accounts, which 
include a cash management account, has been 5.60%.  The return for the three Central Treasury accounts, 
which consist of only fixed income investments and cash type instruments, was 2.46%. The combined net 
returns year to date for all six accounts held at UBS has been 4.21%. 
 
The balance of the Securities Based Lending credit line currently totals $1,977,952.  
 
The Euro zone debt crisis and a sharp slowdown in China, combined with slow growth in the US, resulted in 
central banks around the globe expanding their balance sheets dramatically in hopes of stimulating economic 
growth.  These actions have helped the combined equity markets in the US and abroad continue the rally 
which started in June. Support levels for the markets continue to hold, at least for now, due to this massive 
global quantitative easing undertaken by the global central banks. In addition, the election in the USA has 
moved to center stage and will dominate the headlines for the next month. I have attached a presentation 
from our Wealth Management Research department, which reviews last quarter's activity and the outlook 
going forward into the fourth quarter of 2012.   
 
In addition to previously referenced presentation, I have attached three performance reports for your review.  
The first is titled COC-Total and reflects the asset allocation and portfolio performance for all six accounts 
combined. This summary report is followed by separate reports for the Permanent Fund and Central Treasury 
accounts. As always, thank you for the opportunity to assist Cordova.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
Buck Adams, CFP®, CIMA®, ChFC® 
Senior Vice President – Investments 
Senior Managed Accounts Consultant. 
 
Attached:  September, 2012 Performance reports Permanent Fund and Central Treasury accounts  
2012 WBS Fourth Quarter Quarterly review and outlook research report. 

34



Prepared for

COC - Central Treasury

Accounts included in this review

Account Name Type

UC 03542 • CT • MAC Wrap

UC 03543 • CT • BSA

UC 04046 • CT • MAC Wrap

What's inside

Executive summary. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

Performance review. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

Performance by account. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

Important information about this report. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

UBS Client Review
As of September 30, 2012

Branch office:

3000 " a" Street

Suite 100

Anchorage, AK 99503-4040

Financial Advisor:

Keystone Wealth Management

907-261-5971

BUCK.ADAMS@UBS.COM

Page 1 of 7

35



Asset allocation summary
Value on Sep 30 ($) % of portfolio

A Cash and cash alternatives 442,222.80 8.77

B Equities 0.00 0.00

C Fixed income 4,598,324.01 91.23

U.S. fixed income 4,514,102.06 89.56

Non U.S. fixed income 84,221.95 1.67

D Alternative strategies 0.00 0.00

E Broad commodities 0.00 0.00

F Real estate 0.00 0.00

G Other 0.00 0.00

Total Portfolio $5,040,546.81 100%
Balanced mutual funds represented in multiple asset classes based on Morningstar allocations

Equity sector analysis

Portfolio does not contain applicable holdings – exhibit

intentionally left blank.

Expected cash flow

Total expected cash flow : $93,953.06
Cash flows displayed account for known events such as maturit ies and mandatory puts.

Credit quality of bond holdings
Value on % of

Insured credit rating Issues Sep 30($) port.

A Aaa/AAA/AAA 32 2,920,052.44 63.55

B Aa/AA/AA 6 109,968.83 2.39

C A/A/A 26 439,897.32 9.51

D Baa/BBB/BBB 28 400,200.30 8.65

E Non-investment grade 0 0.00 0.00

F Certif icate of deposit 0 0.00 0.00

G Not rated 5 728,205.11 15.90

Total 97 $4,598,324.01 100%

Consolidated report prepared for COC - Central Treasury

Executive summary
as of September 30, 2012

Report created on: October 2, 2012 Page 2 of 736



Sources of portfolio value Portfolio value and investment returns
Performance returns (annualized > 1 year)

QTD

Jun 30, 2012 to

Sep 30, 2012

YTD

Dec 31, 2011 to

Sep 30, 2012

2011

Dec 31, 2010 to

Dec 31, 2011

ITD

Sep 17, 2009 to

Sep 30, 2012

Opening value 5,002,602.54 7,570,835.68 7,612,402.78 800,000.00

Net deposits/w ithdrawals -4,897.41 -2,665,557.43 -262,520.75 3,691,277.61

Div./interest income 21,155.08 79,275.18 92,630.50 280,825.81

Change in accr. interest 5,394.56 3,499.24 -8,969.64 12,994.91

Change in market value 31,651.25 67,853.34 137,292.79 270,807.69

Closing value 5,055,906.02 5,055,906.02 7,570,835.68 5,055,906.02

Net Time-weighted ROR 1.07 2.46 3.13 2.93

Net deposits and withdrawals include program and account fees.

Portfolio and selected benchmark returns Time weighted rates of return (net of fees)
Performance returns (annualized > 1 year)

QTD

Jun 30, 2012 to

Sep 30, 2012

YTD

Dec 31, 2011 to

Sep 30, 2012

2011

Dec 31, 2010 to

Dec 31, 2011

ITD

Sep 17, 2009 to

Sep 30, 2012

Your portfolio 1.07% 2.46% 3.13% 2.93%

Cash and Cash Alt

CITI BIG CD 3Mth LOC 0.07 0.26 0.29 N/A

US Treasury Bill - 3 Mos 0.02 0.05 0.07 0.09

Fixed Income

BC Aggregate Bond Index 1.58 3.99 7.84 6.24

BC Govt/Credit - 1-3 Yr 0.52 1.11 1.59 1.99

Equities

S&P 500 6.35 16.44 2.11 12.75

Consolidated report prepared for COC - Central Treasury

Performance review
as of September 30, 2012

Past performance does not guarantee future results and current performance may be low er/higher than past data presented.

Report created on: October 2, 2012 Page 3 of 7

37



Summary of performance by account
Performance returns (annualized > 1 year)

Performance

start date

Value on

Sep 30, 2012 ($)

% of

portfolio

QTD

Jun 30, 2012 to

Sep 30, 2012

YTD

Dec 31, 2011 to

Sep 30, 2012

2011

Dec 31, 2010 to

Dec 31, 2011

ITD

Start date to

Sep 30, 2012

UC 03542 CT • MAC Wrap - SAGE INT FIXED

Risk profile: Conservative

Return objective: Current Income

Nov 5, 2009 1,995,080.69 39.46% Net time-weighted 0.52% 1.63% 5.50% 3.73%

UC 03543 CT • BSA

Risk profile: Conservative

Return objective: Current Income

Sep 17, 2009 256,034.68 5.06% Net time-weighted 0.02% 1.95% 0.12% -9.40%

UC 04046 CT • MAC Wrap - SAGE INT FIXED

Risk profile: Moderate

Return objective: Current Income and Capital Appreciation

Feb 8, 2011 2,804,790.65 55.48% Net time-weighted 1.52% 3.60% N/A 5.63%

Total Portfolio Sep 17, 2009 $5,055,906.02 100% Net time-w eighted 1.07% 2.46% 3.13% 2.93%

QTD YTD 2011 ITD

Jun 30, 2012 to Dec 31, 2011 to Dec 31, 2010 to Sep 17, 2009 to

Benchmarks - Time-w eighted returns Sep 30, 2012 Sep 30, 2012 Dec 31, 2011 Sep 30, 2012

Cash and Cash Alt

CITI BIG CD 3Mth LOC 0.07 % 0.26 % 0.29 % N/A %

US Treasury Bill - 3 Mos 0.02 % 0.05 % 0.07 % 0.09 %

Fixed Income

BC Aggregate Bond Index 1.58 % 3.99 % 7.84 % 6.24 %

BC Govt/Credit - 1-3 Yr 0.52 % 1.11 % 1.59 % 1.99 %

Equities

S&P 500 6.35 % 16.44 % 2.11 % 12.75 %

Consolidated report prepared for COC - Central Treasury

Performance by account
as of September 30, 2012

Past performance does not guarantee future results and current performance may be low er/higher than past data presented.

Report created on: October 2, 2012 Page 4 of 7

38



This section contains important disclosures regarding the
information and valuations presented here. This report
presents information since December 31, 2002. This
report does not include complete account activity or
performance of your accounts before this date. All
information presented is subject to change at any time
and is provided only as of the date indicated. The
information in this report is for informational purposes
only and should not be relied upon as the basis of an
investment or liquidation decision. UBS Financial Services
Inc. accounts statements and official tax documents are
the only off icial record of your accounts and are not
replaced, amended or superseded by any of the
information presented in these reports.

UBS Financial Services Inc. offers a number of
investment advisory programs to clients, acting in our
capacity as an investment adviser, including
comprehensive financial planning, discretionary account
management, non-discretionary investment advisory
programs, and advice on the selection of investment
managers and mutual funds offered through our
investment advisory programs. When we act as your
investment adviser, we will have a written agreement
w ith you expressly acknowledging our investment
advisory relationship w ith you and describing our
obligations to you. At the beginning of our advisory
relationship, we will give you our Form ADV brochure(s)
for the program(s) you selected that provide detailed
information about, among other things, the advisory
services we provide, our fees, our personnel, our other
business activit ies and financial industry aff iliat ions and
conflicts between our interests and your interests.

Please review the report content carefully and contact
your Financial Advisor w ith any questions.

The account list ing may or may not include all of your
accounts w ith UBS Financial Services Inc. The accounts
included in this report are listed under the " Accounts
included in this review” shown on the cover page.

M utual Fund Asset Allocation: If the option to
unbundle balanced mutual funds is selected and if a
fund's holdings data is available, mutual funds will be
classif ied by the asset class, subclass, and style
breakdown of their underlying holdings. Where a
mutual fund or ETF contains equity holdings from
multiple equity sectors, this report w ill proportionately
allocate the underlying holdings of the fund to those
sectors measured as a percentage of the total fund's
asset value as of the date shown.

This information is supplied by Morningstar, Inc. on a
monthly basis to UBS Financial Services, Inc based on
data supplied by the fund which may not be current.

Mutual funds change their portfolio holdings on a
regular (often daily) basis. Accordingly, any analysis that
includes mutual funds may not accurately reflect the
current composit ion of these funds. If a fund's
underlying holding data is not available, it w ill be
classif ied based on its corresponding overall Morningstar
classif ication. All data is as of the date indicated in the
report.

Accrued Interest: Interest that has accumulated
between the most recent payment and the report date
may be reflected in market values for interest bearing
securit ies.

Tax Status: " Taxable" includes all securit ies held in a
taxable account that are subject to federal and/or state
or local taxation. " Tax-exempt" includes all securit ies
held in a taxable account that are exempt from federal,
state and local taxation. " Tax-deferred" includes all
securit ies held in a tax-deferred account, regardless of
the status of the security.

Expected Cash Flow reporting for Puerto Rico
Income Tax Purposes: Expected Cash Flow reporting
may be prepared solely for Puerto Rico income tax
purposes only. If you have received expected cash flow
reporting for Puerto Rico income tax purposes only and
are NOT subject to Puerto Rico income taxes, you have
received this reporting in error and you should contact
your Financial Advisor immediately. Both the Firm and
your Financial Advisor w ill rely solely upon your
representations and will not make the determination of
whether you are subject to Puerto Rico income taxes. If
you have received this reporting and you are NOT
subject to Puerto Rico income taxes, the information
provided in this reporting is inaccurate and should not
be relied upon by you or your advisers. Neither UBS
Financial Services Inc. nor its employees provide tax or
legal advice. You should consult w ith your tax and/or
legal advisors regarding your personal circumstances.

M argin: The quantity value may indicate that all or part
of this posit ion is held on margin or held in the short
account. When an account holds a debit balance, this
debit balance is incorporated into the account's total
market value and deducted from the total value. When
calculating the percent of portfolio on each security, the
percentage will be impacted by the total market value of
the account. Therefore, if the account's market value is
reduced by a debit value of a holding the percent of
portfolio w ill be greater and if the account's market
value is increased by a holding then the percent of
portfolio w ill be less.

Cash: Cash on deposit at UBS Bank USA is protected by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to

$250,000 in principal and accrued interest per depositor
for each ownership type. Deposits made in an
individual's own name, joint name, or individual
retirement account are each held in a separate type of
ownership. Such deposits are not guaranteed by UBS
Financial Services Inc. More information is available
upon request.

Portfolio: Portfolio for purposes of this report is defined
as all the accounts presented on the cover page or the
header of this report and does not necessarily include all
of the client's accounts held at UBS Financial Services
Inc.

Gain/Loss: The gain/loss information may include
calculations based upon non-UBS Financial Services Inc.
cost basis information. The Firm does not independently
verify or guarantee the accuracy or validity of any
information provided by sources other than UBS
Financial Services Inc. In addit ion, if this report contains
posit ions with unavailable cost basis, the gain/(loss) for
these posit ions are excluded in the calculation for the
Gain/(Loss). As a result these figures may not be
accurate and are provided for informational purposes
only. Clients should not rely on this information in
making purchase or sell decisions, for tax purposes or
otherw ise. Rely only on year-end tax forms when
preparing your tax return. See your monthly statement
for addit ional information.

Fixed Income: Fixed income instruments are classif ied
as short term if they have a maturity date less than or
equal to 3 years and intermediate term if they have a
maturity date between 3 to 10 years. Instruments w ith
maturity dates longer than 10 years are classif ied as
long-term instruments. Unclassif ied instruments are
those for which no maturity date is available or
applicable.

Bond: The term " Bond" refers to all f ixed interest
bearing securit ies issued by public and private entit ies
where the issuer owes the holders interest and/or
principal at a specif ied later date. This term does not
include mutual funds. These securit ies are subject to
market risk and interest rate risk. If sold in the secondary
market prior to maturity, investors may experience a
gain or loss depending on interest rates, market
condit ions and the credit quality of the issuer.

Insured/Underlying Rating: Where a rating does not
exist for a particular agency, the report w ill display NR.

Averages: All averages are weighted averages
calculated based on market value of the holding, not
including accrued interest.

Classified Equity: Classif ied equit ies are defined as
those equit ies for which the firm can confirm the
specif ic industry and sector of the underlying equity
instrument.

Equity: The Growth, Value and Core labels are
determined by Standard and Poor's using a
price-to-book ratio methodology. The Growth, Value
and Core labels are based on how a company's
price-to-book ratio compares to the median
price-to-book ratio for its industry based on the
company's assigned Industry Sector. If the company's
ratio is greater than or equal to the industry median, it is
classif ied as a growth stock. If the company's ratio is less
than the industry median, it is classif ied as a value stock.
If a security includes both growth and value attributes, it
is classif ied as a core stock. If price-to-book is not
available or the industry's median is not available, this
item will be Unclassif ied.

Capitalization: Market Capitalization is defined as the
number of shares outstanding times the market value.
Equity securit ies are classif ied as Large Cap if they have
a capitalization of 8 billion or above. Securit ies w ith
capitalization between 1.8 and 7.9 billion are classif ied
as M id Cap. Securit ies w ith capitalization below 1.79
billion are classif ied as Small Cap. Unclassif ied securit ies
are those for which no capitalization is available or
applicable.

Equity: This analysis may include a variety of accounts,
each with different investment and risk parameters. As a
result, the overweighting or underweighting in a
particular sector or asset class should not be viewed as
an isolated factor in making investment/liquidation
decisions; but should be assessed on an account by
account basis to determine the overall impact on the
account's portfolio.

Cash Flow : This Cash Flow analysis is based on the
historical dividend, coupon and interest payments you
have received as of the Record Date in connection with
the securit ies listed and assumes that you will continue
to hold the securit ies for the periods for which cash
flows are projected. The attached may or may not
include principal paybacks for the securit ies listed. These
potential cash flows are subject to change due to a
variety of reasons, including but not limited to,
contractual provisions, changes in corporate policies,
changes in the value of the underlying securit ies and
interest rate fluctuations. The effect of a call on any
security(s) and the consequential impact on its potential
cash flow(s) is not reflected in this report. Payments that
occur in the same month in which the report is
generated -- but prior to the report run (" As of" ) date --
are not reflected in this report. In determining the

Disclosures applicable to accounts at UBS Financial Services Inc.

Report created on: October 2, 2012 Page 5 of 7

39



potential cash flows, UBS Financial Services Inc. relies on
information obtained from third party services it believes
to be reliable. UBS Financial Services Inc. does not
independently verify or guarantee the accuracy or
validity of any information provided by third parties.
Although UBS Financial Services Inc. generally updates
this information as it is received, the Firm does not
provide any assurances that the information listed is
accurate as of the Record Date. Cash flows for
mortgage-backed, asset-backed, factored, and other
pass-through securit ies are based on the assumptions
that the current face amount, principal pay-down,
interest payment and payment frequency remain
constant. Calculations may include principal payments,
are intended to be an estimate of future projected
interest cash flows and do not in any way guarantee
accuracy. Mortgage-backed, asset-backed, factored, and
other pass-through securit ies have dynamic cash flows
which may vary from month to month.

Income: The Estimated Annual Income is the annualized
year to date per share dividends paid and multiplied by
the quantity of shares held in the selected account(s).

Investment Grades: This report may designate a
security as a high yield fixed income security even
though one or more rating agencies rate the security as
an investment grade security. Further, this report may
incorporate a rating that is no longer current w ith the
rating agency. For more information about the rating for
any high yield fixed income security, or to consider
whether to hold or sell a high yield fixed income
security, please contact your financial advisor or
representative and do not make any investment decision
based on this report.

Gain/Loss reporting for Puerto Rico Income Tax
Purposes: Gain/(Loss) reporting may be prepared solely
for Puerto Rico income tax purposes only. If you have
received gain/(loss) reporting for Puerto Rico income tax
purposes only and are NOT subject to Puerto Rico
income taxes, you have received this reporting in error
and you should contact your Financial Advisor
immediately. Pursuant to the Puerto Rico Internal
Revenue Code (PRIRC) long-term capital gains are
derived from the sale or exchange of capital assets held
longer than six (6) months. For the purposes of this
report only, long term gains and losses are represented
by assets held for a period of more than six (6) months.
Both the Firm and your Financial Advisor w ill rely solely
upon your representations and will not make the
determination of whether you are subject to Puerto Rico
income taxes. If you have received this reporting and
you are NOT subject to Puerto Rico income taxes, the
information provided in this reporting is inaccurate and
should not be relied upon by you or your advisers for
purposes other than determining realized gain/loss for

Puerto Rico income tax purposes. Neither UBS Financial
Services Inc. nor its employees provide tax or legal
advice. You should consult w ith your tax and/or legal
advisors regarding your personal circumstances.

Pricing: All securit ies are priced using the closing price
reported on the last business day preceding the date of
this report. Every reasonable attempt has been made to
accurately price securit ies; however, we make no
warranty w ith respect to any security's price. Please refer
to the back of the first page of your UBS Financial
Services Inc. accounts statement for important
information regarding the pricing used for certain types
of securit ies, the sources of pricing data and other
qualif ications concerning the pricing of securit ies. To
determine the value of securit ies in your account, we
generally rely on third party quotation services. If a price
is unavailable or believed to be unreliable, we may
determine the price in good faith and may use other
sources such as the last recorded transaction. When
securit ies are held at another custodian or if you hold
illiquid or restricted securit ies for which there is no
published price, we will generally rely on the value
provided by the custodian or issuer of that security.

Indexing: For comparison purposes we have used up to
five general broad market indices. These indices were
selected to demonstrate the performance of broad
market indicators that are readily recognized rather than
for direct performance comparisons against the
accounts listed. Depending on the composit ion of your
portfolio and your investment objectives, these indices
may not be an appropriate measure for comparison
purposes and as such, are presented for illustration only.
Generally, these indices, such as the S&P 500 index,
assume no management, custody, transaction or other
expenses, and assume reinvestment of dividends and
capital gains. As a consequence, performance of
selected indices may be more or less volatile than any
accounts used in this report. The past performance of
the indices is not a guarantee of future results.
Represented in this report are: U.S. Treasury Bill (USTB) -
which represents the 3 month return for Treasury Bills
issued by the United States Government; the Barclays
Capital Aggregate Bond Index (LBAG) - which is
composed of securit ies from Barclays Capital
government/corporate bond index, mortgage-backed
securit ies index, and the asset-backed securit ies index.
Total return comprises price appreciation/depreciation
and income as a percentage of the original investment.
This index is rebalanced monthly by market
capitalization; the S&P 500 (SP500) index - which covers
500 industrial, utility, transportation, and financial
companies of the U.S. markets (mostly NYSE issues). The
index represents about 75% of NYSE market
capitalization and 30% of NYSE issues. It is a
capitalization-weighted index calculated on a total

return basis w ithout dividends reinvested. If benchmark
information is not available at the time this report was
run, NA will be displayed. We reserve the right to
substitute indices or display only those indices for which
current updated information is available in order to
ensure the accuracy and completeness of these reports.

CITI BIG CD 3M th LOC: Citigroup BIG CD (3 M) (LOC)

BC Govt/Credit - 1-3 Yr: (LBGC1) Measure of

corporate and non-corporate fixed income securit ies

that are rated investment grade and have 1-3 years to

final maturity.

Index Volatility: Performance of certain indices may be
presented in comparison to account information.
Generally, these indices, such as the S&P 500 Index,
assume no management, custody, transaction or other
expenses, and assume reinvestment of dividends and
capital gains. In addit ion, these indices may have been
selected to demonstrate the performance of broad
market indicators that are readily recognized rather than
for direct performance comparisons against the
accounts shown on the report. As a consequence,
performance of selected indices may be more or less
volatile than any account or accounts and comparative
value may be minimal. The use of any market index
(such as the S&P 500) in this report is intended for
illustrative purposes only as a general reference to a
broad market, and not as an accurate performance
comparison. Certain accounts consolidated on this
report may have separate performance monitors
designed to accurately reflect performance.

Annualized Performance: All performance periods
greater than one year are calculated (unless otherw ise
stated) on an annualized basis, which represents the
return on an investment multiplied or divided to give a
comparable one year return.

Fees: Fees represented in this report include program
and wrap fees. Program and wrap fees prior to October
1, 2010 for accounts that are billed separately via
invoice through a separate account billing arrangement
are not included in this report. Commissions are not
included in the fees calculation.

Performance: This report presents accounts activity and
performance starting December 31, 2002. For accounts
opened prior to 12/31/02, this report does not include
the complete accounts activity or performance of your
accounts prior to that date. Information for accounts
opened after 12/31/02 is reported as of the month end
date of the first month of activity in the accounts. For
consolidated reports the Performance Start Date w ill be
the earliest performance start date of any of the
individual accounts selected for the consolidation time

period. If an individual account's performance
information is not available for a full reporting time
period (month to date, quarter to date, year to date or
performance to date), the individual's net of fee time
weighted return w ill not be displayed. For consolidated
accounts that include different account Performance
Start Dates, the consolidated Addit ions/Withdrawals,
Income Earned and Investment Appreciation/
Depreciation will include all activity that occurred during
the consolidated reporting time period. Accounts that
hold or held insurance products w ill be reported on
from the month end date of when insurance and
annuity activity could be obtained from the carrier.

Client Accounts: This report includes all assets in the
accounts listed and may include eligible and ineligible
assets in a fee-based program. Since ineligible assets are
not considered fee-based program assets, the inclusion
of such securit ies w ill distort the actual performance of
your accounts and does not reflect the performance of
your accounts in the fee-based program. As a result,
the performance reflected in this report can vary
substantially from the individual account
performance reflected in the performance reports
provided to you as part of those programs. For
fee-based programs, fees are charged on the market
value of eligible assets in the accounts and assessed
quarterly in advance, prorated according to the number
of calendar days in the billing period. When shown on a
report, the risk profile and return objectives describe
your overall goals for these accounts. For each account
you maintain, you choose one return objective and a
primary risk profile. If you have questions regarding
these objectives or w ish to change them, please contact
your Financial Advisor to update your accounts records.

Net Deposits/Withdraw als: When shown on a report,
this information represents the net value of all cash and
securit ies contributions and withdrawals, program fees
(including wrap fees) and other fees added to or
subtracted from your accounts from the first day to the
last day of the period. When fees are shown separately,
net deposits / w ithdrawals does not include program
fees (including wrap fees). When investment return is
displayed net deposits / w ithdrawals does not include
program fees (including wrap fees). For security
contributions and withdrawals, securit ies are calculated
using the end of day UBS Financial Services Inc. price on
the day securit ies are delivered in or out of the accounts.
Wrap fees will be included in this calculation except
when paid via an invoice or through a separate accounts
billing arrangement.

Dividends/ Interest: Dividend and interest earned,
when shown on a report, this information does not
reflect your account's tax status or reporting
requirements. Use only off icial tax reporting documents

Disclosures applicable to accounts at UBS Financial Services Inc. (continued)

Report created on: October 2, 2012 Page 6 of 7

40



(i.e.1099) for tax reporting purposes. The classif ication
of private investment distributions can only be
determined by referring to the official year-end
tax-reporting document provided by the issuer.

Accruals: When shown on a report, this information
represents the difference between the accrued interest
at the beginning of the period from the accrued interest
at the end of the period.

Change in market value (Investment
appreciation/depreciation): Represents the change in
value of the portfolio during the reporting period,
excluding addit ions/w ithdrawals, dividend and interest
income earned and accrued interest.

M arket Value: When shown on a report, represents
the total value at the end of the performance period
minus total security value at the beginning of the
performance period.

Time-w eighted Returns: This report displays a time
weighted rate of return, a methodology that calculates a
portfolio's return by linking equal-weighted monthly
returns together. The monthly return is calculated using
the Modif ied Dietz formula. This calculation uses the
beginning and ending portfolio values for the month
and weighs each contribution/w ithdrawal by the
amount of t ime invested.

M oney-w eighted Returns: Money-weighted return is
a measure of the rate of return for an asset or portfolio
of assets. It is calculated by finding the rate of return
that w ill set the present values of all cash flows and
terminal values equal to the value of all cash flows and
terminal values equal to the value of the init ial
investment. Money-weighted rate of return incorporates
the size and timing of cash flows, so it is an effective
measure for returns on a portfolio.

Net of Fees: The information is shown net of fees and
commission charges to your accounts for the time
period shown. For example, if your accounts are
charged an asset based fee during the month the report
is produced, performance information would reflect
deduction of those fees. Please see your program
documents regarding fee schedules.

Net of Fees and Gross of Fees Returns: Performance
is presented on a " net of fees" and " gross of fees"
basis, where indicated. Net returns do not reflect
Program and wrap fees prior to October 1, 2010 for
accounts that are billed separately via invoice through a
separate account billing arrangement. Gross returns do
not reflect the deduction of fees, commissions or other
charges. The payment of actual fees and expenses will
reduce a client's return. The compound effect of such

fees and expenses should be considered when review ing
returns. For example, the net effect of the deduction of
fees on annualized performance, including the
compounded effect over time, is determined by the
relative size of the fee and the account's investment
performance.

Performance Start Date Changes: The Performance
Start Date for accounts marked with a '^ ' have
changed. Performance figures of an account w ith a
changed Performance Start Date may not include the
entire history of the account. The new Performance
Start Date w ill generate performance returns and activity
information for a shorter period than is available at UBS
Financial Services Inc. As a result, the overall
performance of these accounts may generate better
performance than the period of t ime that would be
included if the report used the inception date of the
account. UBS Financial Services Inc. recommends
review ing performance reports that use the inception
date of the account because reports w ith longer time
frames are usually more helpful when evaluating
investment programs and strategies. Performance
reports may include accounts w ith inception dates that
precede the new Performance Start Date and will show
performance and activity information from the earliest
available inception date.

The change in Performance Start Date may be the result
of a performance gap due to a zero-balance that
prevents the calculation of continuous returns from the
inception of the account. The Performance Start Date
may also change if an account has failed one of our
performance data integrity tests. In such instances, the
account w ill be labeled as 'Review Required' and
performance prior to that failure w ill be restricted.
Finally, the Performance Start Date w ill change if you
have explicit ly requested a performance restart. Please
contact your Financial Advisor for addit ional details
regarding your new Performance Start Date.

Closed Accounts: Accounts that have been closed may
be included in the consolidated performance report.
When closed accounts are included in the consolidated
report, the performance report w ill only include
information for the time period the account was active
during the consolidated performance reporting time
period.

Important information for former Piper Jaffray
clients: As an accommodation to former Piper Jaffray
clients, these reports include performance history for
their Piper Jaffray accounts prior to August 12, 2006,
the date Piper Jaffray accounts were converted to UBS
Financial Services. UBS Financial Services has not
independently verif ied this information nor do we make
any representations or warranties as to the accuracy or

completeness of that information and will not be liable
to you if any such information is unavailable, delayed or
inaccurate.

Important information for former M cDonald
Investments clients: As an accommodation to former
McDonald Investments clients, these reports include
performance history for their McDonald Investments
accounts prior to February 9, 2007, the date McDonald
Investments accounts were converted to UBS Financial
Services. UBS Financial Services has not independently
verif ied this information nor do we make any
representations or warranties as to the accuracy or
completeness of that information and will not be liable
to you if any such information is unavailable, delayed or
inaccurate.

For insurance, annuit ies, and 529 Plans, UBS Financial
Services, Inc. relies on information obtained from third
party services it believes to be reliable. UBS Financial
Services, Inc. does not independently verify or guarantee
the accuracy or validity of any information provided by
third parties. Information for insurance, annuit ies, and
529 Plans that has been provided by a third party service
may not reflect the quantity and market value as of the
previous business day. When available, an " as of" date
is included in the description.

Custom Time Periods: If represented on this report,
the performance start date and the performance end
date have been selected by your Financial Advisor in
order to provide performance and account activity
information for your account for the specif ied period of
t ime only. As a result only a portion of your account's
activity and performance information is presented in the
performance report, and, therefore, presents a distorted
representation of your account's activity and
performance.

Investors outside the U.S. are subject to securit ies and
tax regulations within their applicable jurisdiction that
are not addressed in this report. Nothing in this report
shall be construed to be a solicitation to buy or offer to
sell any security, product or service to any non-U.S.
investor, nor shall any such security, product or service
be solicited, offered or sold in any jurisdiction where
such activity would be contrary to the securit ies laws or
other local laws and regulations or would subject UBS to
any registration requirement w ithin such jurisdiction.

©2012 UBS Financial Services Inc. All Rights Reserved.
Member SIPC.

Disclosures applicable to accounts at UBS Financial Services Inc. (continued)

Report created on: October 2, 2012 Page 7 of 7

41



Prepared for

COC - Permanent Fund

Accounts included in this review

Account Name Type

UC 03544 • PF • BSA

UC 03546 • PF • MAC Wrap

UC 04047 • PF • Pace Multi Advisor

What's inside

Executive summary. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

Performance review. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

Performance by account. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

Important information about this report. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5

UBS Client Review
As of September 30, 2012

Branch office:

3000 " a" Street

Suite 100

Anchorage, AK 99503-4040

Financial Advisor:

Keystone Wealth Management

907-261-5971

BUCK.ADAMS@UBS.COM

Page 1 of 7

42



Asset allocation summary
Value on Sep 30 ($) % of portfolio

A Cash and cash alternatives 296,808.07 3.19

B Equities 2,853,002.56 30.62

U.S. equity 2,139,498.99 22.96

Non U.S. equity 494,161.18 5.30

Global equity 219,342.40 2.35

C Fixed income 5,717,368.43 61.36

U.S. fixed income 5,339,521.32 57.31

Non U.S. fixed income 105,253.39 1.13

Global f ixed income 272,593.71 2.93

D Alternative strategies 228,092.62 2.45

E Broad commodities 181,527.87 1.95

F Real estate 0.00 0.00

G Other 40,792.06 0.44

Total Portfolio $9,317,591.61 100%
Balanced mutual funds represented in multiple asset classes based on Morningstar allocations

Equity sector analysis
Value on

Sep 30 ($)

% of

equity

A Consumer discretionary 350,380.95 12.28

B Energy 90,670.50 3.18

C Finance 635,561.53 22.28

D Health care 285,137.19 9.99

E Industrials 409,179.08 14.34

F Materials 79,529.37 2.79

G Staples 305,289.97 10.70

H Technology 385,425.40 13.51

I Telecommunications 91,302.67 3.20

J Utilit ies 220,525.90 7.73

K Unclassif ied securit ies 0.00 0.00

Total equity $2,853,002.56 100%
Balanced mutual funds represented in multiple asset classes based on Morningstar allocations

Expected cash flow

Total expected cash flow : $165,750.27
Cash flows displayed account for known events such as maturit ies and mandatory puts.

Credit quality of bond holdings
Value on % of

Insured credit rating Issues Sep 30($) port.

A Aaa/AAA/AAA 25 1,150,160.73 40.23

B Aa/AA/AA 6 115,231.48 4.03

C A/A/A 25 485,148.40 16.85

D Baa/BBB/BBB 28 438,540.05 15.23

E Non-investment grade 0 0.00 0.00

F Certif icate of deposit 0 0.00 0.00

G Not rated 5 674,409.51 23.66

Total 89 $2,863,490.17 100%

Consolidated report prepared for COC - Permanent Fund

Executive summary
as of September 30, 2012

Report created on: October 2, 2012 Page 2 of 743



Sources of portfolio value Portfolio value and investment returns
Performance returns (annualized > 1 year)

QTD

Jun 30, 2012 to

Sep 30, 2012

YTD

Dec 31, 2011 to

Sep 30, 2012

2011

Dec 31, 2010 to

Dec 31, 2011

ITD

Sep 21, 2009 to

Sep 30, 2012

Opening value 9,099,918.73 8,838,201.86 8,044,831.22 1,250,948.90

Net deposits/w ithdrawals -15,074.04 -44,560.45 842,497.01 7,196,607.44

Div./interest income 27,449.14 89,646.40 189,371.45 451,757.89

Change in accr. interest 2,343.03 -1,478.76 550.75 16,537.45

Change in market value 218,442.72 451,270.52 -239,048.57 417,227.89

Closing value 9,333,079.57 9,333,079.57 8,838,201.86 9,333,079.57

Net Time-weighted ROR 2.56 5.60 -1.41 2.58

Net deposits and withdrawals include program and account fees.

Portfolio and selected benchmark returns Time weighted rates of return (net of fees)
Performance returns (annualized > 1 year)

QTD

Jun 30, 2012 to

Sep 30, 2012

YTD

Dec 31, 2011 to

Sep 30, 2012

2011

Dec 31, 2010 to

Dec 31, 2011

ITD

Sep 21, 2009 to

Sep 30, 2012

Your portfolio 2.56% 5.60% -1.41% 2.58%

Cash and Cash Alt

US Treasury Bill - 3 Mos 0.02 0.05 0.07 0.09

Fixed Income

BC Aggregate Bond Index 1.58 3.99 7.84 6.36

Equities

MSCI AC World ex-US 7.49 10.86 -13.33 3.66

Russell 2000 5.25 14.23 -4.18 12.17

S&P 500 6.35 16.44 2.11 12.83

Consolidated report prepared for COC - Permanent Fund

Performance review
as of September 30, 2012

Past performance does not guarantee future results and current performance may be low er/higher than past data presented.

Report created on: October 2, 2012 Page 3 of 7

44



Summary of performance by account
Performance returns (annualized > 1 year)

Performance

start date

Value on

Sep 30, 2012 ($)

% of

portfolio

QTD

Jun 30, 2012 to

Sep 30, 2012

YTD

Dec 31, 2011 to

Sep 30, 2012

2011

Dec 31, 2010 to

Dec 31, 2011

ITD

Start date to

Sep 30, 2012

UC 03544 PF • BSA

Risk profile: Conservative

Return objective: Current Income

Sep 21, 2009 1,909,368.30 20.46% Net time-weighted 0.42% 0.49% 0.11% -3.84%

UC 03546 PF • MAC Wrap - SAGE INT FIXED

Risk profile: Conservative

Return objective: Current Income

Nov 5, 2009 2,972,553.80 31.85% Net time-weighted 1.39% 3.40% 4.12% 4.01%

UC 04047 PF • Pace Multi Advisor

Risk profile: Aggressive/Speculative

Return objective: Capital Appreciation

Dec 23, 2010 4,451,157.47 47.69% Net time-weighted 4.32% 9.54% -5.20% 2.37%

Total Portfolio Sep 21, 2009 $9,333,079.57 100% Net time-w eighted 2.56% 5.60% -1.41% 2.58%

QTD YTD 2011 ITD

Jun 30, 2012 to Dec 31, 2011 to Dec 31, 2010 to Sep 21, 2009 to

Benchmarks - Time-w eighted returns Sep 30, 2012 Sep 30, 2012 Dec 31, 2011 Sep 30, 2012

Cash and Cash Alt

US Treasury Bill - 3 Mos 0.02 % 0.05 % 0.07 % 0.09 %

Fixed Income

BC Aggregate Bond Index 1.58 % 3.99 % 7.84 % 6.36 %

Equities

MSCI AC World ex-US 7.49 % 10.86 % -13.33 % 3.66 %

Russell 2000 5.25 % 14.23 % -4.18 % 12.17 %

S&P 500 6.35 % 16.44 % 2.11 % 12.83 %

Consolidated report prepared for COC - Permanent Fund

Performance by account
as of September 30, 2012

Past performance does not guarantee future results and current performance may be low er/higher than past data presented.

Report created on: October 2, 2012 Page 4 of 7

45



This section contains important disclosures regarding the
information and valuations presented here. This report
presents information since December 31, 2002. This
report does not include complete account activity or
performance of your accounts before this date. All
information presented is subject to change at any time
and is provided only as of the date indicated. The
information in this report is for informational purposes
only and should not be relied upon as the basis of an
investment or liquidation decision. UBS Financial Services
Inc. accounts statements and official tax documents are
the only off icial record of your accounts and are not
replaced, amended or superseded by any of the
information presented in these reports.

UBS Financial Services Inc. offers a number of
investment advisory programs to clients, acting in our
capacity as an investment adviser, including
comprehensive financial planning, discretionary account
management, non-discretionary investment advisory
programs, and advice on the selection of investment
managers and mutual funds offered through our
investment advisory programs. When we act as your
investment adviser, we will have a written agreement
w ith you expressly acknowledging our investment
advisory relationship w ith you and describing our
obligations to you. At the beginning of our advisory
relationship, we will give you our Form ADV brochure(s)
for the program(s) you selected that provide detailed
information about, among other things, the advisory
services we provide, our fees, our personnel, our other
business activit ies and financial industry aff iliat ions and
conflicts between our interests and your interests.

Please review the report content carefully and contact
your Financial Advisor w ith any questions.

The account list ing may or may not include all of your
accounts w ith UBS Financial Services Inc. The accounts
included in this report are listed under the " Accounts
included in this review” shown on the cover page.

M utual Fund Asset Allocation: If the option to
unbundle balanced mutual funds is selected and if a
fund's holdings data is available, mutual funds will be
classif ied by the asset class, subclass, and style
breakdown of their underlying holdings. Where a
mutual fund or ETF contains equity holdings from
multiple equity sectors, this report w ill proportionately
allocate the underlying holdings of the fund to those
sectors measured as a percentage of the total fund's
asset value as of the date shown.

This information is supplied by Morningstar, Inc. on a
monthly basis to UBS Financial Services, Inc based on
data supplied by the fund which may not be current.

Mutual funds change their portfolio holdings on a
regular (often daily) basis. Accordingly, any analysis that
includes mutual funds may not accurately reflect the
current composit ion of these funds. If a fund's
underlying holding data is not available, it w ill be
classif ied based on its corresponding overall Morningstar
classif ication. All data is as of the date indicated in the
report.

Accrued Interest: Interest that has accumulated
between the most recent payment and the report date
may be reflected in market values for interest bearing
securit ies.

Tax Status: " Taxable" includes all securit ies held in a
taxable account that are subject to federal and/or state
or local taxation. " Tax-exempt" includes all securit ies
held in a taxable account that are exempt from federal,
state and local taxation. " Tax-deferred" includes all
securit ies held in a tax-deferred account, regardless of
the status of the security.

Expected Cash Flow reporting for Puerto Rico
Income Tax Purposes: Expected Cash Flow reporting
may be prepared solely for Puerto Rico income tax
purposes only. If you have received expected cash flow
reporting for Puerto Rico income tax purposes only and
are NOT subject to Puerto Rico income taxes, you have
received this reporting in error and you should contact
your Financial Advisor immediately. Both the Firm and
your Financial Advisor w ill rely solely upon your
representations and will not make the determination of
whether you are subject to Puerto Rico income taxes. If
you have received this reporting and you are NOT
subject to Puerto Rico income taxes, the information
provided in this reporting is inaccurate and should not
be relied upon by you or your advisers. Neither UBS
Financial Services Inc. nor its employees provide tax or
legal advice. You should consult w ith your tax and/or
legal advisors regarding your personal circumstances.

M argin: The quantity value may indicate that all or part
of this posit ion is held on margin or held in the short
account. When an account holds a debit balance, this
debit balance is incorporated into the account's total
market value and deducted from the total value. When
calculating the percent of portfolio on each security, the
percentage will be impacted by the total market value of
the account. Therefore, if the account's market value is
reduced by a debit value of a holding the percent of
portfolio w ill be greater and if the account's market
value is increased by a holding then the percent of
portfolio w ill be less.

Cash: Cash on deposit at UBS Bank USA is protected by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to

$250,000 in principal and accrued interest per depositor
for each ownership type. Deposits made in an
individual's own name, joint name, or individual
retirement account are each held in a separate type of
ownership. Such deposits are not guaranteed by UBS
Financial Services Inc. More information is available
upon request.

Portfolio: Portfolio for purposes of this report is defined
as all the accounts presented on the cover page or the
header of this report and does not necessarily include all
of the client's accounts held at UBS Financial Services
Inc.

Gain/Loss: The gain/loss information may include
calculations based upon non-UBS Financial Services Inc.
cost basis information. The Firm does not independently
verify or guarantee the accuracy or validity of any
information provided by sources other than UBS
Financial Services Inc. In addit ion, if this report contains
posit ions with unavailable cost basis, the gain/(loss) for
these posit ions are excluded in the calculation for the
Gain/(Loss). As a result these figures may not be
accurate and are provided for informational purposes
only. Clients should not rely on this information in
making purchase or sell decisions, for tax purposes or
otherw ise. Rely only on year-end tax forms when
preparing your tax return. See your monthly statement
for addit ional information.

Fixed Income: Fixed income instruments are classif ied
as short term if they have a maturity date less than or
equal to 3 years and intermediate term if they have a
maturity date between 3 to 10 years. Instruments w ith
maturity dates longer than 10 years are classif ied as
long-term instruments. Unclassif ied instruments are
those for which no maturity date is available or
applicable.

Bond: The term " Bond" refers to all f ixed interest
bearing securit ies issued by public and private entit ies
where the issuer owes the holders interest and/or
principal at a specif ied later date. This term does not
include mutual funds. These securit ies are subject to
market risk and interest rate risk. If sold in the secondary
market prior to maturity, investors may experience a
gain or loss depending on interest rates, market
condit ions and the credit quality of the issuer.

Insured/Underlying Rating: Where a rating does not
exist for a particular agency, the report w ill display NR.

Averages: All averages are weighted averages
calculated based on market value of the holding, not
including accrued interest.

Classified Equity: Classif ied equit ies are defined as
those equit ies for which the firm can confirm the
specif ic industry and sector of the underlying equity
instrument.

Equity: The Growth, Value and Core labels are
determined by Standard and Poor's using a
price-to-book ratio methodology. The Growth, Value
and Core labels are based on how a company's
price-to-book ratio compares to the median
price-to-book ratio for its industry based on the
company's assigned Industry Sector. If the company's
ratio is greater than or equal to the industry median, it is
classif ied as a growth stock. If the company's ratio is less
than the industry median, it is classif ied as a value stock.
If a security includes both growth and value attributes, it
is classif ied as a core stock. If price-to-book is not
available or the industry's median is not available, this
item will be Unclassif ied.

Capitalization: Market Capitalization is defined as the
number of shares outstanding times the market value.
Equity securit ies are classif ied as Large Cap if they have
a capitalization of 8 billion or above. Securit ies w ith
capitalization between 1.8 and 7.9 billion are classif ied
as M id Cap. Securit ies w ith capitalization below 1.79
billion are classif ied as Small Cap. Unclassif ied securit ies
are those for which no capitalization is available or
applicable.

Equity: This analysis may include a variety of accounts,
each with different investment and risk parameters. As a
result, the overweighting or underweighting in a
particular sector or asset class should not be viewed as
an isolated factor in making investment/liquidation
decisions; but should be assessed on an account by
account basis to determine the overall impact on the
account's portfolio.

Cash Flow : This Cash Flow analysis is based on the
historical dividend, coupon and interest payments you
have received as of the Record Date in connection with
the securit ies listed and assumes that you will continue
to hold the securit ies for the periods for which cash
flows are projected. The attached may or may not
include principal paybacks for the securit ies listed. These
potential cash flows are subject to change due to a
variety of reasons, including but not limited to,
contractual provisions, changes in corporate policies,
changes in the value of the underlying securit ies and
interest rate fluctuations. The effect of a call on any
security(s) and the consequential impact on its potential
cash flow(s) is not reflected in this report. Payments that
occur in the same month in which the report is
generated -- but prior to the report run (" As of" ) date --
are not reflected in this report. In determining the

Disclosures applicable to accounts at UBS Financial Services Inc.

Report created on: October 2, 2012 Page 5 of 7

46



potential cash flows, UBS Financial Services Inc. relies on
information obtained from third party services it believes
to be reliable. UBS Financial Services Inc. does not
independently verify or guarantee the accuracy or
validity of any information provided by third parties.
Although UBS Financial Services Inc. generally updates
this information as it is received, the Firm does not
provide any assurances that the information listed is
accurate as of the Record Date. Cash flows for
mortgage-backed, asset-backed, factored, and other
pass-through securit ies are based on the assumptions
that the current face amount, principal pay-down,
interest payment and payment frequency remain
constant. Calculations may include principal payments,
are intended to be an estimate of future projected
interest cash flows and do not in any way guarantee
accuracy. Mortgage-backed, asset-backed, factored, and
other pass-through securit ies have dynamic cash flows
which may vary from month to month.

Income: The Estimated Annual Income is the annualized
year to date per share dividends paid and multiplied by
the quantity of shares held in the selected account(s).

Investment Grades: This report may designate a
security as a high yield fixed income security even
though one or more rating agencies rate the security as
an investment grade security. Further, this report may
incorporate a rating that is no longer current w ith the
rating agency. For more information about the rating for
any high yield fixed income security, or to consider
whether to hold or sell a high yield fixed income
security, please contact your financial advisor or
representative and do not make any investment decision
based on this report.

Gain/Loss reporting for Puerto Rico Income Tax
Purposes: Gain/(Loss) reporting may be prepared solely
for Puerto Rico income tax purposes only. If you have
received gain/(loss) reporting for Puerto Rico income tax
purposes only and are NOT subject to Puerto Rico
income taxes, you have received this reporting in error
and you should contact your Financial Advisor
immediately. Pursuant to the Puerto Rico Internal
Revenue Code (PRIRC) long-term capital gains are
derived from the sale or exchange of capital assets held
longer than six (6) months. For the purposes of this
report only, long term gains and losses are represented
by assets held for a period of more than six (6) months.
Both the Firm and your Financial Advisor w ill rely solely
upon your representations and will not make the
determination of whether you are subject to Puerto Rico
income taxes. If you have received this reporting and
you are NOT subject to Puerto Rico income taxes, the
information provided in this reporting is inaccurate and
should not be relied upon by you or your advisers for
purposes other than determining realized gain/loss for

Puerto Rico income tax purposes. Neither UBS Financial
Services Inc. nor its employees provide tax or legal
advice. You should consult w ith your tax and/or legal
advisors regarding your personal circumstances.

Pricing: All securit ies are priced using the closing price
reported on the last business day preceding the date of
this report. Every reasonable attempt has been made to
accurately price securit ies; however, we make no
warranty w ith respect to any security's price. Please refer
to the back of the first page of your UBS Financial
Services Inc. accounts statement for important
information regarding the pricing used for certain types
of securit ies, the sources of pricing data and other
qualif ications concerning the pricing of securit ies. To
determine the value of securit ies in your account, we
generally rely on third party quotation services. If a price
is unavailable or believed to be unreliable, we may
determine the price in good faith and may use other
sources such as the last recorded transaction. When
securit ies are held at another custodian or if you hold
illiquid or restricted securit ies for which there is no
published price, we will generally rely on the value
provided by the custodian or issuer of that security.

Indexing: For comparison purposes we have used up to
five general broad market indices. These indices were
selected to demonstrate the performance of broad
market indicators that are readily recognized rather than
for direct performance comparisons against the
accounts listed. Depending on the composit ion of your
portfolio and your investment objectives, these indices
may not be an appropriate measure for comparison
purposes and as such, are presented for illustration only.
Generally, these indices, such as the S&P 500 index,
assume no management, custody, transaction or other
expenses, and assume reinvestment of dividends and
capital gains. As a consequence, performance of
selected indices may be more or less volatile than any
accounts used in this report. The past performance of
the indices is not a guarantee of future results.
Represented in this report are: U.S. Treasury Bill (USTB) -
which represents the 3 month return for Treasury Bills
issued by the United States Government; the Barclays
Capital Aggregate Bond Index (LBAG) - which is
composed of securit ies from Barclays Capital
government/corporate bond index, mortgage-backed
securit ies index, and the asset-backed securit ies index.
Total return comprises price appreciation/depreciation
and income as a percentage of the original investment.
This index is rebalanced monthly by market
capitalization; the S&P 500 (SP500) index - which covers
500 industrial, utility, transportation, and financial
companies of the U.S. markets (mostly NYSE issues). The
index represents about 75% of NYSE market
capitalization and 30% of NYSE issues. It is a
capitalization-weighted index calculated on a total

return basis w ithout dividends reinvested. If benchmark
information is not available at the time this report was
run, NA will be displayed. We reserve the right to
substitute indices or display only those indices for which
current updated information is available in order to
ensure the accuracy and completeness of these reports.

M SCI AC World ex-US: The MSCI ACW (All Country

World) ex US Index is a free float-adjusted market

capitalization index that is designed to measure equity

market performance in the global developed and

emerging markets, excluding the US.

Russell 2000: Consists of the smallest 2,000 securit ies

in the Russell 3000 index, representing approximately

11% of the Russell 3000 total market capitalization. This

index is w idely regarded in the industry as the premier

measure of small cap stocks.

Index Volatility: Performance of certain indices may be
presented in comparison to account information.
Generally, these indices, such as the S&P 500 Index,
assume no management, custody, transaction or other
expenses, and assume reinvestment of dividends and
capital gains. In addit ion, these indices may have been
selected to demonstrate the performance of broad
market indicators that are readily recognized rather than
for direct performance comparisons against the
accounts shown on the report. As a consequence,
performance of selected indices may be more or less
volatile than any account or accounts and comparative
value may be minimal. The use of any market index
(such as the S&P 500) in this report is intended for
illustrative purposes only as a general reference to a
broad market, and not as an accurate performance
comparison. Certain accounts consolidated on this
report may have separate performance monitors
designed to accurately reflect performance.

Annualized Performance: All performance periods
greater than one year are calculated (unless otherw ise
stated) on an annualized basis, which represents the
return on an investment multiplied or divided to give a
comparable one year return.

Fees: Fees represented in this report include program
and wrap fees. Program and wrap fees prior to October
1, 2010 for accounts that are billed separately via
invoice through a separate account billing arrangement
are not included in this report. Commissions are not
included in the fees calculation.

Performance: This report presents accounts activity and
performance starting December 31, 2002. For accounts
opened prior to 12/31/02, this report does not include
the complete accounts activity or performance of your
accounts prior to that date. Information for accounts

opened after 12/31/02 is reported as of the month end
date of the first month of activity in the accounts. For
consolidated reports the Performance Start Date w ill be
the earliest performance start date of any of the
individual accounts selected for the consolidation time
period. If an individual account's performance
information is not available for a full reporting time
period (month to date, quarter to date, year to date or
performance to date), the individual's net of fee time
weighted return w ill not be displayed. For consolidated
accounts that include different account Performance
Start Dates, the consolidated Addit ions/Withdrawals,
Income Earned and Investment Appreciation/
Depreciation will include all activity that occurred during
the consolidated reporting time period. Accounts that
hold or held insurance products w ill be reported on
from the month end date of when insurance and
annuity activity could be obtained from the carrier.

Client Accounts: This report includes all assets in the
accounts listed and may include eligible and ineligible
assets in a fee-based program. Since ineligible assets are
not considered fee-based program assets, the inclusion
of such securit ies w ill distort the actual performance of
your accounts and does not reflect the performance of
your accounts in the fee-based program. As a result,
the performance reflected in this report can vary
substantially from the individual account
performance reflected in the performance reports
provided to you as part of those programs. For
fee-based programs, fees are charged on the market
value of eligible assets in the accounts and assessed
quarterly in advance, prorated according to the number
of calendar days in the billing period. When shown on a
report, the risk profile and return objectives describe
your overall goals for these accounts. For each account
you maintain, you choose one return objective and a
primary risk profile. If you have questions regarding
these objectives or w ish to change them, please contact
your Financial Advisor to update your accounts records.

Net Deposits/Withdraw als: When shown on a report,
this information represents the net value of all cash and
securit ies contributions and withdrawals, program fees
(including wrap fees) and other fees added to or
subtracted from your accounts from the first day to the
last day of the period. When fees are shown separately,
net deposits / w ithdrawals does not include program
fees (including wrap fees). When investment return is
displayed net deposits / w ithdrawals does not include
program fees (including wrap fees). For security
contributions and withdrawals, securit ies are calculated
using the end of day UBS Financial Services Inc. price on
the day securit ies are delivered in or out of the accounts.
Wrap fees will be included in this calculation except
when paid via an invoice or through a separate accounts
billing arrangement.

Disclosures applicable to accounts at UBS Financial Services Inc. (continued)

Report created on: October 2, 2012 Page 6 of 7

47



Dividends/ Interest: Dividend and interest earned,
when shown on a report, this information does not
reflect your account's tax status or reporting
requirements. Use only off icial tax reporting documents
(i.e.1099) for tax reporting purposes. The classif ication
of private investment distributions can only be
determined by referring to the official year-end
tax-reporting document provided by the issuer.

Accruals: When shown on a report, this information
represents the difference between the accrued interest
at the beginning of the period from the accrued interest
at the end of the period.

Change in market value (Investment
appreciation/depreciation): Represents the change in
value of the portfolio during the reporting period,
excluding addit ions/w ithdrawals, dividend and interest
income earned and accrued interest.

M arket Value: When shown on a report, represents
the total value at the end of the performance period
minus total security value at the beginning of the
performance period.

Time-w eighted Returns: This report displays a time
weighted rate of return, a methodology that calculates a
portfolio's return by linking equal-weighted monthly
returns together. The monthly return is calculated using
the Modif ied Dietz formula. This calculation uses the
beginning and ending portfolio values for the month
and weighs each contribution/w ithdrawal by the
amount of t ime invested.

M oney-w eighted Returns: Money-weighted return is
a measure of the rate of return for an asset or portfolio
of assets. It is calculated by finding the rate of return
that w ill set the present values of all cash flows and
terminal values equal to the value of all cash flows and
terminal values equal to the value of the init ial
investment. Money-weighted rate of return incorporates
the size and timing of cash flows, so it is an effective
measure for returns on a portfolio.

Net of Fees: The information is shown net of fees and
commission charges to your accounts for the time
period shown. For example, if your accounts are
charged an asset based fee during the month the report
is produced, performance information would reflect
deduction of those fees. Please see your program
documents regarding fee schedules.

Net of Fees and Gross of Fees Returns: Performance
is presented on a " net of fees" and " gross of fees"
basis, where indicated. Net returns do not reflect
Program and wrap fees prior to October 1, 2010 for
accounts that are billed separately via invoice through a

separate account billing arrangement. Gross returns do
not reflect the deduction of fees, commissions or other
charges. The payment of actual fees and expenses will
reduce a client's return. The compound effect of such
fees and expenses should be considered when review ing
returns. For example, the net effect of the deduction of
fees on annualized performance, including the
compounded effect over time, is determined by the
relative size of the fee and the account's investment
performance.

Performance Start Date Changes: The Performance
Start Date for accounts marked with a '^ ' have
changed. Performance figures of an account w ith a
changed Performance Start Date may not include the
entire history of the account. The new Performance
Start Date w ill generate performance returns and activity
information for a shorter period than is available at UBS
Financial Services Inc. As a result, the overall
performance of these accounts may generate better
performance than the period of t ime that would be
included if the report used the inception date of the
account. UBS Financial Services Inc. recommends
review ing performance reports that use the inception
date of the account because reports w ith longer time
frames are usually more helpful when evaluating
investment programs and strategies. Performance
reports may include accounts w ith inception dates that
precede the new Performance Start Date and will show
performance and activity information from the earliest
available inception date.

The change in Performance Start Date may be the result
of a performance gap due to a zero-balance that
prevents the calculation of continuous returns from the
inception of the account. The Performance Start Date
may also change if an account has failed one of our
performance data integrity tests. In such instances, the
account w ill be labeled as 'Review Required' and
performance prior to that failure w ill be restricted.
Finally, the Performance Start Date w ill change if you
have explicit ly requested a performance restart. Please
contact your Financial Advisor for addit ional details
regarding your new Performance Start Date.

Closed Accounts: Accounts that have been closed may
be included in the consolidated performance report.
When closed accounts are included in the consolidated
report, the performance report w ill only include
information for the time period the account was active
during the consolidated performance reporting time
period.

Important information for former Piper Jaffray
clients: As an accommodation to former Piper Jaffray
clients, these reports include performance history for
their Piper Jaffray accounts prior to August 12, 2006,

the date Piper Jaffray accounts were converted to UBS
Financial Services. UBS Financial Services has not
independently verif ied this information nor do we make
any representations or warranties as to the accuracy or
completeness of that information and will not be liable
to you if any such information is unavailable, delayed or
inaccurate.

Important information for former M cDonald
Investments clients: As an accommodation to former
McDonald Investments clients, these reports include
performance history for their McDonald Investments
accounts prior to February 9, 2007, the date McDonald
Investments accounts were converted to UBS Financial
Services. UBS Financial Services has not independently
verif ied this information nor do we make any
representations or warranties as to the accuracy or
completeness of that information and will not be liable
to you if any such information is unavailable, delayed or
inaccurate.

For insurance, annuit ies, and 529 Plans, UBS Financial
Services, Inc. relies on information obtained from third
party services it believes to be reliable. UBS Financial
Services, Inc. does not independently verify or guarantee
the accuracy or validity of any information provided by
third parties. Information for insurance, annuit ies, and
529 Plans that has been provided by a third party service
may not reflect the quantity and market value as of the
previous business day. When available, an " as of" date
is included in the description.

Custom Time Periods: If represented on this report,
the performance start date and the performance end
date have been selected by your Financial Advisor in
order to provide performance and account activity
information for your account for the specif ied period of
t ime only. As a result only a portion of your account's
activity and performance information is presented in the
performance report, and, therefore, presents a distorted
representation of your account's activity and
performance.

Investors outside the U.S. are subject to securit ies and
tax regulations within their applicable jurisdiction that
are not addressed in this report. Nothing in this report
shall be construed to be a solicitation to buy or offer to
sell any security, product or service to any non-U.S.
investor, nor shall any such security, product or service
be solicited, offered or sold in any jurisdiction where
such activity would be contrary to the securit ies laws or
other local laws and regulations or would subject UBS to
any registration requirement w ithin such jurisdiction.

©2012 UBS Financial Services Inc. All Rights Reserved.
Member SIPC.

Disclosures applicable to accounts at UBS Financial Services Inc. (continued)

Report created on: October 2, 2012 Page 7 of 7

48



Prepared for

COC - Total

Accounts included in this review

Account Name Type

UC 03542 • CT • MAC Wrap

UC 03543 • CT • BSA

UC 03544 • PF • BSA

UC 03546 • PF • MAC Wrap

UC 04046 • CT • MAC Wrap

UC 04047 • PF • Pace Multi Advisor

What's inside

Executive summary. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2

Performance review. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3

Performance by account. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 4

Important information about this report. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 6

UBS Client Review
As of September 30, 2012

Branch office:

3000 " a" Street

Suite 100

Anchorage, AK 99503-4040

Financial Advisor:

Keystone Wealth Management

907-261-5971

BUCK.ADAMS@UBS.COM

Page 1 of 8

49



Asset allocation summary
Value on Sep 30 ($) % of portfolio

A Cash and cash alternatives 739,030.87 5.15

B Equities 2,853,002.56 19.87

U.S. equity 2,139,498.99 14.90

Non U.S. equity 494,161.18 3.44

Global equity 219,342.40 1.53

C Fixed income 10,315,692.43 71.85

U.S. fixed income 9,853,623.38 68.63

Non U.S. fixed income 189,475.34 1.32

Global f ixed income 272,593.71 1.90

D Alternative strategies 228,092.62 1.59

E Broad commodities 181,527.87 1.26

F Real estate 0.00 0.00

G Other 40,792.06 0.28

Total Portfolio $14,358,138.42 100%
Balanced mutual funds represented in multiple asset classes based on Morningstar allocations

Equity sector analysis
Value on

Sep 30 ($)

% of

equity

A Consumer discretionary 350,380.95 12.28

B Energy 90,670.50 3.18

C Finance 635,561.53 22.28

D Health care 285,137.19 9.99

E Industrials 409,179.08 14.34

F Materials 79,529.37 2.79

G Staples 305,289.97 10.70

H Technology 385,425.40 13.51

I Telecommunications 91,302.67 3.20

J Utilit ies 220,525.90 7.73

K Unclassif ied securit ies 0.00 0.00

Total equity $2,853,002.56 100%
Balanced mutual funds represented in multiple asset classes based on Morningstar allocations

Expected cash flow

Total expected cash flow : $259,703.33
Cash flows displayed account for known events such as maturit ies and mandatory puts.

Credit quality of bond holdings
Value on % of

Insured credit rating Issues Sep 30($) port.

A Aaa/AAA/AAA 33 4,070,213.17 54.61

B Aa/AA/AA 6 225,200.32 3.02

C A/A/A 26 925,045.72 12.32

D Baa/BBB/BBB 28 838,740.35 11.17

E Non-investment grade 0 0.00 0.00

F Certif icate of deposit 0 0.00 0.00

G Not rated 5 1,402,614.62 18.87

Total 98 $7,461,814.18 100%

Consolidated report prepared for COC - Total

Executive summary
as of September 30, 2012

Report created on: October 2, 2012 Page 2 of 850



Sources of portfolio value Portfolio value and investment returns
Performance returns (annualized > 1 year)

QTD

Jun 30, 2012 to

Sep 30, 2012

YTD

Dec 31, 2011 to

Sep 30, 2012

2011

Dec 31, 2010 to

Dec 31, 2011

ITD

Sep 17, 2009 to

Sep 30, 2012

Opening value 14,102,521.27 16,409,037.55 15,657,234.00 800,000.00

Net deposits/w ithdrawals -19,971.45 -2,710,117.88 579,976.26 12,138,833.95

Div./interest income 48,604.22 168,921.58 282,001.95 732,583.70

Change in accr. interest 7,737.58 2,020.49 -8,418.88 29,532.36

Change in market value 250,093.96 519,123.86 -101,755.78 688,035.58

Closing value 14,388,985.59 14,388,985.59 16,409,037.55 14,388,985.59

Net Time-weighted ROR 2.03 4.21 0.34 2.66

Net deposits and withdrawals include program and account fees.

Portfolio and selected benchmark returns Time weighted rates of return (net of fees)
Performance returns (annualized > 1 year)

QTD

Jun 30, 2012 to

Sep 30, 2012

YTD

Dec 31, 2011 to

Sep 30, 2012

2011

Dec 31, 2010 to

Dec 31, 2011

ITD

Sep 17, 2009 to

Sep 30, 2012

Your portfolio 2.03% 4.21% 0.34% 2.66%

Cash and Cash Alt

US Treasury Bill - 3 Mos 0.02 0.05 0.07 0.09

Fixed Income

BC Aggregate Bond Index 1.58 3.99 7.84 6.24

BC Govt/Credit - 1-3 Yr 0.52 1.11 1.59 1.99

Equities

MSCI AC World ex-US 7.49 10.86 -13.33 3.09

S&P 500 6.35 16.44 2.11 12.75

Consolidated report prepared for COC - Total

Performance review
as of September 30, 2012

Past performance does not guarantee future results and current performance may be low er/higher than past data presented.

Report created on: October 2, 2012 Page 3 of 8

51



Summary of performance by account
Performance returns (annualized > 1 year)

Performance

start date

Value on

Sep 30, 2012 ($)

% of

portfolio

QTD

Jun 30, 2012 to

Sep 30, 2012

YTD

Dec 31, 2011 to

Sep 30, 2012

2011

Dec 31, 2010 to

Dec 31, 2011

ITD

Start date to

Sep 30, 2012

UC 03542 CT • MAC Wrap - SAGE INT FIXED

Risk profile: Conservative

Return objective: Current Income

Nov 5, 2009 1,995,080.69 13.87% Net time-weighted 0.52% 1.63% 5.50% 3.73%

UC 03543 CT • BSA

Risk profile: Conservative

Return objective: Current Income

Sep 17, 2009 256,034.68 1.78% Net time-weighted 0.02% 1.95% 0.12% -9.40%

UC 03544 PF • BSA

Risk profile: Conservative

Return objective: Current Income

Sep 21, 2009 1,909,368.30 13.27% Net time-weighted 0.42% 0.49% 0.11% -3.84%

UC 03546 PF • MAC Wrap - SAGE INT FIXED

Risk profile: Conservative

Return objective: Current Income

Nov 5, 2009 2,972,553.80 20.66% Net time-weighted 1.39% 3.40% 4.12% 4.01%

UC 04046 CT • MAC Wrap - SAGE INT FIXED

Risk profile: Moderate

Return objective: Current Income and Capital Appreciation

Feb 8, 2011 2,804,790.65 19.49% Net time-weighted 1.52% 3.60% N/A 5.63%

UC 04047 PF • Pace Multi Advisor

Risk profile: Aggressive/Speculative

Return objective: Capital Appreciation

Dec 23, 2010 4,451,157.47 30.93% Net time-weighted 4.32% 9.54% -5.20% 2.37%

Total Portfolio Sep 17, 2009 $14,388,985.59 100% Net time-w eighted 2.03% 4.21% 0.34% 2.66%

Consolidated report prepared for COC - Total

Performance by account
as of September 30, 2012

Past performance does not guarantee future results and current performance may be low er/higher than past data presented.

Report created on: October 2, 2012 Page 4 of 8

52



QTD YTD 2011 ITD

Jun 30, 2012 to Dec 31, 2011 to Dec 31, 2010 to Sep 17, 2009 to

Benchmarks - Time-w eighted returns Sep 30, 2012 Sep 30, 2012 Dec 31, 2011 Sep 30, 2012

Cash and Cash Alt

US Treasury Bill - 3 Mos 0.02 % 0.05 % 0.07 % 0.09 %

Fixed Income

BC Aggregate Bond Index 1.58 % 3.99 % 7.84 % 6.24 %

BC Govt/Credit - 1-3 Yr 0.52 % 1.11 % 1.59 % 1.99 %

Equities

MSCI AC World ex-US 7.49 % 10.86 % -13.33 % 3.09 %

S&P 500 6.35 % 16.44 % 2.11 % 12.75 %

Consolidated report prepared for COC - Total

Performance by account - as of September 30, 2012 (continued)

Past performance does not guarantee future results and current performance may be low er/higher than past data presented.

Report created on: October 2, 2012 Page 5 of 8

53



This section contains important disclosures regarding the
information and valuations presented here. This report
presents information since December 31, 2002. This
report does not include complete account activity or
performance of your accounts before this date. All
information presented is subject to change at any time
and is provided only as of the date indicated. The
information in this report is for informational purposes
only and should not be relied upon as the basis of an
investment or liquidation decision. UBS Financial Services
Inc. accounts statements and official tax documents are
the only off icial record of your accounts and are not
replaced, amended or superseded by any of the
information presented in these reports.

UBS Financial Services Inc. offers a number of
investment advisory programs to clients, acting in our
capacity as an investment adviser, including
comprehensive financial planning, discretionary account
management, non-discretionary investment advisory
programs, and advice on the selection of investment
managers and mutual funds offered through our
investment advisory programs. When we act as your
investment adviser, we will have a written agreement
w ith you expressly acknowledging our investment
advisory relationship w ith you and describing our
obligations to you. At the beginning of our advisory
relationship, we will give you our Form ADV brochure(s)
for the program(s) you selected that provide detailed
information about, among other things, the advisory
services we provide, our fees, our personnel, our other
business activit ies and financial industry aff iliat ions and
conflicts between our interests and your interests.

Please review the report content carefully and contact
your Financial Advisor w ith any questions.

The account list ing may or may not include all of your
accounts w ith UBS Financial Services Inc. The accounts
included in this report are listed under the " Accounts
included in this review” shown on the cover page.

M utual Fund Asset Allocation: If the option to
unbundle balanced mutual funds is selected and if a
fund's holdings data is available, mutual funds will be
classif ied by the asset class, subclass, and style
breakdown of their underlying holdings. Where a
mutual fund or ETF contains equity holdings from
multiple equity sectors, this report w ill proportionately
allocate the underlying holdings of the fund to those
sectors measured as a percentage of the total fund's
asset value as of the date shown.

This information is supplied by Morningstar, Inc. on a
monthly basis to UBS Financial Services, Inc based on
data supplied by the fund which may not be current.

Mutual funds change their portfolio holdings on a
regular (often daily) basis. Accordingly, any analysis that
includes mutual funds may not accurately reflect the
current composit ion of these funds. If a fund's
underlying holding data is not available, it w ill be
classif ied based on its corresponding overall Morningstar
classif ication. All data is as of the date indicated in the
report.

Accrued Interest: Interest that has accumulated
between the most recent payment and the report date
may be reflected in market values for interest bearing
securit ies.

Tax Status: " Taxable" includes all securit ies held in a
taxable account that are subject to federal and/or state
or local taxation. " Tax-exempt" includes all securit ies
held in a taxable account that are exempt from federal,
state and local taxation. " Tax-deferred" includes all
securit ies held in a tax-deferred account, regardless of
the status of the security.

Expected Cash Flow reporting for Puerto Rico
Income Tax Purposes: Expected Cash Flow reporting
may be prepared solely for Puerto Rico income tax
purposes only. If you have received expected cash flow
reporting for Puerto Rico income tax purposes only and
are NOT subject to Puerto Rico income taxes, you have
received this reporting in error and you should contact
your Financial Advisor immediately. Both the Firm and
your Financial Advisor w ill rely solely upon your
representations and will not make the determination of
whether you are subject to Puerto Rico income taxes. If
you have received this reporting and you are NOT
subject to Puerto Rico income taxes, the information
provided in this reporting is inaccurate and should not
be relied upon by you or your advisers. Neither UBS
Financial Services Inc. nor its employees provide tax or
legal advice. You should consult w ith your tax and/or
legal advisors regarding your personal circumstances.

M argin: The quantity value may indicate that all or part
of this posit ion is held on margin or held in the short
account. When an account holds a debit balance, this
debit balance is incorporated into the account's total
market value and deducted from the total value. When
calculating the percent of portfolio on each security, the
percentage will be impacted by the total market value of
the account. Therefore, if the account's market value is
reduced by a debit value of a holding the percent of
portfolio w ill be greater and if the account's market
value is increased by a holding then the percent of
portfolio w ill be less.

Cash: Cash on deposit at UBS Bank USA is protected by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to

$250,000 in principal and accrued interest per depositor
for each ownership type. Deposits made in an
individual's own name, joint name, or individual
retirement account are each held in a separate type of
ownership. Such deposits are not guaranteed by UBS
Financial Services Inc. More information is available
upon request.

Portfolio: Portfolio for purposes of this report is defined
as all the accounts presented on the cover page or the
header of this report and does not necessarily include all
of the client's accounts held at UBS Financial Services
Inc.

Gain/Loss: The gain/loss information may include
calculations based upon non-UBS Financial Services Inc.
cost basis information. The Firm does not independently
verify or guarantee the accuracy or validity of any
information provided by sources other than UBS
Financial Services Inc. In addit ion, if this report contains
posit ions with unavailable cost basis, the gain/(loss) for
these posit ions are excluded in the calculation for the
Gain/(Loss). As a result these figures may not be
accurate and are provided for informational purposes
only. Clients should not rely on this information in
making purchase or sell decisions, for tax purposes or
otherw ise. Rely only on year-end tax forms when
preparing your tax return. See your monthly statement
for addit ional information.

Fixed Income: Fixed income instruments are classif ied
as short term if they have a maturity date less than or
equal to 3 years and intermediate term if they have a
maturity date between 3 to 10 years. Instruments w ith
maturity dates longer than 10 years are classif ied as
long-term instruments. Unclassif ied instruments are
those for which no maturity date is available or
applicable.

Bond: The term " Bond" refers to all f ixed interest
bearing securit ies issued by public and private entit ies
where the issuer owes the holders interest and/or
principal at a specif ied later date. This term does not
include mutual funds. These securit ies are subject to
market risk and interest rate risk. If sold in the secondary
market prior to maturity, investors may experience a
gain or loss depending on interest rates, market
condit ions and the credit quality of the issuer.

Insured/Underlying Rating: Where a rating does not
exist for a particular agency, the report w ill display NR.

Averages: All averages are weighted averages
calculated based on market value of the holding, not
including accrued interest.

Classified Equity: Classif ied equit ies are defined as
those equit ies for which the firm can confirm the
specif ic industry and sector of the underlying equity
instrument.

Equity: The Growth, Value and Core labels are
determined by Standard and Poor's using a
price-to-book ratio methodology. The Growth, Value
and Core labels are based on how a company's
price-to-book ratio compares to the median
price-to-book ratio for its industry based on the
company's assigned Industry Sector. If the company's
ratio is greater than or equal to the industry median, it is
classif ied as a growth stock. If the company's ratio is less
than the industry median, it is classif ied as a value stock.
If a security includes both growth and value attributes, it
is classif ied as a core stock. If price-to-book is not
available or the industry's median is not available, this
item will be Unclassif ied.

Capitalization: Market Capitalization is defined as the
number of shares outstanding times the market value.
Equity securit ies are classif ied as Large Cap if they have
a capitalization of 8 billion or above. Securit ies w ith
capitalization between 1.8 and 7.9 billion are classif ied
as M id Cap. Securit ies w ith capitalization below 1.79
billion are classif ied as Small Cap. Unclassif ied securit ies
are those for which no capitalization is available or
applicable.

Equity: This analysis may include a variety of accounts,
each with different investment and risk parameters. As a
result, the overweighting or underweighting in a
particular sector or asset class should not be viewed as
an isolated factor in making investment/liquidation
decisions; but should be assessed on an account by
account basis to determine the overall impact on the
account's portfolio.

Cash Flow : This Cash Flow analysis is based on the
historical dividend, coupon and interest payments you
have received as of the Record Date in connection with
the securit ies listed and assumes that you will continue
to hold the securit ies for the periods for which cash
flows are projected. The attached may or may not
include principal paybacks for the securit ies listed. These
potential cash flows are subject to change due to a
variety of reasons, including but not limited to,
contractual provisions, changes in corporate policies,
changes in the value of the underlying securit ies and
interest rate fluctuations. The effect of a call on any
security(s) and the consequential impact on its potential
cash flow(s) is not reflected in this report. Payments that
occur in the same month in which the report is
generated -- but prior to the report run (" As of" ) date --
are not reflected in this report. In determining the

Disclosures applicable to accounts at UBS Financial Services Inc.

Report created on: October 2, 2012 Page 6 of 8

54



potential cash flows, UBS Financial Services Inc. relies on
information obtained from third party services it believes
to be reliable. UBS Financial Services Inc. does not
independently verify or guarantee the accuracy or
validity of any information provided by third parties.
Although UBS Financial Services Inc. generally updates
this information as it is received, the Firm does not
provide any assurances that the information listed is
accurate as of the Record Date. Cash flows for
mortgage-backed, asset-backed, factored, and other
pass-through securit ies are based on the assumptions
that the current face amount, principal pay-down,
interest payment and payment frequency remain
constant. Calculations may include principal payments,
are intended to be an estimate of future projected
interest cash flows and do not in any way guarantee
accuracy. Mortgage-backed, asset-backed, factored, and
other pass-through securit ies have dynamic cash flows
which may vary from month to month.

Income: The Estimated Annual Income is the annualized
year to date per share dividends paid and multiplied by
the quantity of shares held in the selected account(s).

Investment Grades: This report may designate a
security as a high yield fixed income security even
though one or more rating agencies rate the security as
an investment grade security. Further, this report may
incorporate a rating that is no longer current w ith the
rating agency. For more information about the rating for
any high yield fixed income security, or to consider
whether to hold or sell a high yield fixed income
security, please contact your financial advisor or
representative and do not make any investment decision
based on this report.

Gain/Loss reporting for Puerto Rico Income Tax
Purposes: Gain/(Loss) reporting may be prepared solely
for Puerto Rico income tax purposes only. If you have
received gain/(loss) reporting for Puerto Rico income tax
purposes only and are NOT subject to Puerto Rico
income taxes, you have received this reporting in error
and you should contact your Financial Advisor
immediately. Pursuant to the Puerto Rico Internal
Revenue Code (PRIRC) long-term capital gains are
derived from the sale or exchange of capital assets held
longer than six (6) months. For the purposes of this
report only, long term gains and losses are represented
by assets held for a period of more than six (6) months.
Both the Firm and your Financial Advisor w ill rely solely
upon your representations and will not make the
determination of whether you are subject to Puerto Rico
income taxes. If you have received this reporting and
you are NOT subject to Puerto Rico income taxes, the
information provided in this reporting is inaccurate and
should not be relied upon by you or your advisers for
purposes other than determining realized gain/loss for

Puerto Rico income tax purposes. Neither UBS Financial
Services Inc. nor its employees provide tax or legal
advice. You should consult w ith your tax and/or legal
advisors regarding your personal circumstances.

Pricing: All securit ies are priced using the closing price
reported on the last business day preceding the date of
this report. Every reasonable attempt has been made to
accurately price securit ies; however, we make no
warranty w ith respect to any security's price. Please refer
to the back of the first page of your UBS Financial
Services Inc. accounts statement for important
information regarding the pricing used for certain types
of securit ies, the sources of pricing data and other
qualif ications concerning the pricing of securit ies. To
determine the value of securit ies in your account, we
generally rely on third party quotation services. If a price
is unavailable or believed to be unreliable, we may
determine the price in good faith and may use other
sources such as the last recorded transaction. When
securit ies are held at another custodian or if you hold
illiquid or restricted securit ies for which there is no
published price, we will generally rely on the value
provided by the custodian or issuer of that security.

Indexing: For comparison purposes we have used up to
five general broad market indices. These indices were
selected to demonstrate the performance of broad
market indicators that are readily recognized rather than
for direct performance comparisons against the
accounts listed. Depending on the composit ion of your
portfolio and your investment objectives, these indices
may not be an appropriate measure for comparison
purposes and as such, are presented for illustration only.
Generally, these indices, such as the S&P 500 index,
assume no management, custody, transaction or other
expenses, and assume reinvestment of dividends and
capital gains. As a consequence, performance of
selected indices may be more or less volatile than any
accounts used in this report. The past performance of
the indices is not a guarantee of future results.
Represented in this report are: U.S. Treasury Bill (USTB) -
which represents the 3 month return for Treasury Bills
issued by the United States Government; the Barclays
Capital Aggregate Bond Index (LBAG) - which is
composed of securit ies from Barclays Capital
government/corporate bond index, mortgage-backed
securit ies index, and the asset-backed securit ies index.
Total return comprises price appreciation/depreciation
and income as a percentage of the original investment.
This index is rebalanced monthly by market
capitalization; the S&P 500 (SP500) index - which covers
500 industrial, utility, transportation, and financial
companies of the U.S. markets (mostly NYSE issues). The
index represents about 75% of NYSE market
capitalization and 30% of NYSE issues. It is a
capitalization-weighted index calculated on a total

return basis w ithout dividends reinvested. If benchmark
information is not available at the time this report was
run, NA will be displayed. We reserve the right to
substitute indices or display only those indices for which
current updated information is available in order to
ensure the accuracy and completeness of these reports.

M SCI AC World ex-US: The MSCI ACW (All Country

World) ex US Index is a free float-adjusted market

capitalization index that is designed to measure equity

market performance in the global developed and

emerging markets, excluding the US.

BC Govt/Credit - 1-3 Yr: (LBGC1) Measure of

corporate and non-corporate fixed income securit ies

that are rated investment grade and have 1-3 years to

final maturity.

Index Volatility: Performance of certain indices may be
presented in comparison to account information.
Generally, these indices, such as the S&P 500 Index,
assume no management, custody, transaction or other
expenses, and assume reinvestment of dividends and
capital gains. In addit ion, these indices may have been
selected to demonstrate the performance of broad
market indicators that are readily recognized rather than
for direct performance comparisons against the
accounts shown on the report. As a consequence,
performance of selected indices may be more or less
volatile than any account or accounts and comparative
value may be minimal. The use of any market index
(such as the S&P 500) in this report is intended for
illustrative purposes only as a general reference to a
broad market, and not as an accurate performance
comparison. Certain accounts consolidated on this
report may have separate performance monitors
designed to accurately reflect performance.

Annualized Performance: All performance periods
greater than one year are calculated (unless otherw ise
stated) on an annualized basis, which represents the
return on an investment multiplied or divided to give a
comparable one year return.

Fees: Fees represented in this report include program
and wrap fees. Program and wrap fees prior to October
1, 2010 for accounts that are billed separately via
invoice through a separate account billing arrangement
are not included in this report. Commissions are not
included in the fees calculation.

Performance: This report presents accounts activity and
performance starting December 31, 2002. For accounts
opened prior to 12/31/02, this report does not include
the complete accounts activity or performance of your
accounts prior to that date. Information for accounts
opened after 12/31/02 is reported as of the month end

date of the first month of activity in the accounts. For
consolidated reports the Performance Start Date w ill be
the earliest performance start date of any of the
individual accounts selected for the consolidation time
period. If an individual account's performance
information is not available for a full reporting time
period (month to date, quarter to date, year to date or
performance to date), the individual's net of fee time
weighted return w ill not be displayed. For consolidated
accounts that include different account Performance
Start Dates, the consolidated Addit ions/Withdrawals,
Income Earned and Investment Appreciation/
Depreciation will include all activity that occurred during
the consolidated reporting time period. Accounts that
hold or held insurance products w ill be reported on
from the month end date of when insurance and
annuity activity could be obtained from the carrier.

Client Accounts: This report includes all assets in the
accounts listed and may include eligible and ineligible
assets in a fee-based program. Since ineligible assets are
not considered fee-based program assets, the inclusion
of such securit ies w ill distort the actual performance of
your accounts and does not reflect the performance of
your accounts in the fee-based program. As a result,
the performance reflected in this report can vary
substantially from the individual account
performance reflected in the performance reports
provided to you as part of those programs. For
fee-based programs, fees are charged on the market
value of eligible assets in the accounts and assessed
quarterly in advance, prorated according to the number
of calendar days in the billing period. When shown on a
report, the risk profile and return objectives describe
your overall goals for these accounts. For each account
you maintain, you choose one return objective and a
primary risk profile. If you have questions regarding
these objectives or w ish to change them, please contact
your Financial Advisor to update your accounts records.

Net Deposits/Withdraw als: When shown on a report,
this information represents the net value of all cash and
securit ies contributions and withdrawals, program fees
(including wrap fees) and other fees added to or
subtracted from your accounts from the first day to the
last day of the period. When fees are shown separately,
net deposits / w ithdrawals does not include program
fees (including wrap fees). When investment return is
displayed net deposits / w ithdrawals does not include
program fees (including wrap fees). For security
contributions and withdrawals, securit ies are calculated
using the end of day UBS Financial Services Inc. price on
the day securit ies are delivered in or out of the accounts.
Wrap fees will be included in this calculation except
when paid via an invoice or through a separate accounts
billing arrangement.

Disclosures applicable to accounts at UBS Financial Services Inc. (continued)

Report created on: October 2, 2012 Page 7 of 8

55



Dividends/ Interest: Dividend and interest earned,
when shown on a report, this information does not
reflect your account's tax status or reporting
requirements. Use only off icial tax reporting documents
(i.e.1099) for tax reporting purposes. The classif ication
of private investment distributions can only be
determined by referring to the official year-end
tax-reporting document provided by the issuer.

Accruals: When shown on a report, this information
represents the difference between the accrued interest
at the beginning of the period from the accrued interest
at the end of the period.

Change in market value (Investment
appreciation/depreciation): Represents the change in
value of the portfolio during the reporting period,
excluding addit ions/w ithdrawals, dividend and interest
income earned and accrued interest.

M arket Value: When shown on a report, represents
the total value at the end of the performance period
minus total security value at the beginning of the
performance period.

Time-w eighted Returns: This report displays a time
weighted rate of return, a methodology that calculates a
portfolio's return by linking equal-weighted monthly
returns together. The monthly return is calculated using
the Modif ied Dietz formula. This calculation uses the
beginning and ending portfolio values for the month
and weighs each contribution/w ithdrawal by the
amount of t ime invested.

M oney-w eighted Returns: Money-weighted return is
a measure of the rate of return for an asset or portfolio
of assets. It is calculated by finding the rate of return
that w ill set the present values of all cash flows and
terminal values equal to the value of all cash flows and
terminal values equal to the value of the init ial
investment. Money-weighted rate of return incorporates
the size and timing of cash flows, so it is an effective
measure for returns on a portfolio.

Net of Fees: The information is shown net of fees and
commission charges to your accounts for the time
period shown. For example, if your accounts are
charged an asset based fee during the month the report
is produced, performance information would reflect
deduction of those fees. Please see your program
documents regarding fee schedules.

Net of Fees and Gross of Fees Returns: Performance
is presented on a " net of fees" and " gross of fees"
basis, where indicated. Net returns do not reflect
Program and wrap fees prior to October 1, 2010 for
accounts that are billed separately via invoice through a

separate account billing arrangement. Gross returns do
not reflect the deduction of fees, commissions or other
charges. The payment of actual fees and expenses will
reduce a client's return. The compound effect of such
fees and expenses should be considered when review ing
returns. For example, the net effect of the deduction of
fees on annualized performance, including the
compounded effect over time, is determined by the
relative size of the fee and the account's investment
performance.

Performance Start Date Changes: The Performance
Start Date for accounts marked with a '^ ' have
changed. Performance figures of an account w ith a
changed Performance Start Date may not include the
entire history of the account. The new Performance
Start Date w ill generate performance returns and activity
information for a shorter period than is available at UBS
Financial Services Inc. As a result, the overall
performance of these accounts may generate better
performance than the period of t ime that would be
included if the report used the inception date of the
account. UBS Financial Services Inc. recommends
review ing performance reports that use the inception
date of the account because reports w ith longer time
frames are usually more helpful when evaluating
investment programs and strategies. Performance
reports may include accounts w ith inception dates that
precede the new Performance Start Date and will show
performance and activity information from the earliest
available inception date.

The change in Performance Start Date may be the result
of a performance gap due to a zero-balance that
prevents the calculation of continuous returns from the
inception of the account. The Performance Start Date
may also change if an account has failed one of our
performance data integrity tests. In such instances, the
account w ill be labeled as 'Review Required' and
performance prior to that failure w ill be restricted.
Finally, the Performance Start Date w ill change if you
have explicit ly requested a performance restart. Please
contact your Financial Advisor for addit ional details
regarding your new Performance Start Date.

Closed Accounts: Accounts that have been closed may
be included in the consolidated performance report.
When closed accounts are included in the consolidated
report, the performance report w ill only include
information for the time period the account was active
during the consolidated performance reporting time
period.

Important information for former Piper Jaffray
clients: As an accommodation to former Piper Jaffray
clients, these reports include performance history for
their Piper Jaffray accounts prior to August 12, 2006,

the date Piper Jaffray accounts were converted to UBS
Financial Services. UBS Financial Services has not
independently verif ied this information nor do we make
any representations or warranties as to the accuracy or
completeness of that information and will not be liable
to you if any such information is unavailable, delayed or
inaccurate.

Important information for former M cDonald
Investments clients: As an accommodation to former
McDonald Investments clients, these reports include
performance history for their McDonald Investments
accounts prior to February 9, 2007, the date McDonald
Investments accounts were converted to UBS Financial
Services. UBS Financial Services has not independently
verif ied this information nor do we make any
representations or warranties as to the accuracy or
completeness of that information and will not be liable
to you if any such information is unavailable, delayed or
inaccurate.

For insurance, annuit ies, and 529 Plans, UBS Financial
Services, Inc. relies on information obtained from third
party services it believes to be reliable. UBS Financial
Services, Inc. does not independently verify or guarantee
the accuracy or validity of any information provided by
third parties. Information for insurance, annuit ies, and
529 Plans that has been provided by a third party service
may not reflect the quantity and market value as of the
previous business day. When available, an " as of" date
is included in the description.

Custom Time Periods: If represented on this report,
the performance start date and the performance end
date have been selected by your Financial Advisor in
order to provide performance and account activity
information for your account for the specif ied period of
t ime only. As a result only a portion of your account's
activity and performance information is presented in the
performance report, and, therefore, presents a distorted
representation of your account's activity and
performance.

Investors outside the U.S. are subject to securit ies and
tax regulations within their applicable jurisdiction that
are not addressed in this report. Nothing in this report
shall be construed to be a solicitation to buy or offer to
sell any security, product or service to any non-U.S.
investor, nor shall any such security, product or service
be solicited, offered or sold in any jurisdiction where
such activity would be contrary to the securit ies laws or
other local laws and regulations or would subject UBS to
any registration requirement w ithin such jurisdiction.

©2012 UBS Financial Services Inc. All Rights Reserved.
Member SIPC.

Disclosures applicable to accounts at UBS Financial Services Inc. (continued)

Report created on: October 2, 2012 Page 8 of 8

56



Quarterly review and outlook

Fourth quarter 2012

Wealth Management Research

Please Note:

The individual PowerPoint slides in the presentation should not be altered in any way as they contain 
research information. WMR is not responsible for content that has been modified prior to being 
presented.

Financial Advisors may, however, present different sections of the seminar by omitting slides that may 
not be relevant to the particular audience.

NEVER OMIT THE SLIDES MARKED ‘APPENDIX’ AT THE END OF THIS PRESENTATION. 

Please have any combination of these slides reviewed by your local compliance before use.

This report has been prepared by UBS Financial Services Inc. (“UBS FS”).

October 2012

57



C:\Program Files\UBS\Pres\Templates\PresPrintOnScreen.pot

1

1200

1250

1300

1350

1400

1450

1500

Jan-12 Feb-12 Mar-12 Apr-12 May-12 Jun-12 Jul-12 Aug-12 Sep-12 Oct-12

1

2012 timeline of events

Charting the key events of 2012 that shook the S&P 500
S&P 500 price index, opening price

S&P downgrades 
France, Italy, Spain

Greece and Italy default 
woes lessen around 
European summit

Oil prices surge 
above $100/barrel

Greek government 
formally defaults

Spanish yields 
rise toward 7%

Chinese GDP 
falls short of 
expectations

Poor Chinese 
export/retail sales 
numbers

Weak US job data; 
Eurozone PMI disappoints

New Democracy 
wins Greek 
election

Fed extends 
Operation Twist

ACA ruled constitutional 
by Supreme Court

Treasury 10-year 
yields hit record low 
at 1.45%

ECB and Fed 
pledge further 
easing if 
necessary

Santorum 
concedes to 
Romney

Source: Bloomberg, UBS WMR, as of 28 September 2012

Fed announces 
QE3

ECB announces 
Outright Monetary 
Transactions

Review

58



C:\Program Files\UBS\Pres\Templates\PresPrintOnScreen.pot

222

US economic data and financial market performance

Strong gains in financial markets despite weak global economy

 The eurozone debt crisis, a sharp slowdown in 
China and tepid growth in the US prompted global 
central banks to expand their balance sheet in 
hopes of reflating economic activity.

 Reflation efforts and the absence of material bad 
news boosted risk assets. The S&P 500, which 
gained nearly 6% in the third quarter, has risen 
roughly 15% during 2012. Eurozone equities led 
the way, rising nearly 12%. Commodities also 
recovered.

 Economic data in the US has been mixed. Housing 
has shown signs of a rebound, but labor market 
conditions remain weak. The unemployment rate 
still hovers above 8%, and payroll gains fell back 
below 100,000 in August. 

 ISM manufacturing hovered near the expansion-
critical 50 threshold throughout the quarter. 
Analysts have trimmed Q3 and Q4 GDP forecasts 
by 40 and 25 basis points, respectively.

 US gasoline prices once again moved back toward 
$4 per gallon.

Review

Source: Thomson DataStream, UBS WMR, as of 24  September 2012. For full explanation of this table, 
please see Disclaimer.

US growth to stay moderate into 2013
US real GDP growth, quarter-over-quarter annualized in %

Third quarter 2012 performance snapshot
Total return of selected asset classes, in USD and %

Source: Bloomberg, Merrill Lynch Indices, UBS WMR, as of 28 September 2012

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18

Cash

Treasuries

REITs

US fixed income

Investment grade corporate bonds

Non-US fixed income

High yield corporate bonds

US equity

EM equities

Non-US developed equities

Commodities

Eurozone equities

Year-to-date Quarter-to-date

59



C:\Program Files\UBS\Pres\Templates\PresPrintOnScreen.pot

3

 Global monetary easing moved into full swing, with 
major central banks extending already 
accommodative monetary policy. 

– The European Central Bank (ECB) introduced the Outright 
Monetary Transactions (OMT) program in July which 
allows it to buy an unlimited amount of short-term 
sovereign bonds in the secondary market.

– The US Federal Reserve (Fed) initiated a third phase of 
quantitative easing (QE3) in September amid rising 
inflation expectations.

 Geopolitical uncertainty remained elevated in 
Europe, Asia and the Middle East. Mass anti-US 
protests flared across the Arab world, anti-Japanese 
protests shook China, and Spaniards and Greeks 
took to the streets en masse to protest against 
austerity.

 Based on our expectations for earnings over the next 
year, the price-earnings ratio (P/E) for US stocks is 
close to the top of our fair value range at 13.5, 
suggesting limited upside.

33

Policy measures and a lack of bad news sparked a rally

Third quarter defined by an “absence of malice” and reflation efforts

Source: Bloomberg, UBS WMR, as of 26 September 2012

PreviewPreviewReview

Central banks have supported global reflation efforts 
Size of  central bank balance sheets, indexed to 100 at 1 January 2007

US equities remain within our fair value range
S&P 500 P/E calculated using normalized earnings

Source: Bloomberg, UBS WMR, as of 25 September 2012

60



C:\Program Files\UBS\Pres\Templates\PresPrintOnScreen.pot

4

Further gains predicated on improved outlook 

 We believe that further gains in risk assets require 
outright improvement – not merely stabilization – in 
global macro conditions, including continued easing 
of eurozone risks, an agreement on the “fiscal cliff,” 
signs that Chinese policymakers will step up efforts 
to ease monetary and  fiscal conditions and 
evidence that corporate profits are set to 
reaccelerate.

 Expansionary monetary policy should continue to 
support the real economy and financial markets. 
However, uncertainties related to the US elections 
and its aftermath loom large.

 We think the largest of these uncertainties – the US 
fiscal cliff – will be avoided. While a "grand bargain” 
(deficit cuts of $4 trillion or more over the next 10 
years) is probable next year, there is little chance of 
a sweeping agreement in 2012.

 With margins near historically high levels, subdued 
emerging market growth and more modest efficiency 
gains, companies should have a tough time beating 
earnings estimates.

Outlook

Fiscal policy risks and US elections loom large in the fourth quarter

Fiscal cliff impact should be devastating
Cumulative impact of fiscal cliff components, in % of UBS GDP estimate

Source: Congressional Budget Office, UBS WMR, as of 27 June 2012

Equity markets have rallied sharply
S&P 500 Index and Euro Stoxx 600 Index

Source: Bloomberg, UBS WMR, as of 26 September 2012

61



C:\Program Files\UBS\Pres\Templates\PresPrintOnScreen.pot

5

 The macro environment remains challenging and the 
political outlook, uncertain. While central banks 
reduced tail risks, headwinds from tighter fiscal 
policy and deleveraging should continue in 2013. 
Sluggish growth, episodic increases in market 
volatility and less uniform performance prospects 
across risk assets will likely continue.

 The recent improvement in the eurozone could 
prove short-lived if elected officials backtrack on 
agreed reforms. With Germany balking at further 
bailout funds, sovereign credit quality could 
deteriorate, prompting renewed concerns of a re-
escalation of the debt crisis. 

 The failure of policymakers to respond to a further 
softening of growth in China should pose a daunting 
challenge to the global expansion.

 With market participants having shifted from being 
overly cautious to somewhat complacent about the 
risks, we believe the risks of a pullback into the year 
end are significant.

Outlook

Macro conditions remain challenging

Geopolitical risks could undermine the economy and risky assets

Debt ceiling debate to heat up in early 2013
US public debt and statutory debt limit, in trillions of US dollars

Source: Bloomberg, UBS WMR, as of 21 September, 2012

Source: Thomson Reuters, UBS WMR, as of 27 September 2012

Eurozone growth picture marginally improving

Note: PMI = Purchasing Managers Index

Manufacturing PMIs for the eurozone, in levels

62



C:\Program Files\UBS\Pres\Templates\PresPrintOnScreen.pot

6

WMA Asset Allocation Committee recommendations

 Neutral tactical allocation to global equities: Investors 
should remain allocated in line with their long-term oriented 
benchmarks.

 Favor US and emerging markets: Prefer the US for its 
defensive character and EM for growth potential. Less 
cautious on eurozone assets.

 Within US equities, emphasize growth over value, small-
and mid-caps over large-caps, and procyclical over 
defensive sectors. Our favored sectors are Information 
Technology, Consumer Staples and Industrials.

 Upgrade commodities, downgrade fixed income:  The 
downside for some commodity sectors is now more limited. 
As an offset, we downgrade  fixed income.

 No longer prefer US dollar-denominated bonds vs. 
foreign bonds: Reduced risks in the eurozone remove a 
pillar of support for the dollar.

 Favor US corporate credit, reduce preference for EM 
sovereign bonds: Fundamentals support investment-grade 
and high-yield corporate bonds. 

Recommendations

Overweight

Neutral

Underweight

Fixed income – 37%

US dollar fixed 
income – 29%

Non-US fixed 
income – 8%

Alternative         
investments – 12%

Commodities – 5%

Cash – 2% 

Emerging market 
equities – 3%

Non-US dev
equities – 8%

US equities – 33%

Equities – 44%

Current asset allocation
Model portfolio moderate risk profile, in %

Neutral tactical preferences across main asset classes

Source: UBS WMR (for asset class comments) and Wealth Management Americas (WMA) Asset Allocation Committee (for the tactical view), as of 27 September 2012. Note: The benchmark allocations 
are provided for illustrative purposes only by UBS Investment Solutions for a hypothetical US investor with a moderate investor risk profile and total return objective. See “Sources of benchmark allocations 
and investor risk profiles” in the Appendix of the Investment Strategy Guide for a detailed explanation regarding the source of benchmark allocations and their suitability and the source of investor risk 
profiles. The current allocation percentages are derived from the benchmark allocations and the tactical deviation (provided by WMA Asset Allocation Committee). See “Deviations from benchmark 
allocation” in the Appendix of the Investment Strategy Guide regarding the interpretation of the suggested tactical deviations from benchmark. See “Nontraditional Assets” and “Description of Certain 
Alternative Investment Strategies” in the Appendix of the Investment Strategy Guide regarding Alternative Investments. See “Emerging Market Investments in the Appendix of the Investment Strategy 

Guide regarding Emerging Markets.

63



C:\Program Files\UBS\Pres\Templates\PresPrintOnScreen.pot

7

Disclaimer 

Wealth Management Research is published by Wealth Management & Swiss Bank and Wealth Management Americas, Business Divisions of UBS AG (UBS) or an
affiliate thereof. In certain countries UBS AG is referred to as UBS SA. This publication is for your information only and is not intended as an offer, or a solicitation of
an offer, to buy or sell any investment or other specific product. The analysis contained herein does not constitute a personal recommendation or take into account
the particular investment objectives, investment strategies, financial situation and needs of any specific recipient. It is based on numerous assumptions. Different
assumptions could result in materially different results. We recommend that you obtain financial and/or tax advice as to the implications (including tax) of investing
in the manner described or in any of the products mentioned herein. Certain services and products are subject to legal restrictions and cannot be offered worldwide
on an unrestricted basis and/or may not be eligible for sale to all investors. All information and opinions expressed in this document were obtained from sources
believed to be reliable and in good faith, but no representation or warranty, express or implied, is made as to its accuracy or completeness (other than disclosures
relating to UBS and its affiliates). All information and opinions as well as any prices indicated are currently only as of the date of this report, and are subject to
change without notice. Opinions expressed herein may differ or be contrary to those expressed by other business areas or divisions of UBS as a result of using
different assumptions and/or criteria. At any time UBS AG and other companies in the UBS group (or employees thereof) may have a long or short position, or deal
as principal or agent, in relevant securities or provide advisory or other services to the issuer of relevant securities or to a company connected with an issuer. Some
investments may not be readily realizable since the market in the securities is illiquid and therefore valuing the investment and identifying the risk to which you are
exposed may be difficult to quantify. UBS relies on information barriers to control the flow of information contained in one or more areas within UBS, into other areas,
units, divisions or affiliates of UBS. Futures and options trading is considered risky. Past performance of an investment is no guarantee for its future performance.
Some investments may be subject to sudden and large falls in value and on realization you may receive back less than you invested or may be required to pay
more. Changes in FX rates may have an adverse effect on the price, value or income of an investment. This document may not be reproduced or copies circulated
without prior authority of UBS or a subsidiary of UBS. UBS expressly prohibits the distribution and transfer of this document to third parties for any reason. UBS will
not be liable for any claims or lawsuits from any third parties arising from the use or distribution of this document. This report is for distribution only under such
circumstances as may be permitted by applicable law.

About economic forecasts: In developing the forecasts, WMR economists worked in collaboration with economists employed by UBS Investment Research (INV).
INV is published by UBS Investment Bank. Forecasts (F) are current only as of the dates of the publication and may change without notice.

Distributed to US persons by UBS Financial Services Inc., a subsidiary of UBS AG. UBS Securities LLC is a subsidiary of UBS AG and an affiliate of UBS Financial
Services Inc. UBS Financial Services Inc. accepts responsibility for the content of a report prepared by a non-US affiliate when it distributes reports to US persons.
All transactions by a US person in the securities mentioned in this report should be effected through a US-registered broker dealer affiliated with UBS, and not
through a non-US affiliate. The contents of this report have not been and will not be approved by any securities or investment authority in the United States or
elsewhere.

Version as per October 2011.

© 2012. The key symbol and UBS are among the registered and unregistered trademarks of UBS. All rights reserved

64



 

 

3rd Quarter Revenue Report for Parks and Recreation 
 
First glance at the totals from the 3rd quarter, it would appear that we are not doing as well as last 
year.  The 3rd quarter membership totals are far below last year’s 3rd quarter totals.  Looking at the 
totals for the year, however, we are still ahead of last year, with $2,000 more taken in from pass 
sales, up to now.  This is due to the addition of the Seasonal and weekly passes.  Most of the sales 
for the seasonal passes appear in the 2nd quarter.   So we are still doing great, but the sales are at a 
different time of year.  We should see a big bump in pass sales this coming 4th quarter with the 
Winter Passes and our annual November discount coming up.  Attendance numbers have remained 
steady.   
Our final report on Odiak will show a slight revenue increase from last year, with payments still 
coming in.   
Summer Camp also did well, bringing in a bit more revenue with fewer sessions.   
I am looking forward to the end of year totals; they should be greater than last year.  I also believe 
that next year will be even better than this, with the addition of our improved pool facility, more 
fitness and recreation programming available and hopefully the snow will not get the best of us this 
winter. 
 
All the best, 
 
Jim Fritsch 
 
 

65



 

 

 
 
Parks and Recreation 
 

 
 

Month Drop in Passes Programs S.Cabin Odiak Other Total

July 827.00$        635.00$      3,498.00$            245.00$           11,778.00$  16,983.00$ 
August 904.00$        1,930.00$  2,205.00$            760.00$           13,226.25$  700.00$   19,725.25$ 

September 710.00$        2,080.00$  710.00$               420.00$           10,422.22$  14,342.22$ 

Total 2,441.00$    4,645.00$  6,413.00$            1,425.00$       35,426.47$  700.00$   51,050.47$ 

3rd Quarter Revenue 2011
Month Drop in Passes Programs S.Cabin Odiak Other Total

July $1,256.00 $6,551.00 $3,765.00 $280.00 $9,724.12 $50.00 $21,626.12

August $1,275.00 $1,530.00 $860.00 $645.00 $12,841.97 $350.00 $17,501.97

September $614.00 $3,204.00 $200.00 $510.00 $12,488.28 $17,016.28

Total $3,145.00 $11,285.00 $4,825.00 $1,435.00 $35,054.37 $400.00 $56,144.37

* Deposit Totals to date = $99,695.30 
Last year at this time = $98,565.38

3rd Quarter Revenue  2012

66



67



A MEMO FROM SUSAN BOURGEOIS, CITY CLERK 
 
DATE:   October 09, 2012   
  
TO:       Mayor & City Council 
 
SUBJECT:     Substitute Ordinance 1098 
 

 
The City Council has met two times with the School Board in joint work sessions to 
discuss the Cordova Municipal Code section 3.36. Ordinance 1098 appeared before 
Council for first reading on September 19. Council referred Ordinance 1098 to staff for 
edits. Substitute Ordinance 1098 passed at first read on October 3, 2012. Tonight 
Substitute Ordinance 1098 is before council for a public hearing and then at the regular 
meeting for second reading and final approval. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Move to adopt Substitute Ordinance 1098. 
 
REQUIRED ACTION:  Majority roll call vote. 
 
 
 
  

68



DRAFT 

ADDED LANGUAGE UNDERLINED/ DELETED LANGUAGE STRICKEN THROUGH 

 

SUBSTITUTE ORDINANCE 1098 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, ADOPTING 

CORDOVA MUNICIPAL CODE 3.36.080 AND 3.36.090 TO CLARIFY THE AUTHORITY AND 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE SCHOOL BOARD 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Cordova (“City”) is responsible to provide for a system of public schools for 

the municipality; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the system of public schools for the municipality is operated by a board of education 

(“School Board”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, two joint work sessions between the City Council and School Board were held to clarify 

the authority and responsibilities of the School Board regarding the maintenance and leases of the City-owned 

school buildings; and 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Cordova, that: 

 

                Section 1.  Cordova Municipal Code sections 3.36.080 and 3.36.090 are adopted as follows: 

 

Chapter 3.36 - SCHOOL BOARD 

3.36.010 - Existing board to continue. 

3.36.020 - Members—Terms of office. 

3.36.030 - Vacancy—Declaration of candidacy. 

3.36.040 - Vacancy—Method of filling. 

3.36.050 - Members—Oath. 

3.36.060 - Powers and duties generally. 

3.36.070 - Superintendent. 

3.36.080 – School Maintenance 

3.36.090 – School Facility leases 

 

3.36.080 – School maintenance. 

a) The school board shall provide custodial services, routine maintenance and repair, and walkway snow 

removal for the city-owned school buildings and shall provide employees for these purposes.  Routine 

repairs shall be all repairs of less than $5,000 for a specific individual item or project. 

 

b) The city council shall provide insurance, major maintenance and all rehabilitation, repair and 

construction, water/sewer/refuse services, and snow removal from buildings and grounds for the city-

owned school buildings.  Major repairs shall be all repairs of more than $5,000 for a specific individual 

item or project. 

 

69



DRAFT 

ADDED LANGUAGE UNDERLINED/ DELETED LANGUAGE STRICKEN THROUGH 

 

3.36.090 – School facility leases 

 Leases of the city-owned school buildings under school board management with a term of 30 

consecutive days or more shall be in accordance with CMC 5.22.   

 

 

Section 2.  This ordinance shall be effective thirty (30) days after its passage and publication.  This 
ordinance shall be enacted in accordance with Section 2.13 of the Charter of the City of Cordova, Alaska, and 
published in the Cordova Times, a newspaper of general circulation in the City, within ten (10) days after its 
passage.  

 
1st reading:  October 3, 2012 
2nd reading and public hearing:  October 17, 2012 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 17th DAY OF OCTOBER 2012. 
         
        _______________________________ 
        James Kallander, Mayor 
 
       ATTEST:      
        _______________________________ 
        Susan Bourgeois, City Clerk 

70



A MEMO FROM SUSAN BOURGEOIS, CITY CLERK 
 
DATE:   October 10, 2012   
  
TO:       Mayor & City Council 
 
SUBJECT:     Ordinance 1099 
 

 
The City Council is currently in the process of changing CMC 3.36 regarding School 
Board authority concerning maintenance and leasing of the City-owned school buildings. 
In the conversation at first reading of that ordinance (Substitute Ordinance 1098), Council 
suggested that 5.22 which is referred to in the new (soon to be adopted) code language 
should be looked at and amended to coincide with the changes they were making in 3.36. 
Therefore, Ordinance 1099 amending and 5.22 with the appropriate edits is before you 
tonight for first reading. As backup, there is included an email from the City auditor 
which speaks to the financial aspect of the lease payments. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Move to adopt Ordinance 1099. 
 
REQUIRED ACTION:  Majority voice vote. 
 
 
 
  

71



DRAFT 

 

ADDED LANGUAGE UNDERLINED/ DELETED LANGUAGE STRICKEN THROUGH 

 

ORDINANCE 1099 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORDOVA, ALASKA, 
AMENDING CORDOVA MUNICIPAL CODE 5.22.040 AND ENACTING CORDOVA 

MUNICIPAL CODE 5.22.090 K TO CLARIFY PROCEDURES FOR LEASING CITY-OWNED 
SCHOOL BUILDINGS 

 
 WHEREAS, City Council is in the process of adopting Substitute Ordinance 1098 which 
clarifies leases of city-owned school buildings and refers to said leases as being written in accordance 
with 5.22 of Cordova Municipal Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on first reading of Substitute Ordinance 1098, the City Council decided that it 
would be prudent to amend 5.22 soon to coincide with the added language of 3.36.090 in Substitute 
Ordinance 1098. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Cordova, that: 
 
                Section 1.  Cordova Municipal Code section 5.22.040 is amended as follows and 5.22.090 K is 
enacted as follows: 
 
5.22.040 - Application to lease or purchase. 

A. A person shall apply to the city manager in writing to lease or purchase an interest in city real 
property on a form approved by the city manager.   
 
In the case of lease applications for space within the city-owned school buildings, a person shall 
apply to the school board. The school board has authority to negotiate lease terms consistent with 
this chapter. Acceptable applications will be forwarded to the city manager accompanied by a 
school board resolution.     

 
The application shall include the following information:  

1. The name of the applicant, and any other names under which the applicant does business; 
2. The name of each affiliate (as defined in AS 10.06.990(2) or its successor) of the 

applicant; 
3. The applicant's mailing address and the address of the applicant's registered office in the 

state, if applicable; 
4. The use or purpose for which the applicant proposes to lease or purchase the property, 

including the following: 
a. An application for a lease with a term exceeding one year for a commercial or 

industrial purpose shall include a development plan for the property providing 
for the development of a permanent commercial or industrial facility, which 
plan shall include the number of persons to be employed on the premises 
during the term of the lease, and any additional information required by the city 
manager, the city planner or the planning commission.  

b. An application for a lease with a term not exceeding one year for a commercial 
or industrial purpose shall include a development plan for the property 
providing the information required by the city manager, the city planner or the 
planning commission.  

c. Any other application shall state the use, value and nature of any improvements 
the applicant proposes to construct on the property, and any additional 

72



DRAFT 

 

ADDED LANGUAGE UNDERLINED/ DELETED LANGUAGE STRICKEN THROUGH 

 

information required by the city manager, the city planner or the planning 
commission;  

5. Evidence that the applicant meets the applicable qualifications in subsection B of this 
section; and 

6. Any other information required by the city manager. 
 

5.22.090 - Disposal by lease. 
In addition to the other requirements in this chapter, a lease of city real property shall conform to the 
following requirements:  

A. The lease may not be assigned without the approval of the city, which may be granted at the sole 
discretion of the city council. 

B. The term of the lease may not exceed thirty years, including renewals, unless the city council 
approves a longer term upon finding that the longer term will be beneficial to the city or the 
citizens of Cordova in light of the purpose of the lease, the use of the premises and the nature of 
any improvements to be constructed thereon.  

C. A lease for fair market value having a term longer than two years shall be subject to a rental 
adjustment to fair market value at intervals no less frequent that every two years, but no such 
adjustment shall cause a reduction in the rent under the lease.  

D. A lease may grant the lessee one or more options to renew, provided that: 
1. The term, including all available renewal terms, does not exceed the term permitted under 

subsection B of this section; and 
2. Upon each renewal, the lease shall be subject to all provisions of this code in effect at the 

time of the renewal. 
E. The lease shall reserve to the city the right to designate or grant rights-of-way or utility easements 

across the leased premises without compensation; provided, that the lessee shall be compensated 
for any resulting, taking or destruction of improvements owned by the lessee, and provided 
further that the rent shall be adjusted to reflect any resulting reduction in the fair market value of 
the leased premises.  

F. A lease of commercial or industrial real property having a term of more than one year shall 
require substantial implementation of the development plan required under Section 
5.22.040(A)(4)(a) within twelve months of approval of the lease by the council under Section 
5.22.010, unless at the time of such approval the council approves a longer period for substantial 
implementation.  

G. A lease of commercial or industrial real property having a term of one year or less shall: 
1. Prohibit the construction of improvements or other permanent alteration of the property, 

or the establishment of any enterprise or activity on the property that cannot be 
terminated on thirty days' notice; and  

2. Provide for termination by the city upon thirty days' written notice to the lessee. 
H. The lessee's performance under a lease shall be secured in the manner that the city council may 

require, including without limitation, a security deposit, surety bond or guaranty.  
I. Unless the council provides otherwise in authorizing the lease, the lessee shall pay rent to the city 

on an annual basis, in advance, with payments due upon commencement of the term and on each 
anniversary thereof during the term.  

J. The lease shall provide for payment of interest or a late fee for rent past due, and provide for 
recovery by the city of attorneys' fees and costs to the maximum extent allowed by law in the 
event the city is required to enforce the lease in court, and such additional provisions pertaining to 
defaults and remedies as the city manager may determine to be in the city's interest.  
 

73



DRAFT 

 

ADDED LANGUAGE UNDERLINED/ DELETED LANGUAGE STRICKEN THROUGH 

 

K. A lease of city-owned school buildings shall provide that payments received for rent shall be made 
payable to the Cordova School District and assigned to a special revenue fund designated by the 
school board. 
 
Section 2.  This ordinance shall be effective thirty (30) days after its passage and publication.  

This ordinance shall be enacted in accordance with Section 2.13 of the Charter of the City of Cordova, 
Alaska, and published in the Cordova Times, a newspaper of general circulation in the City, within ten 
(10) days after its passage.  

 
1st reading:  October 17, 2012 
2nd reading and public hearing:  November 7, 2012 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 7th DAY OF NOVEBER 2012. 
         
 
        _______________________________ 
        James Kallander, Mayor 
 
       ATTEST:  
              
        _______________________________ 
        Susan Bourgeois, City Clerk 

 
 

74



Sent: Wednesday, October 10, 2012 9:30 AM 

To: Mark Lynch 

Cc: John Bost 

Subject: School Leasing 

 
Mark, 
  
In follow up to our yesterday conversation about the long‐term lease of school facilities, I discussed with 
a few of our other partners and wanted clarify something that I said on the phone.  I mentioned that the 
City can designate funds for a specific purpose outside of general education and that funding would be 
outside of the local funding cap.  With a specific eye to the long‐term lease, the City could enter into a 
long‐term lease and simply assign the revenue to the school for a specific purpose.  As long as the 
purpose is specific enough to warrant treatment as a special revenue fund (or an agency fund) then it 
would be outside the cap. 
  
In practice, we have seen District’s specifically earmark revenue streams for transportation, food service 
subsidies, and/or student activities.  So those are a couple of items that might work if there is a need for 
funding for those items at the district.   
  
  
  
Michelle Drew Audit	Director 	 
Mikunda,	Cottrell	&	Co.,	Inc. 3601	C	Street,	Suite	600	|	Anchorage,	Alaska	99503	 
P	907.278.8878	|	F	907.278.5779	 mdrew@mcc‐cpa.com	|	www.mcc‐cpa.com 

 
 

75



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 October 11, 2012 
Memo to City Council 
Re: Today in America TV show 
 
Over the past month the Mayor and I have had two teleconference meetings with producers of a 

Television show called “Today in America.” It is hosted by terry Bradshaw and is aired 

nationally. On October 11 we had an informational gathering consisting of three Council 

members, two chamber board members, the Mayor and myself. We spent about 45 minutes 

hearing about the program from their Associate Producer, Dave Corvair. The response at that 

meeting seemed positive, so this item is included on the Council agenda as an action item to 

authorize me to negotiate, and ultimately sign, a contract with Today in America. The cost to the 

City will be $19,800, and we will own the rights to the 5 minute segment about Cordova. 

Additionally, the program airs once nationally, and 19 times in regional markets that the City 

gets to choose (total of 20 airings). Here are two links. The first is the show’s website, and the 

second is specific details concerning what they do, and what we can expect.  

 

www.todayinamericatv.com 

 

http://todayinamericatv.com/ApQt/e-package/ 

 

Our attorney is currently reviewing the contract, and may have some edits, but I am attaching the 

original draft for your review. 

 

 

 

Recommended action: Voice Vote.  

I move to direct the City Manager to negotiate and sign a contract with Today in America with a 

total cost to the City of Nineteen Thousand Eight Hundred dollars ($19,800.00). 

 

 

Thank you, 
Mark Lynch 
City Manager 

CI TY OF CORDOVA 
 

Office of City Manager 

City of Cordova 
602 Railroad Ave. 
P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska  99574 

Phone: (907) 424-6200 
Fax: (907) 424-6000 
Email: citymanager@cityofcordova.net 
Web: www.cityofcordova.net 

 

76



77



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 October 10, 2012 
Memo to City Council 
Re: Safe Routes to School Grant 
 
A Safe Routes to School grant is available to Cordova in the amount of $253,172.54. It was 

applied for by Cordova School District, who has asked the City to sign the Notice to Proceed 

with the state and administer the grant and oversee the project. 

 

Initially there were several questions that the City needed answers to. One question was 

concerning the total amount of funds available, and it has been established that none of this grant 

has been expended, so the full amount is still available for the project. Also, there were questions 

concerning state maintenance of the infrastructure once installed, and the answers to that are on 

the attached e-mail response from Steve Soenksen. Mr Soenksen also verified in the e-mail that 

if the project goes over the engineer’s estimated budget the SRTS project will still cover the 

additional costs without any City match. 

 

Based on the information I have received to date I can recommend that Council authorize me to 

sign the Notice to Proceed and accept grant administration and project management. However, 

there will be a cost in additional personnel hours to City employees, and I am not sure exactly 

what the will be. If we are successful at filling our Facilities Superintendent position, which also 

includes project management, we should have it covered. If we don’t get that position filled right 

away we would need to contract for project management on this project in much the same way 

we have on other recent project such as the breakwater, hospital roof, etc. 

 

Recommended action: Voice Vote.  

I move to direct the City Manager to sign the Notice to Proceed and to accept grant 

administration and project management for the Safe Routes to School project which has a total 

authorized budget of $253,172.54. 

 

 

Thank you, 
Mark Lynch 
City Manager 

CI TY OF CORDOVA 
 

Office of City Manager 

City of Cordova 
602 Railroad Ave. 
P.O. Box 1210 
Cordova, Alaska  99574 

Phone: (907) 424-6200 
Fax: (907) 424-6000 
Email: citymanager@cityofcordova.net 
Web: www.cityofcordova.net 

 

78



From: Soenksen,  Steven M (DOT)

To: Mark Lynch

Subject: Re:  City of  Cordova SRTS questions

Date: Wednesday, October 10, 2012 3:10:41 PM

Hi Mark
Yes, the "final cost" will be known as the final design work is completed. We have a
"project  revision"form that  can be completed to cover additional cost  to complete
this project. I t  is 100% federal funding,  unique to other  transportation projects that
may require a local match.

This program does not require a match. I t  may in the near future. The community,
through a public process designed these solutions and the federal money is available
as a reimbursable grant  to the city

Feel free to call me at 907 957 7550 if you have additional questions. 
Thank you
Steve Soenksen 

On Oct  10, 2012, at 12:23 PM, "Mark Lynch" < citymanager@cityofcordova.net>
wrote:

Steve,

 

I’m not sure if this has been asked yet or not, but what if the project goes over the

engineer’s estimated budget? Does funding get adjusted, or is the City responsible for

the additional costs?

 

Thanks,

 

Mark Lynch

City Manager

City of Cordova, AK

 

From:  Soenksen, Steven M (DOT) [mailto:steve.soenksen@alaska.gov]  
Sent: Wednesday,  October 10,  2012 10:24 AM
To: Josh Hallquist;  Potts, Glenn F (DOT)
Cc:  Mark Lynch;  tkeel@cordovasd.org
Subject:  RE: City of  Cordova SRTS questions

 

Josh:

I just spoke with Glenn Potts in our Northern Region Right-of Way Section.  Our

preliminary review is that you are correct on both points below.  The short answer is

no.  However, it has been some time since we looked at this question and the

specifics, Glenn would like to review the paperwork to be sure of this answer.  We will

contact you soon if there is additional information.

79

mailto:steve.soenksen@alaska.gov
mailto:citymanager@cityofcordova.net
mailto:citymanager@cityofcordova.net
mailto:tkeel@cordovasd.org


 

Essentially, as I understand it, the city is given permission to construct this facility in

the state right-of-way as it is part of the locally planned improvements under the

SRTS federal funding guidance.  But the state would be responsible for maintaining it

as with other elements in the state right-of-way constructed with federal funds.  He

did look at the site and is familiar with the location and thought it to be reasonable

and appropriate improvement for the safety of children as a community project. 

 

While a little extra care or possible reduced speeds may be necessary by snow

removal crews, it is believed that the increase in safety is worth the effort.  As a traffic

calming measure, it will be effective in slowing down the traffic and increasing

visibility of children in an area that they may be traveling in increasing numbers. 

Parents and public involvement indicated this improvement to the right of way  is

desirable (and necessary, for some) from a public safety perspective.  Many thought

that if this were improved, there would be more willingness to allow their children to

walk to school.  As I recall, almost 80+% of children live within a mile of the school. 

This link will serve a large part of those families.  Field trips for the children would use

this route as well.

 

As it is a hot topic, I would be available for a phone call or other contact to assist the

community in putting this project together and on the street.  Please let me know

how we can assist.

 

Steve Soenksen, Coordinator

Alaska Safe Routes to School Program

907-465-4069 ofc

907-957-7550 cell

 

 

 

From:  Josh Hallquist  [mailto:CCPM@cityofcordova.net]  
Sent: Wednesday,  October 10,  2012 9:11 AM
To: Soenksen, Steven M (DOT)
Cc:  citymanager@cityofcordova.net
Subject:  City of  Cordova SRTS questions

 

Steve,

   The two questions that the City Manager needs written confirmation on for the city

to proceed with the currently approved SRTS plan/project for Cordova public schools

are as follows;

1.            Will the city be responsible for maintaining the raised crosswalk section of

Lake Ave in the future if damaged by state snow removal or in the event that lake

avenue is re-paved? NO

2.            Will the city be responsible for fixing any signs damaged by state snow

removal? NO

It is my understanding from our conversation on 10-2-12 that the answer to both was

80

mailto:[mailto:CCPM@cityofcordova.net]
mailto:citymanager@cityofcordova.net


no. Please verify this in writing at your earliest convenience. I don’t know if it would

be possible to get a response this afternoon, but the City Manager would like to

include the response in the city council packet which has a deadline of tonight. This is

a hot topic for city council and it would be nice to tell them all concerns have been

addressed and it is a go.

 

Thanks for your time and sorry for the rush!

Josh Hallquist 

CCPM

81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



Memorandum 
To: City Council 
Thru: Samantha Greenwood, City Planner 
Date: October 10, 2012  
Re: Recommendation from P&Z, Lot 6 Block 2 Southfill Development Park Land disposal      
  

PART I.   GENERAL INFORMATION: 

The timeline of the disposal of the Lot6, Block 2 Southfill Development Park 
 

1. 07/11/2012 P&Z meeting –Planning and Zoning made recommendation to city council to dispose 
of the lot 6 Block 2 Southfill Development Park 

2. 08/01/2012 City Council voted to sell  the lot by proposal  
3. 30 day period proposal period ended September 17, 2012 
4. Planning and Zoning reviewed proposals  October 9, 2012  

 
Planning Commission 

 
All proposals are included in the City Council packet for review.  At the Planning Commission meeting 
all proposals received were rated using the criteria developed by the P&Z commission and discuss.  The 
criteria allowed the number of proposals to be narrowed down to two.  The proposals form Becky Chapek 
and Thai Vu and Camtu Ho rated highest and these were further reviewed by the commissioners using the 
criteria as a group and through discussion.  After a long discussion it was determined that both proposals 
meet and exceeded the criteria.   The commissioners, at this point concurred that these two proposals were 
tied and made the motion below.    
 
M/Greenwood S/Pegau 
“I move to forward the proposals of Chapek and Camtu to City Council.” 
Upon voice vote motion passed 6-0 

 
At this time city council needs to review the proposal and the recommendation from P&Z and do one 
of the following as described in 5.22.030.  
 
5.22.030 - Council approval required. 

 
B. If the city solicits bids or proposals for a disposal of an interest in city real property, the council 
either shall: 
 

1. Award the disposal to the best bidder or proposer in accordance with the criteria in the invitation 
for bids or proposals, or  

2. If the council finds it to be in the best interest of the city to do so, reject any or all bids or 
proposals. 

 

PART II. STAFF SUGGESTED MOTION: 

“I move to (*) on Lot 6 Block 2 Southfill Development Park.” 

*could be 1) award the disposal to the proposer (name the proposer) or 2) reject the proposal(s) 

109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



 

Each proposal will be evaluated on the criteria in the table below. Each criteria will be scored from 1-10 for the 
individual proposals. The multiplier will then be applied to the scores to determine a final score.  
 
Final Land Disposal Evaluation Criteria 

 

 

Criteria 
 
     Multiplier 

Proposal A 
Rank  
1-10 

Proposal B 
Rank 
1-10 

Proposal C 
Rank 
1-10 

Subtotal for  
Proposal  A 

Subtotal for  
Proposal B 

Subtotal for 
Proposal C 

Value of improvements 1.75       

Number of Employees* 1          

Sales Tax Revenue* 1          

Importance to Community 1.75          

5yr Business Plan/Time line 0.75          

Enhanced Architectural 
Design 

1.25          

Proposal Price 1          

Consistency with 
Comprehensive  Plan 

1.5          

Total                               10          

 

 

133



Memorandum 
To: City Council 
Thru: Samantha Greenwood, City Planner 
Date: October 10, 2012  
Re: Recommendation from P&Z, Lot 2 Block 3 Cordova Industrial Park Land disposal      
  

PART I.   GENERAL INFORMATION: 

The timeline of the disposal of the Lot 2, Block 3 Cordova Industrial Park 
 

1. 07/11/2012 P&Z meeting –Planning and Zoning made recommendation to city council to 
dispose of the lot 2 Block 3 Cordova Industrial Park  

2. 08/01/2012 City Council voted to sell  the lot by proposal  
3. 30 day period proposal period ended September 17, 2012 
4. Planning and zoning reviewed proposal  October 9, 2012  

 
Planning Commission 

 
All proposals are included in the City Council packet for review.  At the Planning Commission 
meeting all proposals received were rated using the criteria developed by the P&Z commission and 
discuss.  The criteria allowed the number of proposals to be narrowed down.   There was much 
discussion and concern about creating a situation where Mr. Carpenter would not be able to fix his 
current building.  The rankings from the criteria and discussion established that Mr. Nichols proposal 
was the highest ranked.  The commissioners, at this point concurred to recommend Dan Nichols 
proposal to City Council.    
 
M/Srb S/Greenwood 
“I move that we forward Dan Nichols proposal for the purchase of Lot 2, Block 3 to Council.” 
Upon voice vote motion passed 6-0 
  
At this time city council needs to review the proposal and the recommendation from P&Z and do 
one of the following as described in 5.22.030.  
 
5.22.030 - Council approval required. 

 
B. If the city solicits bids or proposals for a disposal of an interest in city real property, the 
council either shall: 
 

1. Award the disposal to the best bidder or proposer in accordance with the criteria in the 
invitation for bids or proposals, or  

2. If the council finds it to be in the best interest of the city to do so, reject any or all bids or 
proposals. 

 
PART II. STAFF SUGGESTED MOTION: 

“I move to (*) on Lot 2 Block 3 Cordova Industrial Park.” 

*could be 1) award the disposal to the proposer (name the proposer) or 2) reject the proposal(s) 

 
134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



 

Each proposal will be evaluated on the criteria in the table below. Each criteria will be scored from 1-10 for the 
individual proposals. The multiplier will then be applied to the scores to determine a final score.  
 
Final Land Disposal Evaluation Criteria 

 

 

Criteria 
 
Multiplier 

Proposal A 
Rank  
1-10 

Proposal B 
Rank 
1-10 

Proposal C 
Rank 
1-10 

Proposal D 
Rank 
1-10 

Subtotal for  
Proposal  A 

Subtotal for  
Proposal B 

Subtotal for 
Proposal C 

Subtotal for 
Proposal D 

Value of 
improvements 

1.75         

Number of 
Employees* 

1            

Sales Tax Revenue* 1            

 Importance to 
Community 

1.75            

5yr Business 
Plan/Time line 

0.75            

Enhanced 
Architectural Design 

1.25            

Proposal Price 1            

Consistency with 
Comprehensive  Plan 

1.5            

Total                        10            

 

 

158



Pending agenda: 
 
Capital Priorities List Meeting –December 2012, March 2013, June 2013, September 2013 
 
Budget Work Sessions:  10/17/12 CM submits draft budget to Council 
    10/30/12 Fees and Revenues 
    11/1/12 Fees and Revenues 
    11/6, 7, 8/12 Expenses 
    11/20/12 Finalize budget (if necessary) 
 
Alaska Municipal League Conference – November 12 – 16, Anchorage  
Clerk out of office Nov 9 – 15; Manager out Nov 12 – 16; Clerk vacation Dec 27 – Jan 15 
 

Committees: 
 

Cordova Center Committee: Tim Joyce, Sylvia Lange, Dan Logan, Mark Lynch, Sam 
 Greenwood, Moe Zamarron, Dave Reggiani, Cathy Sherman 
 
Fisheries Advisory Committee:  David Reggiani, PWSAC; Ken Roemhildt, Seafood Sales; Jim 
 Holley, AML; Torie Baker, Marine Advisory Program Coordinator; John Bocci; and 
 Jeremy Botz, ADF&G   
 
Cordova Trails Committee: Elizabeth Senear, VACANCY, Jim Kallander, Toni Godes, and  
 David Zastrow 
 
Public Services Building Design Committee: David Reggiani - Chairman, Chief Bob (Griffiths), 
 Martin Moe, Jim Kacsh, Dick Groff, Mike Hicks, Tom Bailer 
 
E-911 Committee: Chief Bob Griffiths – Chairman, Bret Bradford, Gray Graham, Dick Groff, 
 Mike Hicks (and/or Paul Trumblee), David Allison, George Covel 
 

Calendars: 3 months’ of calendars are attached hereto 

 
October 2012; November 2012; December 2012 

159



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

Location Legend 

CH—City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR—Library Meeting 

Room 

HSL—High Sch Lib 

1 2 3 

 

6:30 bdgt wksn LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

4 5 6 

7 8 9 

5:30 Prks & Rec LMR 

P&Z Commission 

Mtg 7pm CH 

10 

 

Sch Bd 7pm HSL 

Hrbr Cms 7pm CH 

11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 

6:30 bdgt wksn LMR 

7:15 pub hrg  LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

18 

Alaska Day—City Hall 

Offices Closed 

19 20 

21 22 

 

 

 

absentee in person CH 

23 

 

 

 

absentee in person CH 

24 

 

 

 

absentee in person CH 

25 

 

 

 

absentee in person CH 

26 

 

 

 

absentee in person CH 

27 

 

 

 

 

28 29 

 

 

 

absentee in person CH 

30 

 

 

6:30 bdgt wksn LMR 

absentee in person CH 

31 

3Q sales tax due 

2012 2nd half prop 

taxes due 

absentee in person CH 

  Location Legend 

CH—City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR—Library Meeting 

Room 

HSL—High Sch Lib 

October 2012 

160



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

Location Legend 

CH—City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR—Library Meeting 

Room 

HSL—High Sch Lib 

   1 

 

6:30 bdgt wksn LMR 

 

absentee in person 

2 

 

 

 

absentee in person CH 

3 

4 5 

 

 

absentee in person CH 

-—City Assessors—- 

6 

ELECTION DAY 

6:30 bdgt wksn CH 

 

—--2013 review—-- 

7 

6:30 bdgt wksn LMR 

7:15 pub hrg  LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

-—City Assessors—- 

8 

 

6:30 bdgt wksn LMR 

 

—--2013 review—-- 

9 

 
 

 

 

—–-Clrk @ AAMC Conf—— 

10 

 

 

 
—–-Clrk @ AAMC Conf—— 

11 

 

 

 
—–-Clrk @ AAMC Conf—— 

12 

Veteran’s Day—City 

Hall Offices Closed 
—–-Clrk @ AAMC Conf—— 

—--AML Conf—— 

13 5:30 Prks & Rec 

LMR P&Z Commis-

sion Mtg 7pm CH 
—–-Clrk @ AAMC Conf—— 

—--AML Conf—— 

14 

Sch Bd 7pm HSL 

Hrbr Cms 7pm CH 
—–-Clrk @ AAMC Conf—— 

—--AML Conf—— 

15 

 

 
—–-Clrk @ AAMC Conf—— 

—--AML Conf—— 

16 

 

 

 

—--AML Conf—— 

17 

18 19 20 

 

6:30 bdgt wksn LMR 

(if necessary) 

21 

 

7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

22 

Thanksgiving—City 

Hall Offices Closed 

23 

Thanksgiving—City 

Hall Offices Closed 

24 

25 26 27 28 

 

7pm spec mtg LMR 

29 30 Location Legend 

CH—City Hall Confer-

ence Room 

LMR—Library Meeting 

Room 

HSL—High Sch Lib 

November 2012 

161



Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat 

Location Legend 

CH—City Hall Conference 

Room 

LMR—Library Mtg Room 

HSL—High Sch Lib 

     1 

2 3 4 5 

7:15 pub hrg LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

6 7 8 

9 10 11 

 

P&Z Commission 

Mtg 7pm CH 

12 

 

Sch Bd 7pm HSL 

Hrbr Cms 7pm CH 

13 14 15 

16 17 18 19 

7:15 pub hrg (maybe) 

LMR 

7:30 reg mtg LMR 

20 21 22 

23 24 25 

Christmas—City Hall 

Offices Closed 

26 27 

 

 

——Clerk vaca——- 

28 

 

 

——Clerk vaca——- 

29 

30 31 

 

 

——Clerk vaca——- 

    Location Legend 

CH—City Hall Conference 

Room 

LMR—Library Mtg Room 

HSL—High Sch Lib 

December 2012 

162


	f.comm.4
	Superintendent Report Oct 10
	Projected Calculation 2014 Local
	Projected Calculation 2014  State

	h.min.7
	h.min.8
	h.min.9
	h.min.10
	j.rpts.12
	j.rpts.13
	j.rpts.14a
	MEMO 093012 financial report
	Financial 2 pg 0912.
	Financial 2 pg 0912all.

	j.rpts.14b
	3rd Quartely report 2012
	Monthly Activity Sheet jul
	Monthly Activity Sheet aug
	Monthly Activity Sheet sept

	j.rpts.14c
	j.rpts.14d
	3rd Quarter Report
	2012 Summer Reading Report
	Summer photopage

	j.rpts.14e
	j.rpts.14f
	Q2 2012  letter to council
	COC - CT - 3rd Qtr
	COC - PF - 3rd Qtr
	COC - Total - 3rd Qtr
	Fourth Quarter research review

	j.rpts.14g
	3rd quarter report 2012
	3rd qtr totals 2012

	k.corres15
	l.ords.16a
	l.ords.16b
	l.ords.17a
	l.ords.17b
	l.ords.17c
	n.new.18
	n.new.19
	SRTS
	Re_ City of Cordova SRTS questions
	Cordova SRTS Plan
	Infrastructure Grant application
	Preliminary Engineering Report
	NTP

	n.new.20
	Lot6_Block2recmTO_CC_fromPZ_10_17
	L6B2_Becky_Chapek
	L6B2SFDP_Camtu
	L6B2_NVE
	L6B2SFDP_Heidbrink
	Land Disposal CRITERIA L3L2CIP

	n.new21
	Lot2_Block3recmTO_CC_fromPZ_10_17
	L2B3CIPDan_Nichols
	L2B3CIPCarpenter
	L2B3Eyak_Preservation
	Land Disposal CRITERIA

	n.new.22a
	n.new.22b

